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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  Good morning.  I’m Tad Decker.  I’m 2 

chairman of the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board.  3 

Before entering into these proceedings, I want to call 4 

everyone’s attention to the code of conduct and the 5 

media guideline for this licensing hearing.  If you 6 

did not already pick up a copy, both are available on 7 

the table just outside the auditorium doors.  Rules in 8 

these documents will be strictly enforced.   9 

  The Board expects, and it is our 10 

responsibility to ensure that courtesy prevails among 11 

the audience, presenters and speakers.  Therefore, 12 

outbursts, audience outbursts, including applause are 13 

not permitted, and I respectfully ask your assistance 14 

in complying with that essential courtesy.  Vocal 15 

expressions from the audience complicate our task.  If 16 

we determine that the Board is being disrupted --- the 17 

hearing is being disrupted, I will call a recess.  And 18 

upon restoration of order, resume the hearing.  19 

Persons who refuse to acknowledge and respect the 20 

authority of the Board may be asked to leave the room 21 

and this area.   22 

  We also welcome members of the media to 23 

this hearing, and ask that they observe the guidelines 24 

distributed when they came in.  In general, we ask 25 
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that the media follow the same protocol that applies 1 

in any formal court proceeding.  In particular, we ask 2 

the reporters and photographers not interfere with the 3 

hearing in any way, and that they conduct interviews 4 

with speakers outside the hearing room.  Finally, I 5 

want to remind the media that the Board will not be 6 

available for interviews during or after these 7 

hearings. 8 

  Yesterday, we began the process of 9 

reviewing the Philadelphia Category 2 Applicants for 10 

licensure by holding the final hearings for HSP 11 

Sugarhouse and the Riverwalk projects.  Today, the 12 

Board is continuing that process for the Philadelphia 13 

Entertainment, Foxwoods and Keystone Redevelopment 14 

TrumpStreet applications.   15 

  As stated yesterday, the Pennsylvania 16 

Race Horse Development and Gaming Act provides that 17 

two Category 2 gaming licenses to be granted in the 18 

City of Philadelphia, under Section 1304 of the Act.  19 

The application process for each of today’s Applicants 20 

has undergone an extensive review by staff for over 21 

ten months.  Today’s proceedings are to provide a 22 

final hearing opportunity for the Applicants to 23 

convince the Board that they should be granted a 24 

license, and answer and all questions that the Board 25 
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may have relating to these important issues.  1 

  As in all of these hearings, the factors 2 

that the Board will take into consideration, when 3 

reviewing these applications, are defined in the Act. 4 

The Board intends to fully consider all factors set 5 

forth in the Act, to arrive at a thorough and reasoned 6 

decision, based upon all of the evidence before the 7 

Board.   8 

  I call this meeting to order of the 9 

Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board, in the matter of 10 

Category 2 hearing, for Philadelphia Entertainment and 11 

Development Partners, LP, also referred to as the 12 

Foxwoods Project.  Philadelphia Entertainment and 13 

Development Partners, LP, has filled an application 14 

for licensure as a Category 2 slot machine operator in 15 

the City of Philadelphia.  The application process for 16 

this application again has undergone a very, very 17 

extensive review by staff.  We’re providing a final 18 

opportunity for the Applicant to demonstrate to the 19 

Board’s satisfaction not only that it is suitable for 20 

licensure, but also that it should receive one of the 21 

two available licenses in this competitive process.   22 

  The procedure which we intend to follow 23 

during this hearing is as follows.  First, Anne Neeb, 24 

our executive director, and Chief Counsel Frank 25 
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Donaghue will provide an overview of the licenses and 1 

investigatory process, in which staff has engaged, and 2 

which has brought us to this hearing today.  The 3 

second portion of the hearing will have the 4 

Applicants’ presentation including their response to 5 

questions or issues which may arise during the 6 

hearing.  Finally, we will receive input from the 7 

Bureaus of Licensing, Investigations and Enforcement, 8 

and Corporate Compliance and Internal Controls, 9 

concerning the determinations of those Bureaus which 10 

reviewed the application. 11 

  Now, would all representatives of 12 

Philadelphia Entertainment and Development Partners, 13 

LP, and of the Board, who may present testimony, 14 

please stand to be sworn in for this hearing.  Thank 15 

you.  Could the court reporter swear them in? 16 

------------------------------------------------------ 17 

WITNESSES SWORN EN MASSE 18 

------------------------------------------------------ 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 20 

  I’ll now ask our executive director, Anne 21 

Neeb, to cover the review process.  Thank you. 22 

  MS. NEEB: 23 

  Good morning, Chairman Decker, members of 24 

the Board.  Today we have before us the Philadelphia 25 
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Entertainment and Development Partners, LP.  This 1 

application was filed with the Board on December 28th, 2 

2005.  Since the filing of the application, a number 3 

of significant events have occurred to promote the 4 

review of the Applicant, for both its eligibility and 5 

suitability for licensure, under the Pennsylvania Race 6 

Horse Development and Gaming Act.   7 

  First, public input hearings for the 8 

Category 2 Philadelphia Applicants were held in 9 

Philadelphia on April 10th, 11th and 12th, 2006, 10 

during which time Philadelphia Entertainment and 11 

Development Partners made a presentation concerning 12 

its project, including oral testimony and the 13 

submission of documentary exhibits.  In addition, 14 

during the course of that hearing, 46 speakers 15 

presented either their support or opposition to the 16 

proposed project.  The hearing was recorded and 17 

transcribed. 18 

  Second, the Gaming Control Board placed a 19 

significant amount of material, submitted by the 20 

Philadelphia Entertainment and Development Partners, 21 

on its web site for the public to have access to 22 

information concerning its proposals, projections and 23 

studies, which were presented to the Board.  These 24 

documents included, but are not limited to, a 25 
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diversity plan, a local impact report, which consists 1 

of the project strategy, economic impact, traffic 2 

impact and maps.   3 

  Third, the dissemination of the 4 

previously cited information permitted the Board’s 5 

receipt of written submissions, both in support of and 6 

opposition to the project.  On June 2nd, 2006, the 7 

Board received its final written submissions, which 8 

was the cut-off date.  We received 60 submissions, 9 

written submissions, including six supporting the 10 

Applicant and 53 opposing the Applicant, and one 11 

comment neither opposing nor supporting the Applicant. 12 

  In addition, the Bureaus of Licensing, 13 

Investigation and Enforcement and of Corporate 14 

Compliance have undertaken a review of the Applicant's 15 

application, consistent with the mandate of the Act. 16 

The result of this licensing and investigative phase 17 

of the application process is the creation of the 18 

suitability report, which summarizes the findings of 19 

the Bureaus as to the Applicant's compliance with the 20 

Act, licensing eligibility and suitability 21 

requirements.   22 

  Further, in the application, Philadelphia 23 

Entertainment and Development Partners submitted a 24 

traffic study.  The PGCB retained the firm of Edwards 25 
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and Kelcey to review the study and issue a report.  1 

Since that time, the Applicant responded to Edwards 2 

and Kelcey.  Edwards and Kelcey reviewed the response 3 

and have issued a final report to which the Applicant 4 

was again permitted to respond to.  The Edwards and 5 

Kelcey report and the Applicant’s response thereto are 6 

all marked as an exhibit, which will be introduced 7 

today’s hearing.  I’m going to now turn this over to 8 

Chief Counsel.  9 

  ATTORNEY DONAGHUE: 10 

  The parties have entered into a 11 

stipulation regarding the procedure employed by the 12 

Bureaus of Licensing, Investigation and Enforcement 13 

and Corporate Compliance.  The culmination of this 14 

work, since the end of 2005, has resulted in an 15 

evidentiary record, which includes the full 16 

application, local impact statements, traffic studies, 17 

the transcript of the public input hearing, the 18 

written comments presented and received by the Board, 19 

the licensing suitability report and the stipulated 20 

testimony.  The parties have entered into a 21 

stipulation that each of these items, which are 22 

identified and offered as Exhibits One through Eight 23 

are to be admitted into the record as the stipulated 24 

evidentiary record for the Board’s consideration.  In 25 
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addition, the transcript of these proceedings and any 1 

other evidence submitted and admitted as exhibits in 2 

connection with the Applicant's licensing hearing 3 

today would likewise be part of the record for the 4 

Board’s review and consideration. 5 

(Exhibits One through Eight marked for 6 

identification.) 7 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 8 

  In light of the stipulation regarding 9 

Exhibits One through Eight, in terms of being admitted 10 

into the evidentiary record in this matter, may I have 11 

a motion to accept the Exhibits? 12 

  MS. COLINS: 13 

  So moved. 14 

  MR. MARSHALL: 15 

  Mr. Chairman, second. 16 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 17 

  Any questions or comments?  All those in 18 

favor, please indicate by saying aye. 19 

ALL RESPOND AYE 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  Any opposed? 22 

NO RESPONSE 23 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 24 

  The motion carries.  Thank you, Frank and 25 
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Anne.  Anne? 1 

  MS. NEEB: 2 

  We also have a representative today from 3 

Edwards and Kelcey, which will present the traffic 4 

report that they prepared for the Board.  They’re 5 

going to give a presentation.  I would ask them to 6 

come up.  Have you all been sworn in?   7 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM 8 

  No, not yet. 9 

  MS. NEEB: 10 

  Okay.  I’m going to ask the court 11 

reporter to swear them in, please. 12 

------------------------------------------------------ 13 

STEPHEN CUNNINGHAM, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORN, 14 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 15 

------------------------------------------------------ 16 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 17 

  Good morning, Mr. Chairman.  Good to see 18 

you all again this morning.  As we did yesterday, I’m 19 

going to give you just a brief, ten-minute overview of 20 

the traffic impact study findings and the Edwards and 21 

Kelcey review team comments on the materials that were 22 

submitted by the Applicant.  Would the Board like a 23 

restatement of the company’s qualifications? 24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 25 
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  Not particularly, unless the Applicant 1 

would like to hear the qualifications.  It’s up to 2 

you.   3 

  ATTORNEY SCHRIER: 4 

  Chairman, it’s not necessary to hear the 5 

qualifications. 6 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 7 

  Thank you.  Why don’t you go right into 8 

your report, Mr. Cunningham, in light of that? 9 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 10 

  I’m sorry? 11 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 12 

  Why don’t you go right into your report 13 

in light of that. 14 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 15 

  Yes, sir.  Thank you.  We touched on this 16 

yesterday, but the four basic steps of the traffic 17 

impact study preparation that the Applicant went 18 

through was analysis of the existing traffic volumes, 19 

projection of new trips anticipated as part of the 20 

development, reevaluation of anticipated delays on the 21 

roadway network around the project area and finally 22 

recommendation of mitigation measures that are 23 

required to alleviate anticipated delays, traffic 24 

delays, associated with the project itself.   25 
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  The proposed project is scoped to be 1 

built in three distinct phases.  Phase I, anticipated 2 

for a completion in 2008, with 3,000 slot machines and 3 

950 employees.  2010 with 2000 additional slot 4 

machines, 300 additional employees.  And finally 5 

anticipated for 2018 is 242 residences.   6 

  With that scope in mind, the project team 7 

evaluated a nine intersection study area in and around 8 

Columbus Boulevard with an identified peak hour of the 9 

Friday afternoon and Saturday afternoon peak periods. 10 

During those two periods, they’ve identified an 11 

additional 848 trips during the Friday afternoon peak 12 

hour, and 1,561 new trips during the Saturday 13 

afternoon peak hour.  Those are both entering and 14 

exiting the proposed facility, trips that are going to 15 

be directly on the roadway network in and around the 16 

project area, affecting the travel patterns through 17 

the area.  And fully 60 percent of the patrons are 18 

expected to arrive and depart via Interstate 95 in the 19 

study area.   20 

  Several mitigation measures were 21 

identified in the study in order to again alleviate 22 

those anticipated delays associated with this 23 

development.  Number one, signal timing and 24 

coordination adjustment, reallocation of green time at 25 
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signalized intersections along the corridor will allow 1 

for increased traffic flows through the area. 2 

  Secondly, roadway widening at select 3 

locations.  This is construction of additional turn 4 

lanes at several locations along the study area, 5 

including the intersections of Columbus Boulevard, 6 

where the Interstate 676 ramps, Washington Avenue and 7 

Tasker Street.  Third thing identified was two new 8 

traffic signal installations, those being at Columbus 9 

Boulevard and Dickinson Street, and Columbus Boulevard 10 

and Morris Street with I-95 south-bound ramps. 11 

  As part of their Phase II development, 12 

they also have recommended construction of a new 13 

south-bound Interstate 95 off ramp, which is going to 14 

provide direct access to the site via Dickinson 15 

Street.  Upon completion of this ramp, what you’re 16 

going to see is the traffic is not going to have to 17 

travel along Columbus Boulevard in order to access the 18 

project site.  They’re going to be able to cross 19 

directly over Columbus on Dickinson Street and access 20 

the site directly coming off of 95, so that’s an 21 

enhancement as far as the traffic patterns through the 22 

area go. 23 

  As stated several moments ago, we have 24 

issued two comment review letters on the submitted 25 
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materials by the Applicant, first one dated September 1 

11th of this year.  The Applicant subsequently 2 

provides some of their materials based on our 3 

September 11th comments.  And we reviewed those 4 

materials and issued a final letter dated November 1st 5 

of this year.  In the opinion of the review team, all 6 

of the identified issues in the traffic impact study 7 

have been adequately addressed by the Applicant. That 8 

said, we did make several additional comments, as the 9 

plan development would move forward, including 10 

resolution of any geometric design details at the 11 

intersections.   12 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 13 

  Excuse me, what does that mean, geometric 14 

design issues? 15 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 16 

  If we’re widening a roadway out there, 17 

there’s, you know, lane width designations that need 18 

to be worked out.  It’s the minutia of the design 19 

itself that would be worked through with them.   20 

  Just several other recommendations as 21 

we’re moving forward, initiation of the point of 22 

access study that’s going to be required for the new 23 

interchange, the new off ramp from south-bound 24 

Interstate 95, integration of public bus operations, 25 
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those sorts of things, as the plans would move 1 

forward. 2 

  That’s the conclusion of my comments.  If 3 

the Board has any comments, I’ll be happy to address 4 

them. 5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 6 

  Right.  What questions do we have.  Mary? 7 

  MS. COLINS: 8 

  Yes.  Mr. Cunningham, you have stated 9 

that the issues raised in the traffic study that you 10 

conducted were addressed by the Applicant; is that 11 

correct? 12 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 13 

  That’s correct, yes. 14 

  MS. COLINS: 15 

  Now, tell me what that means.   16 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 17 

  In our --- the Applicant provided at the 18 

traffic study at the beginning and after our September 19 

11th review letter.  What we have done is gone back 20 

and re-evaluated their responses to our initial 21 

comments.  In other words, if we said that there was 22 

an intersection that seemed to be functioning 23 

inadequately in the study area, we have evaluated 24 

their response to that, and are satisfied that they 25 
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have adequately mitigated traffic at that 1 

intersection. 2 

  MS. COLINS: 3 

  Now, I’m going to ask you your opinion.  4 

If all of the issues that were raised in your study 5 

are addressed and --- in a fashion that you have 6 

recommended in your study are addressed by the 7 

Applicant, in view of their projection of how many 8 

cars or additional vehicles will come to that area as 9 

a result of the casino, will the addressing of those 10 

specific issues by the Applicant provide for a 11 

controlled and adequate traffic situation? 12 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 13 

  What the Applicant has concluded, and 14 

which our review team concurs with, is the fact that 15 

upon completion of the mitigation measures that have 16 

been identified in their study, that we will not see 17 

an increase in the amount of delay in and around the 18 

roadway network in the study area. 19 

  MS. COLINS: 20 

  Right.  So the in other words the status 21 

quo will be maintained? 22 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 23 

  That’s what the study has indicated, yes. 24 

  MS. COLINS: 25 
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  Thank you. 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 2 

  That includes doing something about I-95, 3 

too; right?  That’s an additional plus down the road? 4 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 5 

  Well, no, it would be the study area 6 

being the signalized intersections along Columbus 7 

Boulevard. 8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  So just the intersections alone will keep 10 

it at status quo? 11 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 12 

  That’s correct. 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  And I-95 is something that we all should 15 

be looking into for later, in any event? 16 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 17 

  Well, that’s kind of a bigger picture 18 

thing that what we would be looking at in this kind of 19 

scope study. 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  Okay.  Understood. 22 

  MR. MARSHALL: 23 

  It would have a positive effect. 24 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 25 
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  I’m sorry, sir? 1 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 2 

  It would have a positive affect on 3 

traffic down there. 4 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 5 

  95? 6 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 7 

  I-95 in the vicinity of the project area, 8 

yes.   9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  No, but I meant fixing 95. 11 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 12 

  Oh, clearly, yes.  Yes. 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER:  14 

  Okay.  That’s what you meant; right? 15 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 16 

  Yes. 17 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 18 

  What other questions for Mr. Cunningham? 19 

Thank you.  Very good.  We’ll see you this afternoon I 20 

presume; right?  Okay.  Thank you.  We’ve got 21 

shackles.  You can’t leave Harrisburg. 22 

  I think we’re at a point where we turn it 23 

over to the Applicant. 24 

  MR. SCHRIER: 25 
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  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Mr. Chairman, 1 

honorable members of the Board, and Board staff, my 2 

name is Steve Schrier, and I’m counsel to Philadelphia 3 

Entertainment and Development Partners, also known as 4 

Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia.  It’s an honor for me to 5 

be here before you today, to present Foxwoods Casino 6 

Philadelphia to you.   7 

  I’d like to initially introduce those 8 

members of our team that are here with us today.  I’d 9 

like to introduce Chairman Michael Thomas, and ask if 10 

he would stand for a moment.  He’s the chairman of the 11 

tribal council of the Mashantucket Pequot Tribal 12 

Nation.  Pedro Johnson, who is the chairman of the 13 

Board of Managers of Foxwoods Development Company, 14 

LLC. Maureen Sebastian, who’s also a member of the 15 

Board of Managers of Foxwoods Development Company.  16 

Joseph Colebut, another member of our Board of 17 

Managers of Foxwoods Development Company.   18 

  Timothy Walker, who is also a member of 19 

the Board of Managers of Foxwoods Development company. 20 

Gary Armentrout, who sits here with me, chief 21 

development officer of Foxwoods Development Company.  22 

James Dougherty, who’s the director of operations for 23 

Foxwoods Development company.  And also from our 24 

partnership, Quincy D. Jones, Jr., who is a limited 25 
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partner of Washington Philadelphia Investors, LP.  And 1 

Mr. A. J. Agarwal, who is a limited partner of 2 

Washington Philadelphia Investors, LP, and is the 3 

manager of its general partner.  Also with me today is 4 

Jeffrey Rotwitt, who is my partner, and also counsel 5 

to Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia, and Ira Gubernick, 6 

who is counsel to Washington Philadelphia Investors.   7 

  I’d like to begin by thanking this Board 8 

and its staff for all of its assistance and 9 

cooperation in this licensing process.  In all 10 

accounts, we’ve been treated with professionalism and 11 

fairness at every turn.  And as all the other 12 

Applicants have echoed, we have found this process to 13 

be time consuming, interesting, but also difficult, 14 

and your staff has been terrific in that regard, and 15 

we appreciate that.   16 

  As this Board is aware, the Act provides 17 

numerous legal requirements that must be satisfied 18 

before any Applicant is qualified for a slot license. 19 

Once qualified, this Board bears the important task of 20 

determining which Applicants are best suited to change 21 

the face of entertainment and tourism in the City of 22 

Philadelphia.  I’m here to respectfully submit to this 23 

Board that Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia has 24 

successfully met its burden, and has met or exceeded 25 
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all of the qualification criteria required to be 1 

eligible by clear and convincing evidence.  In 2 

addition to the series of boxes that we see over on 3 

the left filled with our application materials, today 4 

you will hear, see and experience why this Applicant 5 

meets or exceeds the standards.   6 

  For example, you will hear and see that 7 

it maintains the financial stability, integrity and 8 

strength, and capability to build, own and operate a 9 

successful slot casino in Philadelphia.  And that the 10 

Applicant and its key personnel possess the knowledge 11 

and experience to successfully operate a slot casino 12 

in this Commonwealth.  And further, that we’ve 13 

addressed any adverse impact due to our proposed 14 

facility, and we’re committed to enhancing the tourism 15 

and development facilities ancillary to gaming in the 16 

Commonwealth.   17 

  We have substantial minority ownership, 18 

and we’ve developed a diversity plan regarding our 19 

employees, our vendors and our patrons.  We’re 20 

committed to a diverse workforce and vendor pool in 21 

the construction and operation of this facility.  And 22 

we’re committed to recruit, train, upgrade and promote 23 

persons of diversity in the workplace.  Finally, 24 

looking backward, this Applicant and its partners have 25 
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historically met their community obligations and 1 

commitments and have a record of compliance with the 2 

laws of other jurisdictions where they do business.  3 

  This list is by no means exhaustive, but 4 

I respectfully submit to you that Foxwoods Casino 5 

Philadelphia has produced sufficient evidence to this 6 

Board which clearly and convincingly satisfies the 7 

applicable criteria.  And I submit that through the 8 

weighty body of evidence placed in the record here 9 

before the Board, and at our public hearing earlier 10 

this year, we have affirmatively proven our 11 

entitlement and qualification to a Category 2 slot 12 

license.   13 

  I’d like to speak for a moment about our 14 

partnership.  To further convince you that Foxwoods 15 

Casino Philadelphia is the best project in the city, 16 

I’d like to provide an overview of Foxwoods Casino 17 

Philadelphia Partnership, which is made up of 18 

investors from Washington Philadelphia Investors 19 

Limited Partnership, who own 70 percent of this 20 

partnership, and our operator, Foxwoods Development 21 

Company, which owns 30 percent.   22 

  Washington Philadelphia Investors brings 23 

together a diverse group of partners, including 24 

prominent Philadelphians Billy King, Gary Maddox, Don 25 
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Stahley and others.  The group includes the Rubin 1 

Family Charitable Foundation, the Silver Family 2 

Charitable Foundation and Ed Snider.  Another name 3 

that may sound familiar on this list, and who we are 4 

fortunate to have here today is music impresario 5 

Quincy Jones.  On the other side, Foxwoods brings its 6 

superior financial strength and world-class management 7 

experience to Philadelphia.   8 

  This combination of successful business 9 

people, community leaders, charities, investors and 10 

management expertise is Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia. 11 

It is this combination that will assure the success of 12 

this casino for the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.   13 

  I’d like to now introduce Gary 14 

Armentrout, Chief Development Officer for Foxwoods 15 

Development company.  Gary has been the conductor, so 16 

to speak, of this application process, as well as the 17 

planning for Foxwoods Casino, Philadelphia.  Gary? 18 

------------------------------------------------------ 19 

GARY ARMENTROUT, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, 20 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 21 

------------------------------------------------------ 22 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 23 

  Thank you very much, Steve.  Mr. 24 

Chairman, members of the Board, for many years, the 25 
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City of Philadelphia has had a vision for the 1 

redevelopment of its riverfront.  Philadelphia’s 2 

vision for a new river city includes the planning and 3 

redevelopment it has already begun, and that’s 4 

anticipated in the future.  It’s planning and 5 

redevelopment that assures public accesses both 6 

physical and visual to the water’s edge, and creates 7 

new links to the river from neighboring communities.  8 

  On the slide in front of you, you can see 9 

our site.  It’s the orange site along the river.  To 10 

the right and below is the sports complex.  To the 11 

left and below, you can make out in orange the 12 

convention center.  And in blue, City Hall.   You can 13 

see that our site is almost equidistant between both 14 

the sports complex and downtown Philadelphia and other 15 

tourist attractions.  On the right, you can see in 16 

green the Walt Whitman Bridge.  And to the left our 17 

site, in purple, the Ben Franklin Bridge.  Our site 18 

lies to the east of Interstate 95, and it’s separated 19 

from the neighboring community by that buffer.   20 

  When Foxwoods entered Pennsylvania and 21 

starting scouting for sites for a possible casino, we 22 

looked all over the state, and ended up coming right 23 

back to this site as one that we decided represented 24 

the best site in the City of Philadelphia.  This site 25 
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is a superior site for a number of reasons.  First of 1 

all, it’s a large site.  It’s 16 and a half acres in 2 

size, large enough to permit the development of a full 3 

facility casino resort entertainment project.   4 

  The site is highly visible, as I pointed 5 

out, from both bridges.  It is, because of its 6 

location between the two bridges, the one that’s most 7 

easily accessible from patrons coming from the New 8 

Jersey side of the river.  It’s located in what 9 

already is a highly-developed commercial area.  It’s 10 

not located in the middle of a residential 11 

neighborhood.  It’s a casino site that has been 12 

regarded and considered as a casino site by many 13 

people for the past ten years.  That was the original 14 

optioned over ten years ago as a potential riverboat 15 

casino site.  As I pointed out earlier, the site lies 16 

in close proximity, but not immediately next to, other 17 

tourist destinations within the City of Philadelphia, 18 

so that a synergy can be created between other tourist 19 

attractions, as well it lies within a close proximity 20 

to the sports complex.   21 

  While our vision for the City, and its 22 

vision for the redevelopment of the riverfront 23 

coincides, as you can see on this slide, our site is 24 

today an overgrown vacant eyesore, with no access to 25 
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the river.  And in fact, the river is physically 1 

chained off from the neighboring communities.  2 

However, where other people see weeds, we see 3 

tremendous possibility.  We see positive riverfront 4 

development opportunity with public access to the 5 

water, as the community has never before seen access 6 

in this part of the neighborhood.  With the granting 7 

of two gaming licenses here in Philadelphia, we 8 

believe there is a unique opportunity for the City to 9 

realize, for the first time, its goal for positive 10 

riverfront redevelopment.  By citing two sites on the 11 

Delaware River, one on the north and one on the south, 12 

the combination of those two sites will anchor 13 

redevelopment and spur economic activity between the 14 

two of them.   15 

  We’re already seeing a number of 16 

condominium projects being proposed. We believe that 17 

by placing two sites on the Delaware River, it will 18 

anchor that redevelopment.  We believe that two 19 

casinos on the riverfront will disperse traffic 20 

between the two.  It will spur other economic 21 

development and other entertainment attractions will 22 

be developed between the two sites.  And Foxwoods 23 

plans to contribute to that, bringing a first class 24 

entertainment facility and regional entertainment 25 
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attraction to the City.  Additionally, the convenient 1 

location and waterfront entertainment area of this 2 

upscale facility will maximize revenues to the 3 

Commonwealth.   4 

  With us today to tell you why he got 5 

involved in Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia, and to 6 

better describe our vision for the redevelopment of 7 

the riverfront and our facility is the all-time most 8 

nominated Grammy award artist, with a total of 76 9 

nominations and 26 awards, and an investor in this 10 

project.  It’s my distinct pleasure at this time to 11 

introduce music legend, Mr. Quincy Jones.   12 

------------------------------------------------------ 13 

QUINCY JONES, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, TESTIFIED 14 

AS FOLLOWS: 15 

------------------------------------------------------ 16 

  MR. JONES: 17 

  Thank you.  Good morning.  I just wanted 18 

to say I feel like I’ve been extraordinarily lucky 19 

throughout my career and blessed to have participated 20 

as producer, arranger, conductor and composer with 21 

probably all of the major artists of the last 50 years 22 

starting with Billie Holiday, Louie Armstrong, Ella 23 

Basie, Duke, Tony Bennett, Frank Sinatra, Ray Charles, 24 

Ray Charles, Aretha Franklin, Michael Jackson, to the 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

29 
 
rappers.  And it’s a great feeling collaborating with 1 

many, many, many talented people and organizations.   2 

  I’m here today to tell you how excited I 3 

am to be a part of this amazing team and part of the 4 

Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia.  I decided to become a 5 

part of this project because it combines a number of 6 

interests that are very, very close to me, music, 7 

entertainment and altruism and philanthropy.  My 8 

foundation takes up 50 percent of my time.  I’m happy 9 

to give this project all of my support because I know 10 

Foxwoods’ track record, and I’m more than confident 11 

that they will bring a first class entertainment 12 

facility to the City of Brotherly Love.   13 

  I have no doubt that Foxwoods Casino 14 

Philadelphia will quickly become a regional 15 

destination attraction.  And you know I’ve been in the 16 

entertainment business for a long --- much longer than 17 

50 years, and I’ve visited just recently in China, all 18 

over China.  I just got appointed to be one of 19 

official advisors and consultants with Spielberg to 20 

the Beijing Olympics Dubai, wherever.  It takes 21 

something pretty spectacular to impress me.  So what 22 

you’re about to see does just that.  Rather than tell 23 

you about how fantastic this project is going to be, 24 

I’d like to show you, and I hope you enjoy the music. 25 
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VIDEO PRESENTATION 1 

  VIDEO VOICEOVER: 2 

  Philadelphia is one of the great port 3 

cities of America, and its future has always been tied 4 

to the strength of its waterfront.  And now, Foxwoods 5 

Casino has envisioned a new landmark project on the 6 

banks of the Delaware, a bustling entertainment and 7 

retail complex with Columbus Boulevard to its west and 8 

the Delaware River on the east, that will bring 9 

unparalleled public access to the waterfront, and a 10 

vast amount of new employment, economic and 11 

entertainment opportunities to the people of 12 

Philadelphia.  Designed by the world-renowned casino 13 

architectural firm, the Friedmutter Group, and managed 14 

by the same people that made Foxwoods Connecticut so 15 

successful, Foxwoods Philadelphia will be a sparkling 16 

top flight facility that will attract people and 17 

businesses back to the waterfront.   18 

  For out-of-town tourists and city 19 

residents alike, the drive down on re-engineered 20 

Columbus Boulevard will reveal the full splendor of 21 

the casino grounds.  Then with an easy turn into the 22 

Casino’s grand entrance, whether you choose the ample 23 

and convenient self-parking facilities, or drive on 24 

for personal valet parking, the warm, inviting 25 
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architecture of the Foxwoods Casino comes clearly into 1 

view.   2 

  With its details of brick, stone and iron 3 

harkening back to the riverfront’s rich heritage as a 4 

thriving port of call, the air of anticipation builds. 5 

A new environment takes shape.  And as you move under 6 

the fast expanse of the casino's porte-cochere covered 7 

entryway, the stage is sent for entering a vibrant, 8 

skylit world of entertainment, gaming, dining, 9 

shopping and of course, the chance to stop a second 10 

and take in the waterfront. 11 

  Walking southward from the connection to 12 

the City’s northern riverfront access, the view opens 13 

up to take in the entire Foxwoods river promenade.  14 

This is where the waterfront comes alive.  Because 15 

with a stroll out from the casino, or along the public 16 

access riverside walk, you travel under the bridgeway 17 

and emerge into a feast of fine restaurants and casual 18 

eateries that feature the best of both local and 19 

international cuisine.  Philadelphia is known for its 20 

people’s diverse backwards, and Foxwoods intends to 21 

reflect that rich and varied history in every part of 22 

what our casino offers.   23 

  The Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia is far 24 

more than just an entertainment attraction.  Because 25 
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like the city in which it hopes to make its home, 1 

Foxwoods offers a rare combination of unmistakable 2 

elegance and easygoing fun and excitement.  We picture 3 

a bright new day for the Delaware River waterfront, 4 

and a sparkling new beacon at night that will become 5 

the next great landmark in the city known for landmark 6 

achievements.  This is Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia. 7 

END OF VIDEO PRESENTATION 8 

  MR. JONES: 9 

  Thank you very much. 10 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 11 

  The video that you’ve just seen 12 

represents our vision for Foxwoods Casino 13 

Philadelphia.  The video is consistent with the plans 14 

that we submitted to this Board back in April.  At 15 

that time, we envisioned a lively, active waterfront 16 

dining and entertainment district that would 17 

incorporate an existing pier of approximately 90,000 18 

square feet.  That’s the drawing that you see before 19 

you.   20 

  However, given the uncertainty over the 21 

use of riparian rights to build over the water, 22 

Foxwoods instructed its civil engineers and its 23 

architects last summer to redesign the riverfront 24 

entertainment district in a way that it can be built 25 
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that without the use of even one square foot of 1 

riparian rights.  The results of this redesign, shown 2 

on the second slide, moved the building back some 80 3 

to 100 feet from its previous location.  But it allows 4 

for the construction of a full entertainment district 5 

on the water’s edge of more than 120,000 square feet 6 

in size.   7 

  With public access from the north, public 8 

access from the south, and public access from the 9 

west, the redesigned riverfront entertainment district 10 

will accommodate all of the same shops, nightclubs, 11 

restaurants and other entertainment venues that the 12 

previous pier design would.  In fact, we gained 13 

approximately 30,000 square feet.   14 

  In short, today Foxwoods has the absolute 15 

ability to build a first class facility, with all of 16 

the room for a casino, for entertainment attractions 17 

and a hotel, as was shown in the video, without the 18 

need for any additional land or any over water 19 

riparian rights.  Neither the construction of our 20 

facility and its entertainment attractions, including 21 

the vibrant riverfront district, nor its financial 22 

success or tax revenues to the Commonwealth is in any 23 

way dependant on our ability to obtain any riparian 24 

rights from the Commonwealth.  25 
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  Further, we instructed our architects to 1 

design this facility so that it would be fully 2 

compliant with all of the requirements of the casino 3 

entertainment district.  The facility that’s designed 4 

has all of the required setbacks, has all of the 5 

height restrictions, all of the landscape requirements 6 

and all of the public access required by the CED.   7 

  However spectacular we believe our site 8 

and our project is, we all recognized early on the 9 

issue of how are people going to get to the site.  We 10 

recognized that there are legitimate traffic concerns 11 

that must be addressed.  And as was pointed out by 12 

Stephen Cunningham in his report, we have addressed 13 

all of those issues.  We have adequately mitigated 14 

those concerns.   15 

  Early on in this project, Foxwoods 16 

Development Company retained the Philadelphia traffic 17 

engineering firm of Orth-Rodgers and Associates.  When 18 

we brought them on, we gave Orth-Rodgers a strict 19 

mandate.  We told them to make traffic on South 20 

Columbus Boulevard flow better than it does today.  We 21 

weren’t satisfied with just coming up with solutions 22 

that would mitigate the additional traffic that we 23 

would bring to Columbus Boulevard.  We spent a great 24 

deal of time studying the situation, talking to 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

35 
 
residents, as well as other experts within the city 1 

and with the state.  We’ve taken on and undertaken the 2 

broadest and most comprehensive traffic analysis of 3 

any of the Applicants to resolve the traffic issues.   4 

  At this time, I would like to introduce 5 

the person responsible for having done all that work, 6 

on behalf of Orth-Rodgers, Mr. Jeff Greene, principal.  7 

------------------------------------------------------ 8 

JEFF GREENE, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, TESTIFIED 9 

AS FOLLOWS: 10 

------------------------------------------------------ 11 

  MR. GREENE: 12 

  Thank you, Gary.  To give you some 13 

further background, we have held a series of community 14 

meetings over the past several months and consistently 15 

we have heard that there are three major problems with 16 

the site.  Traffic, traffic and traffic.  My firm, 17 

Orth-Rodgers and Associates has done prior work in 18 

this area along Columbus Boulevard, and I can tell you 19 

that this is the first time, of all of those other 20 

clients, that I’ve been directed to come up with a 21 

plan as comprehensive as this one.   22 

  Foxwoods has directed us to make traffic 23 

flow better on South Columbus Boulevard better than it 24 

does today.  Better than it does today.  Taking into 25 
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account existing traffic that’s there today, traffic 1 

generated from Foxwoods Casinos, as well as traffic 2 

that is expected to result from other developments in 3 

the area.  Other developments along Columbus Boulevard 4 

such as the condominiums mentioned earlier, or just 5 

developments in the area that you might class as 6 

infield.  7 

  Time and time again we have heard from 8 

members of the community that accept for traffic, they 9 

would support our project.  We understand their 10 

concerns.  In fact, they’re shared concerned.  Let me 11 

talk about that.  In addition to wanting to be a good 12 

neighbor, this is a business issue for Foxwoods. If 13 

casino visitors can’t get into the facility, they’re 14 

not coming back.  And word will spread quickly that 15 

it’s impossible to access the casino.  People will go 16 

elsewhere.   17 

  The bottom line is this.  It is in 18 

Foxwoods’ best interest all around to resolve this 19 

problem.  And we have put measures in place to do just 20 

that.  In fact, we’ve had many conversations with the 21 

City of Philadelphia on the subject of traffic.  They 22 

have provided helpful input, input that we’ve included 23 

in our traffic plan to make conditions better on 24 

Columbus Boulevard than they are today.  In fact, we 25 
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have a letter from the chief engineer and surveyor, 1 

Bob Wright, of the City of Philadelphia, and I’d like 2 

to quote from it.  The recommendations will adequately 3 

address both the community’s concerns and the needs of 4 

the proposed development.  This letter is a part of 5 

the record. 6 

  Let’s talk about the Columbus Boulevard 7 

improvements.  There are nine specific intersections 8 

that will be impacted, some more than others, by our 9 

project.  Working closely with the City and PennDOT, 10 

and using the standards set forth in the Institute of 11 

Transportation Engineers publications, we have come up 12 

with a series of mitigation measures that will reduce 13 

traffic congestion on Columbus Boulevard by 32 14 

percent.   15 

  In the end, our plan addresses and 16 

improves traffic problems at each of the affected 17 

intersections.  We re-establish and update the 18 

coordinated signal system that exists today.  In fact, 19 

when we talked to the City about this, they went out 20 

and did some of the repairs already, but it still 21 

needs additional technology to accommodate the new 22 

traffic patterns.  We’ll be widening a street as it 23 

approaches Columbus Boulevard, constructing double 24 

left turn lanes at two intersections, re-striping 25 
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other intersections, all to enhance traffic flow.  1 

Adding two new traffic signals, one a Dickinson Street 2 

and the other at Morris Street, along South Columbus 3 

Boulevard. 4 

  Now, while these Phase I improvements 5 

will provide sufficient new capacity to meet the 6 

mandate for Phase I, and part of Phase II, to really 7 

do it for Phase II, we need to add another 8 

improvement.  And that is a ramp from the mainline of 9 

south-bound I-95, an off ramp to Dickinson Street that 10 

will connect only to Columbus Boulevard.   11 

  As Steve Cunningham said earlier, that 12 

will make a major improvement by removing traffic from 13 

Columbus Boulevard in the south-bound direction.  And 14 

I’d like to take that one step further.  At several of 15 

our community meetings, we were told that because of 16 

the congestion that exists today on Columbus 17 

Boulevard, traffic is diverting over to Front Street 18 

and Second Street to avoid the congestion.  Those are 19 

residential streets.  We’re adding more capacity, with 20 

that ramp, to Columbus Boulevard, and that will 21 

minimize or perhaps even eliminate that diversion of 22 

traffic.  23 

  Let’s talk about two specific 24 

intersections.  To give you a sense of our approach, I 25 
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wanted to focus on two specific intersections closest 1 

to our site, where drivers today experience the 2 

greatest traffic challenges.  The Washington Avenue 3 

intersection, and the Reed Street intersection.  4 

Rather than have me go through a detailed explanation, 5 

we’ve created a video that really brings to life just 6 

how our mitigation measures alleviate the problems 7 

drivers face in the area.   8 

VIDEO PRESENTATION 9 

  VIDEO VOICEOVER: 10 

  Motorists driving on Columbus Boulevard 11 

from the I-95 ramps to Tasker Street spend much of 12 

their time at a standstill.  Our field data shows that 13 

on average, they spend three minutes and 39 seconds 14 

stopped, waiting for the lights to turn green.  Often 15 

they have to wait through two or more green lights 16 

just to get past one signal.  But with the 17 

improvements Foxwoods will construct, even though the 18 

total number of cars will increase due to the casino, 19 

those long delays will be cut to an average of two 20 

minutes 30 seconds, an 32 percent reduction in wait 21 

time.   22 

  How is this possible?  Through 23 

re-engineering traffic flow.  For example, at the 24 

intersection of Columbus Boulevard and Washington 25 
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Avenue, both the north-bound and eastbound 1 

thoroughfares will feature new double left turn lanes, 2 

with the north-bound lanes highlighted here in level. 3 

 These added lanes will decrease the length of backups 4 

and increase the pace of flow.  Farther south, at the 5 

Reed and Columbus intersection, there are currently 6 

severe bottlenecks caused by cars entering the United 7 

Artists movie theater and Staples parking lot, 8 

particular movie theater peaks.   9 

  However, with the extra turning lanes 10 

planned for Reed Street, again highlighted in yellow, 11 

there will be far less delay than experienced today, 12 

even with the added volume flowing into the Foxwoods 13 

Casino.  In fact, the new improvements will make it 14 

even easier to enter Staples and the movie theater 15 

parking areas under I-95.  Again, the added lanes 16 

decrease backups and increase flow, creating a better 17 

situation for motorists in the future than what 18 

currently exists today. 19 

END OF VIDEO PRESENTATION 20 

  MR. GREENE: 21 

  Again, these are just two examples of the 22 

improvements we plan to make.  And by the way, that 23 

movie theater is a real congestion causer, and our 24 

improvements to the Reed Street intersection will 25 
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address that issue as well.   1 

  In addition to these improvements, 2 

Foxwoods proposes implementing a series of 3 

complementary measures to reduce traffic backups.  Let 4 

me go through some of them.  Implementing changeable 5 

message signage, both on I-95 and on Columbus 6 

Boulevard itself, to direct motorists to the least 7 

congested routes to our site and the other sites along 8 

Columbus Boulevard.  Providing a sufficient lot of 9 

queuing on our site to prevent traffic from spilling 10 

back onto Columbus Boulevard and affecting the 11 

operation on Columbus Boulevard.  Working with SEPTA 12 

and the tour bus operators to reduce the number of 13 

cars coming in and out of our casino.  And one more 14 

comment on that.  We have four bus routes, city 15 

transit routes, that end right at our site.  As part 16 

of our bus management plan, we have a bus station, and 17 

we are making provision for those four routes to 18 

layover and discharge passengers through a covered 19 

walkway that goes right into the casino or into our 20 

employees’ entrance.  Last, providing off site parking 21 

and shuttle service for our employees. 22 

  We believe that this combination of 23 

efforts will appreciably improve traffic conditions 24 

over what they are today.  Over what they are today, 25 
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even with the addition of the traffic generated by the 1 

casino.  Thank you.  Gary? 2 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 3 

  Thank you very much, Jeff.  In your 4 

decision on the award of a gaming license, you’re 5 

going to want to choose an operator that offers the 6 

Commonwealth the best opportunity for success, that 7 

has both the financial strength and the casino 8 

management expertise to come to Pennsylvania, to do 9 

what they say they’re doing to do, to build what they 10 

say they’re going to build, and to manage that slot 11 

casino successfully.  You’re going to want to choose 12 

an operator that has a proven track record, a history 13 

of financial success, financial strength and 14 

successful casino operations experience.  Who better 15 

to speak to Foxwoods history of success than Mr. Bill 16 

Sherlock, CEO of Foxwoods Casino Resort.  Mr. 17 

Sherlock? 18 

------------------------------------------------------ 19 

BILL SHERLOCK, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, TESTIFIED 20 

AS FOLLOWS: 21 

------------------------------------------------------ 22 

  MR. SHERLOCK: 23 

  Thank you, Gary.  Like Sherlock Holmes, 24 

S-H-E-R-L-O-C-K.  Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, thanks 25 
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for seeing us today, and thank you, Gary.  Bottom 1 

line, there are two critical elements which have 2 

enabled Foxwoods to earn its reputation for success in 3 

the gaming industry.  You can see them up there, on 4 

the slide, financial strength and casino management 5 

expertise.  Foxwoods has been built over time into 6 

what it is today.  And those two major elements have 7 

come into play each time that we’ve expanded at the 8 

resort in Connecticut.  We’ve been able to expand and 9 

grow because our disciplined low-risk approach to 10 

ensuring our financial strength, and our extremely 11 

careful attention to the management of our casino 12 

operations. And it is that discipline and attention 13 

that we bring to Foxwoods, that we certainly will 14 

bring to Foxwoods Casino, Philadelphia.   15 

  I’ll talk a little bit about financial 16 

strength.  In terms of financial strength, we are 17 

very, very solid.  We’re on a solid foundation.  18 

Namely, we already own our site on the South Columbus 19 

Boulevard.  The site is not under option.  And we are 20 

prepared to build our project under all the existing 21 

zoning regulations and building codes.  Between the 22 

site and Foxwoods contribution, the partnership has 23 

$100 million dollars in equity committed to this 24 

project.   25 
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  Additionally, and as Gary spoke about it, 1 

we have a stellar credit rating.  Our credit rating, 2 

investment grade bonds, rated by both Standard & 3 

Poor’s and Moody’s, Foxwoods is the only Philadelphia 4 

Applicant in the position to make this claim.  And one 5 

of only three gaming operators in the country who have 6 

achieved this high rating.  We’re very proud of that. 7 

  We’ve had very positive discussions with 8 

financial institutions, including Merrill Lynch and 9 

Bank of America, regarding this project, and have 10 

provided the Board with a commitment letter for 11 

financing from Merrill Lynch.  The bottom line is 12 

Foxwoods is in a position right now, if given a 13 

license, to finance and build this project.  Next 14 

slide, please. 15 

  We’re a class operator.  On the 16 

operations side, we have great experience.  We’ve been 17 

operating since 1992.  That’s 13 years.  We currently 18 

operate a slot floor of over 7,000 slot machines.  19 

Those of you know that this is a 3,000-slot floor.  So 20 

we certainly have the expertise to run and manage 21 

that.  And just on a side note, to tell you that, we 22 

have 3,000 employees who have been with us over ten 23 

years.  In a one-location operation, there’s not as 24 

much room for upward mobility.  And we know that we’re 25 
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going to train --- 95 percent of our employees are 1 

going to be from the greater Philadelphia area.  But 2 

we also know that we have people who, for years, have 3 

wanted to have some upward mobility, who are chomping 4 

at the bit, highly qualified to run our operations.  5 

And this is a great opportunity for them as well.   6 

  So we have great systems, we have great 7 

procedures and techniques that we’ve already developed 8 

since 1992.  And as I stated, even though some of the 9 

supervisors will come from Foxwoods Connecticut, we’re 10 

certainly submitted to hiring and training local 11 

residents.  Next slide. 12 

  The management team.  We certainly 13 

understand that you would like to know that we have 14 

outlined the key positions in this management chart, 15 

and this organizational chart certainly reflects that. 16 

Just to highlight some of they key positions, chief 17 

executive officer, director of surveillance, internal 18 

audit, information technology --- that’s the MIS area 19 

obviously --- slot operations, security and the 20 

financial controller, which controls the slot 21 

accounting systems.  So certainly we’ve got the 22 

organizational chart ready, and we certainly have, as 23 

I said, the expertise to put the most qualified people 24 

in those jobs. 25 
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  So you know, if you add it all together, 1 

our superior financial strength combined with our 2 

superior management expertise, we’re very, very 3 

certain that we can insure the ultimate success for 4 

Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia. 5 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 6 

  Thank you, Bill.  As Bill has indicated, 7 

Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia has made an absolute 8 

commitment to hire and train 95 percent of the 9 

employees here locally.  They will come from the 10 

Greater Philadelphia area.  We have set aside in our 11 

budget $5 million for pre-opening expenses, to cover 12 

the cost of recruiting, employing, training and 13 

diversity outreach for our employees.  We’ve already 14 

had discussions with the Philadelphia OIC about 15 

training, and have committed to utilize them in the 16 

training of our employees. 17 

  We’ve also had discussions with and plan 18 

to partner with the neighborhood organization called 19 

Community Self-Empowerment Employment Program for 20 

employee training purposes, also known as CSEEP.  As a 21 

matter of fact, that partnership has already begun.  22 

In conjunction with CSEEP, we are partnering on this 23 

Saturday to hold Foxwoods' first annual jobs fair.  It 24 

will be held at the Annunciation School in South 25 
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Philadelphia.  This is following an informal session 1 

that we held earlier this summer, to educate the 2 

neighboring communities of the jobs that we will make 3 

available.  In Phase I alone, we will create 950 new, 4 

permanent jobs, and substantially more jobs as the 5 

facility is expanded. 6 

  These jobs are jobs that pay a living 7 

wage with full medical benefits, something that’s rare 8 

in the hospitality industry.  You ask, when is this 9 

project going to begin?  We have already been working 10 

with architects and engineers and consultants in the 11 

design of this project.  We’re prepared, if given the 12 

license, to break ground on this project in February 13 

of 2007.  We anticipate a 22-month build period on a 14 

fast-track design/build basis, such that we’re going 15 

to be able to open this facility in November of 2008. 16 

We intend to open Phase I of the facility with all 17 

3,000 slot machines and all of the food, beverage, 18 

entertainment and parking facilities completed by 19 

opening date. 20 

  We have no intention of opening a 21 

temporary facility.  We believe that opening a 22 

temporary facility with 1,500 slot machines would not 23 

be competitive in this market, given the fact that 24 

there will already be two other slot casinos up and 25 
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operating in Philadelphia.  We believe that a 1 

temporary facility will lack many of the food, 2 

beverage, entertainment and parking amenities that 3 

customers will want.  We believe that in opening a 4 

temporary facility, we’re going to be forced to phase 5 

our construction on our site, and as we phase 6 

construction, it’s going to take more time and become 7 

more costly. 8 

  We believe strongly in the old adage that 9 

you only have one opportunity to make a first 10 

impression, and we don’t want the first impression for 11 

Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia to be a small, cramped, 12 

smoky, temporary facility.  We want to open a facility 13 

full-spread with all of the amenities at the same 14 

time.  We believe that it’s better to have 3,000 15 

machines in 22 months than to have 1,500 machines in 16 

12 months and another 1,500 machines in 36 months. 17 

  We've conducted an extensive analysis of 18 

the impact of a temporary versus a permanent facility, 19 

and we’ve come to the conclusion that first is not 20 

always better, that oftentimes a temporary will lead 21 

to less revenue for the Commonwealth than will 22 

building a full facility fast-track, and our analysis 23 

demonstrates that the Commonwealth is better off in 24 

the amount of about $56 million by our decision not to 25 
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open a temporary, but instead to proceed full speed on 1 

the opening of a permanent facility.   2 

  One of the things that we have taken 3 

very, very seriously in our approach to planning this 4 

slot casino in Philadelphia is our commitment to the 5 

surrounding community.  In addition to improving 6 

traffic problems on South Columbus Boulevard, in 7 

addition to providing local employment and working 8 

with local jobs-training organizations, Foxwoods has 9 

demonstrated its commitment to the community in a 10 

number of ways, first, with respect to publicly 11 

committing to support a special services district.  12 

Foxwoods will contribute to the support and creation 13 

of a special service district made up of the 14 

communities that are most closely impacted by our 15 

project. 16 

  As a good neighbor, we will work in 17 

cooperation with the neighboring communities to 18 

determine the funding levels required, needed to 19 

support a variety of efforts which may include other 20 

traffic mitigation measures, educational programs, 21 

safety and security initiatives, supplemental city 22 

services and other senior citizen programs.  Those 23 

community organizations already exist surrounding our 24 

site.  We’ve gone out and met with a good number of 25 
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them already.  We believe that it’s important for them 1 

to decide for themselves who will be included in the 2 

special services district and how the money that we 3 

will contribute will be spent for their benefit.  We 4 

believe that to be a good neighbor we must make 5 

ourselves part of the community.  That means getting 6 

involved and we plan to do just that.  As a matter of 7 

fact, Mr. David Coskey has been out for the last six 8 

months meeting with local residents, talking to 9 

community groups and listening to what they have to 10 

say.  At this time, I would like to introduce Mr. Dave 11 

Coskey, Community Relations Consultant, and an 12 

important member of the Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia 13 

team.   14 

------------------------------------------------------ 15 

DAVE COSKEY, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, TESTIFIED 16 

AS FOLLOWS: 17 

------------------------------------------------------ 18 

  MR. COSKEY: 19 

  Thank you, Gary.  Good morning.  Soon 20 

after Foxwoods’ application was filed, we began a 21 

series of discussions with members of the South 22 

Philadelphia community.  As you can imagine, there 23 

were a lot of questions about what a casino coming to 24 

the waterfront would mean to the neighborhood.  25 
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Knowing this, we reached out to civic associations, 1 

neighborhood groups, business leaders, even individual 2 

neighbors.  We extended an invitation, and as a result 3 

we’ve had an open dialogue on a range of issues 4 

including traffic mitigation.  When given the 5 

opportunity, we’ve even taken out Jeff Greene, our 6 

traffic engineer, so that he could explain in greater 7 

detail, down to the street, the improvements that 8 

we’ve planned.  After seeing our plan, which is 9 

designed to make traffic better than it is today, a 10 

number of residents who previously opposed our project 11 

solely because of traffic have actually pledged their 12 

support. 13 

  One of the things that we found in our 14 

meetings is that because the site has been vacant for 15 

so long that people are anxious to learn what’s going 16 

to happen here.  We’ve shown them our site plans, our 17 

renderings, and explained how the riverfront will be 18 

open to them in a way that it’s never been open 19 

before.  Right now, it’s hidden behind a chain-link 20 

fence, but in the future, even if they’re not 21 

interested in playing slot machines, this facility can 22 

provide the neighborhood with a waterfront 23 

entertainment district that includes shopping and 24 

restaurants all with access from the entrance of our 25 
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facility and directly to the waterfront. 1 

  Naturally, there are questions about 2 

economic and social impact as well as employment.  3 

Gary has already touched on the jobs that we’ll bring 4 

to the region and how Foxwoods will contribute to the 5 

community on a social level with the special services 6 

district.  These are the same messages that we’ve been 7 

trying to bring to South Philadelphians for the past 8 

eight months.  We’ve been incredibly moved by the 9 

response that we’ve received from many of the people 10 

that we’ve met with. 11 

  One of the issues that’s especially 12 

impressed many residents is the fact that 42 percent 13 

of the profits from this project will go to charitable 14 

causes in the greater Philadelphia area.  You’ll hear 15 

more about this commitment later in our presentation, 16 

but it’s important to point out that many of the 17 

community members that we’ve talked to were intrigued 18 

to learn that this is not just another business 19 

venture for several of our investors.  It’s a way to 20 

give back to Philadelphia. 21 

  We have a short video today that includes 22 

testimonials from a variety of the people that we’ve 23 

met with.  They see opportunity with Foxwoods and they 24 

see the potential for positive economic development in 25 
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the community, but perhaps I should just let them tell 1 

you in their words. 2 

VIDEO PRESENTATION 3 

  FATHER PACITTI: 4 

  I’m Father Gary Pacitti and I’m the 5 

pastor of Annunciation Church at 10th and Dickinson, 6 

less than a mile from here.  South Philly is known for 7 

their strong neighborhoods, and they’re really being 8 

stretched and fragmented and pulled apart.  And you 9 

just can’t hold a neighborhood together without 10 

sufficient jobs.   11 

  MR. TERMINI: 12 

  Hi.  I’m Vince Termini and my father 13 

opened Termini Brothers Bakery in 1921, so we’re here 14 

in South Philadelphia 85 years.  Personally, I’m in 15 

the business 50 years.  What’s good about Foxwoods in 16 

this area is we need jobs.  We need jobs, we need 17 

development along the river.  We need Foxwoods to 18 

return some of their profits into South Philadelphia, 19 

which is needed so desperately.  That’s why I’m for 20 

Foxwoods. 21 

  MR. GIORGIO: 22 

  My name is Daniel Giorgio.  I was born 23 

and raised around 9th and Snyder, which is Epiphany 24 

Parish.  I’m 50 years old, born and raised right from 25 
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the neighborhood.  I feel that by Foxwoods coming here 1 

there’s going to be hundreds, if not thousands, of 2 

jobs that are going to be right here in the community. 3 

People are going to be able to work blocks away from 4 

their house and I’m just a hundred percent with that. 5 

  MS. BRINO: 6 

  In the meeting with Foxwoods, they were 7 

telling us about their interest in coming here and to 8 

bring a casino and that it would be a good thing.  And 9 

they talked about the traffic on Delaware Avenue, 10 

which is kind of bad and they said they would take 11 

care of all that.  They rode the street, they know 12 

where --- you know, what to do, and they also said 13 

they’d have plenty of jobs for people here.  And the 14 

thing that got me the most is they said that they’re 15 

going to give back to the community. 16 

  MR. BROWN: 17 

  We are in a situation where a lot of 18 

people are --- at least in my community and my 19 

neighborhood, are unemployed or under-employed, and 20 

the notion that maybe there might be a chance to have 21 

a work opportunity where you can make a living wage 22 

within walking distance is pretty spectacular.  Which 23 

means they’ll get exercise, which means that they’ll 24 

be on the street, so in a sense it’s going to add a 25 
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town watch without the need for people, you know, 1 

keeping their eyes and ears on the neighbors, so to 2 

speak.  So it’s just a --- it’s a win/win in that 3 

respect. 4 

  FATHER PACITTI: 5 

  I spent a lot of time down here as a kid 6 

and now, obviously, I live here.  I’m a resident for 7 

four years in the area, and we desperately need jobs 8 

in Philadelphia.  There’s been a lot of talk and we’ve 9 

focused on --- we’ve had all kinds of meetings about 10 

the crime in the area.  I’ve met with politicians, 11 

with different religious leaders, and one of the 12 

things that everybody says feeds the crime is poverty, 13 

under-employed people.  We desperately need jobs.  14 

We’re a church, again, very close to here.  We 15 

constantly, constantly, get people who are in need, 16 

not just our parishioners, our school parents, people 17 

in the neighborhood who have no affiliation with us. 18 

We have a huge elder population that is in great need 19 

and they’re neglected.  There are so many needs down 20 

here, but jobs would be a big thing.  Another thing is 21 

just positive waterfront development.  It’s an eyesore 22 

down here and it would be great for the waterfront, in 23 

developing the waterfront. 24 

  MS. BRINO: 25 
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  I do go to Atlantic City and so do a lot 1 

of people in Philadelphia, and there are people that 2 

are opposed to it and it bothers me to say --- they’re 3 

saying not in their back yard, but they’re going to 4 

Atlantic City in somebody else’s back yard.  I say 5 

bring it here, you know.  Let us have the money.  If 6 

we’re going to benefit from it, yes.  Give it to us. 7 

  MR. GIORGIO: 8 

  And I believe by having this beautiful 9 

casino coming here, it’ll liven this whole are up and 10 

I think Philadelphia is ready for a change. 11 

END OF VIDEO PRESENTATION 12 

  MR. COSKEY: 13 

  Many of these same people have been very 14 

helpful in spreading the word about the opportunities 15 

that our facility will bring to the neighborhood.  16 

We’ve also received written support from the 17 

community, from individuals, business leaders, 18 

organizations, people who welcome Foxwoods.  We’ve 19 

submitted these letters for your review.  No doubt 20 

you’ve heard or read words of a vocal minority who 21 

oppose our facility.  Many of these people have made 22 

judgments about our project without accurate 23 

information.  We’ve extended invitations to meet and 24 

explain our plans to all neighbors, and that 25 
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invitation remains open.  Foxwoods has a history of 1 

being a good neighbor and doing what they say they’re 2 

going to do in the neighborhood.  Here’s what some of 3 

our neighbors in Connecticut, people who live and work 4 

with us every day, have to say about Foxwoods. 5 

VIDEOTAPE PRESENTATION 6 

  MR. DOHERTY: 7 

  Foxwoods is a good corporate citizen 8 

because it does a lot, in my opinion, for a lot of 9 

non-profits.  I mean, they’re involved with workplace 10 

giving for the United Way, which, you know, gives a 11 

lot of revenue to local charities in southeastern 12 

Connecticut.  It's also given a lot of money to 13 

community health charities, you know, representatives 14 

like the American Cancer Society, Lymphoma, the 15 

American Heart Association, all these great        16 

non-profits that do a lot of work not only in 17 

southeastern Connecticut, but also throughout the 18 

entire state. 19 

  MR. SHERIDAN: 20 

  They’re very active in the Chamber.  21 

They’re actually good corporate citizens.  There’s no 22 

other way to describe it except anything that’s 23 

needed, any support that the community has needed --- 24 

when the submarine base was threatened by being placed 25 
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on the BRAC list and the Mashantucket Pequot Tribal 1 

Nation provided whatever buses we need, whatever 2 

financial support we need, and as a result in large 3 

measure to their involvement and their support, we 4 

were able to get the submarine base off the closure 5 

list. 6 

  MR. LATHROP: 7 

  The Mashantucket Pequot Tribe has made 8 

significant investments in Norwich.  The building 9 

behind me is a $20 million office building that 10 

brought 250 jobs to Norwich.  In addition, the tribe 11 

has donated generously to the building of Dodd Stadium 12 

and the rebuilding of our Otis Library, the municipal 13 

library here in town, and has invested in a laundry 14 

facility that employs over 125 people.   15 

  MR. JENNINGS: 16 

  Tourism in southeastern Connecticut ranks 17 

number one in the State of Connecticut.  It’s more 18 

than 40 percent of all of the state tourism business 19 

and visitation comes to the southeastern Connecticut 20 

region due in large part, obviously, to the casino. 21 

  MS. SIMPSON: 22 

  And we saw growth.  We saw growth 23 

primarily in terms of our hotel rooms because people 24 

wanted to stay, they wanted to do more than just the 25 
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casinos, and it’s changed the area in that it’s given 1 

us opportunity.  We have both sides of the coin now. 2 

  MR. SHERIDAN: 3 

  Sure.  There’s additional traffic, 4 

there’s no question about that, but the way the tribal 5 

--- the Foxwoods Mashantucket Pequot stepped up to the 6 

plate was unprecedented in Connecticut.  Unlike any 7 

other business I know of, the Mashantucket Pequot 8 

stepped up to the plate and spent millions of road 9 

reconstruction, road building, mitigating the impact 10 

on the communities to an enormous degree.   11 

  MR. LATHROP: 12 

  I’ve had nothing but positive 13 

relationships with the tribe.  I find them open, 14 

accessible, sympathetic to the city’s problems.  We 15 

have good personal and professional relationships. 16 

  MR. SHERIDAN: 17 

  The tribe has contributed $2.3 billion to 18 

the state of Connecticut.  They’re one of our largest 19 

employers in the area, and the economic ripple effect 20 

from the other associated businesses is enormous and 21 

contributes enormously to our economic well-being. 22 

VIDEO PRESENTATION ENDS 23 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 24 

  Thank you very much, Dave.  You have 25 
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heard us talk about Foxwoods philosophy of being a 1 

good neighbor and of giving back to the community 2 

where we do business.  You’ve seen the testimonials 3 

that support the fact that we do practice what we 4 

preach.  We intend to bring that same philosophy of 5 

giving back to the community to Philadelphia, but what 6 

truly sets our application apart from everyone else 7 

applying for a slot license in Philadelphia is the 8 

extraordinary level of commitment that our local 9 

partners have made to give back to the community, such 10 

a large portion of the profits of this proposed casino 11 

operation.  To speak to that, I would like at this 12 

time to introduce Mr. A.J. Agarwal, trustee of the 13 

Silver Family Foundation. 14 

------------------------------------------------------ 15 

A. J. AGARWAL, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, TESTIFIED 16 

AS FOLLOWS: 17 

------------------------------------------------------ 18 

  MR. AGARWAL: 19 

  Good morning.  Those small samplings of 20 

testimonials that we saw on this screen a moment ago 21 

support the fact that in addition to being one of the 22 

best casino operators in the industry, Foxwoods 23 

practices a philosophy of giving back to the 24 

community, but as Gary said what sets this project 25 
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apart from the other casino projects proposed for 1 

Philadelphia and what truly makes it unique in the 2 

gaming industry is the level of ownership in our 3 

partnership held by charitable foundations.  As the 4 

notion of gaming in Pennsylvania progressed from 5 

concept to reality, several members of Washington 6 

Partners saw past the obvious business opportunity.  7 

They saw a unique way to establish a funding mechanism 8 

that would channel millions of dollars to underserved 9 

people in our region.  Toward that end, the lead local 10 

partners in Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia, which 11 

include the Rubin Family Charitable Foundation, the 12 

Silver Family Charitable Trust and Ed Snider, have 13 

irrevocably committed 100 percent of their profits, 14 

which account for 42 percent of the entire project's 15 

profits to charitable causes in perpetuity.  The 16 

primary focus of this charitable giving will be to 17 

support underprivileged children in the Philadelphia 18 

area and South Jersey.  These profits include profits 19 

not only from the gaming operation, but also from 20 

restaurant, retail and hotel development at this site. 21 

The amount is projected to total in excess of $300 22 

million over ten years.  As a group, the local 23 

partners could not let this moment and opportunity to 24 

do more for the underserved people in southern Jersey 25 
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and Philadelphia pass us by.  Thank you.   1 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 2 

  Thank you, A.J.  As I’m sure the staff 3 

has told you, this commitment on the part of the 4 

charitable foundations is not simply a naked pledge, 5 

it’s not a promise, but it’s, in fact, 42 percent of 6 

the equity ownership of this project is held by these 7 

charitable foundations.  I have been working in the 8 

gaming industry and developing hotel casinos 9 

throughout the United States for about 27 years, and 10 

I’ve got to tell you that this level of ownership, 11 

actual ownership, in a casino by charitable 12 

foundations is unprecedented in the industry in the 13 

United States. 14 

  On behalf of Foxwoods, I can tell you 15 

that it was this commitment from our local partners 16 

that heavily influenced Foxwoods' decision to become a 17 

part of this project.  Another critical issue of 18 

importance to this Board and to Foxwoods is the issue 19 

of diversity.  It’s an integral component of our way 20 

of thinking and our way of doing business.  Who better 21 

to speak to the issue of diversity than Foxwoods' 22 

Tribal Council chairman, Mr. Michael Thomas, and I’d 23 

like to introduce at this time Chairman Thomas. 24 

------------------------------------------------------ 25 
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MICHAEL THOMAS, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, 1 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 2 

------------------------------------------------------ 3 

  CHAIRMAN THOMAS: 4 

  Thank you, Gary.  Good morning.  Our 5 

commitment to diversity is a piece of our core.  We 6 

understand that diversity is truly about inclusion.  7 

We are people who have historically come from 8 

frontline positions to the ownership roles that we’re 9 

fortunate enough to occupy today, and so we’ve been on 10 

the short end of the stick, historically speaking, as 11 

Mashantucket Pequot people when it comes to the 12 

opportunities that major development provide or should 13 

provide for underserved communities.  And you should 14 

be certain that we’ll be as diligent as anyone you’ve 15 

ever seen to ensure that the distribution of those 16 

jobs is one that presents the diversity that is 17 

essential for leading our values and also essential 18 

for pure business reasons, for customer service 19 

reasons.  We will both through construction and 20 

operating phases of this project, show a true 21 

commitment to diversity not just in terms of meeting 22 

requirements, but in terms of presenting two people 23 

opportunities they have been denied for altogether too 24 

long from the uniquely Mashantucket Pequot 25 
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perspective.   1 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 2 

  Thank you very much, Chairman.  As part 3 

of our application, we have filed a detailed diversity 4 

plan with this Board.  This detailed diversity plan 5 

addresses and covers our outreach obligations to 6 

employees, subcontractors, contractors, assignees, 7 

agents, vendors and suppliers and we’re prepared to 8 

answer any questions today with respect to our 9 

diversity plan. 10 

  In conclusion, I would submit to this 11 

Board that Foxwoods has indeed met its burden, that we 12 

have presented to you today the strongest application 13 

for a casino slot license in Philadelphia of any 14 

application that you’ve received.  It’s an application 15 

that contains what I believe are four critical 16 

components. 17 

  Number one, a superior site that we 18 

already own, a proven successful operator with a 19 

history of world-class financial strength and 20 

operations, the strongest financial partnership 21 

between the strength of our local partners and the 22 

strength of Foxwoods Resort Casino in Connecticut and 23 

lastly, the giving back to the community the greatest 24 

percentage of our revenues and our profits through 25 
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both support of a special services district as well as 1 

of the charitable foundations' actual ownership that 2 

we’ve spoken of.  Foxwoods Casino Philadelphia 3 

represents a sure bet for Philadelphia and for the 4 

Commonwealth.  Thank you.   5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 6 

  Thank you very much.  We’re going to take 7 

a very short break, 10 minutes, and we’ll be back.  8 

Okay? 9 

SHORT BREAK TAKEN 10 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 11 

  I’ve been asked to remind everyone that 12 

the rules of the auditorium are there’s not supposed 13 

to be any food or drink in the auditorium.  I think 14 

they gave us an exception up here and for the 15 

speakers, but that’s just the rule.  It’s not our 16 

rules, it’s the rules of the auditorium and they’ve 17 

been kind --- the organization has been kind enough to 18 

give us this facility for these hearings, so I would 19 

hope everyone would respect that and continue to be 20 

polite and courteous towards the people around you.  21 

Thank you.   22 

  Well, we’re now into the portion where 23 

we’re going to ask some questions and maybe I could 24 

start by asking how do the voting rights work in your 25 
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organization and how do the profits flow vis-à-vis --- 1 

we have an organizational chart, we have an equity 2 

interest chart, but that doesn’t necessarily mean 3 

that’s where the profits or the voting rights go, so 4 

if you could --- if somebody could explain that to us, 5 

that would be helpful. 6 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 7 

  Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.  I 8 

think the person most qualified to speak to that 9 

question is Mr. Ira Gubernick, an attorney with Klehr 10 

Harrison who’s Counsel for Washington and Philadelphia 11 

investors and has been involved in this organization 12 

since the very beginning. 13 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 14 

  Thank you.  The partnership itself is 15 

Philadelphia Entertainment and Development Partners, 16 

LP.  There is one general partner that’s controlled 17 

solely by Foxwoods Development Company and that 18 

general partner has the right to make all operational 19 

decisions except for what’s classified as major 20 

decisions in the limited partnership agreement, which 21 

also require the consent of our partnership. 22 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 23 

  What about in the casino side of the 24 

operations?  I mean, you own 70 percent and that 25 
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includes all the casino operations as well or is there 1 

a management contract or how does this work? 2 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 3 

  There’s a management contract, so that 4 

their --- Foxwoods is the manager of the casino 5 

project.  But there is no management fee paid for the 6 

first ten years. 7 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 8 

  Okay.  And it’s strictly through the 9 

equity --- okay.  And the profits --- let me change. 10 

So the voting rights are as we see them, 70/30; 11 

correct? 12 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 13 

  The voting rights are 70/30. 14 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 15 

  Is there any super majority provisions in 16 

that? 17 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 18 

  The general partner, --- 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 20 

  Right. 21 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 22 

  --- which is Foxwoods, makes all 23 

decisions --- 24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 25 
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  Oh, Foxwoods.  Okay.  Sorry. 1 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 2 

  --- except for things that require 3 

limited partner consent, --- 4 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 5 

  Yes. 6 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 7 

  --- which would be us. 8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  I understand. 10 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 11 

  And there’s a list of those in the 12 

limited partnership agreement. 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  Okay.  All right.  And profits flow down 15 

through the limited partnership? 16 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 17 

  70/30. 18 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 19 

  70/30.  Okay.  Very good.  Thank you. 20 

  MS. COLINS: 21 

  May I? 22 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 23 

  Please. 24 

  MS. COLINS: 25 
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  Since the general partner is Foxwoods and 1 

makes all of the decisions, management decisions, in 2 

order to be licensed under out statute, would Foxwoods 3 

agree to waive its sovereign immunity so that we, in 4 

fact, are able to enforce pursuant to the statute? 5 

  ATTORNEY SCHRIER: 6 

  I’m probably best suited to answer that, 7 

Commissioner.  The entities that will be operating and 8 

managing this facility are legally created entities in 9 

the state of Pennsylvania, so they are, of course, 10 

subject to all Pennsylvania laws.  Perhaps your 11 

question was going to the ultimate parent or the 12 

tribe, of those entities? 13 

  MS. COLINS: 14 

  Yes. 15 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 16 

  And in that regard, we have worked with 17 

staff.  We’ve had an opportunity to review the 18 

sovereign immunity provisions contained in the 19 

statement of conditions that another Applicant, Pocono 20 

Downs, has agreed to.  And we’ve also had an 21 

opportunity to review the Tribal Council resolution in 22 

that proceeding.  We have not been provided with exact 23 

language in that regard, but we have spoken with the 24 

Mashantucket Pequot Tribal Nation through Chairman 25 
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Thomas as well, and we agree in principle certainly to 1 

those same provisions and would enter into those same 2 

provisions that you have already requested and 3 

received from Pocono Downs. 4 

  MS. COLINS: 5 

  Thank you. 6 

  MR. ANGELI: 7 

  Back to the issue of the revenue that’s 8 

going to be disbursed to the Foundation, the 42 9 

percent.  How do you plan on distributing that revenue 10 

among the community groups and in the general areas 11 

and who’s going to be in charge of where the money 12 

goes and who gets it and how does it work? 13 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 14 

  It’s primarily three different entities, 15 

so there’s the Rubin Family Charitable Trust, the 16 

Silver Family Charitable Trust and Ed Snider.  Each of 17 

those three separate entities has the right to decide 18 

where those monies go.  And there’s one trustee, 19 

George Rubin, for the Rubin Family Charitable Trust. 20 

There are two trustees, Rabbi Krupnick and A.J. 21 

Agarwal, for the Silver Family Charitable Trust and Ed 22 

Snider holds his interests personally. 23 

  MR. ANGELI: 24 

  Okay.  There’s no one, single local 25 
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entity that you’re going to --- that you’re working 1 

with.  You’re going to just pick and choose who ---. 2 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 3 

  That’s right.  Each trust documented --- 4 

and also they’re all part of a partnership.  It’s 5 

called Washington Partners Community Charities, LP, 6 

and the partnership agreement itself and each of the 7 

trust documents for the Rubin and Silver Foundations 8 

provide their charitable causes and purposes. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  Excuse me.  These are charitable trusts; 11 

correct?  That’s their sole purpose; correct? 12 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 13 

  That’s the sole purpose for perpetuity. 14 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 15 

  I think the question was, what about Mr. 16 

Snider’s interest? 17 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 18 

  He holds it directly today. 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 20 

  Right. 21 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 22 

  It may go into a trust in the future, but 23 

he’s part of a partnership, and that partnership 24 

document provides all the money must be used for 25 
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charitable purposes. 1 

  MR. MARSHALL: 2 

  And in the event of sale as well? 3 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 4 

  In the event of sale as well.  What would 5 

happen then, the corpus would be in place for 6 

charitable purposes. 7 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 8 

  Okay.  Thank you.  9 

  MR. MARSHALL: 10 

  On page --- well, my understanding of the 11 

record is that these three, either the trust and Mr. 12 

Snider made the initial capital contribution into the 13 

arrangement, so we have a listing of the limited 14 

partnership, the initial capital --- somebody had to 15 

fund their interest. 16 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 17 

  That’s correct. 18 

  MR. MARSHALL: 19 

  So they have also --- I mean, that’s --- 20 

their first act of charity is funding ---. 21 

  MS. COLINS: 22 

  But in the event of sale, do the proceeds 23 

of the sale flow into the charitable trusts? 24 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 25 
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  To the extent there’s profits. 1 

  MS. COLINS: 2 

  Okay.  Thank you. 3 

  ATTORNEY GUBERNICK: 4 

  To the extent --- above their expenses, 5 

it would flow into the charitable trusts. 6 

  MS. COLINS: 7 

  Okay.  Thank you.   8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  Jeff? 10 

  MR. COY: 11 

  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  With regard to 12 

the contributions to community organizations and so 13 

on, then there’s no community involvement on the 14 

decisions there or would there be? 15 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 16 

  I think quite the opposite.  It’s our 17 

intention to go out and reach out to the local 18 

community groups and assist them in forming a special 19 

services district patterned after the special services 20 

district that was formed several years ago in 21 

connection with the sports complex.  And they will put 22 

local community members on the Board of directors of 23 

that special services district and they will decide 24 

where the monies are best utilized.   25 
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  MR. COY: 1 

  And they would have the final decision in 2 

that regard? 3 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 4 

  As far as I’m concerned, yes.   5 

  MR. COY: 6 

  I was interested in your part of the 7 

presentation where you talked about addressing some of 8 

the unemployment and underemployment needs of the 9 

area, and I guess I’m concerned how you will 10 

affirmatively approach that.  Do you have a plan for  11 

--- I know you seem to recognize the need.  How do you 12 

plan to address it? 13 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 14 

  Well, first off, we’ve already begun 15 

addressing it by scheduling our first jobs fair next 16 

Saturday which has been widely advertised in the local 17 

paper and in posters throughout the surrounding 18 

communities.  At that jobs fair, we’re going to have 19 

representatives from Foxwoods in the various 20 

departments where we know we’re going to need 21 

employees for this project.  They’ll be there to talk 22 

to Applicants, to describe what it’s like to work in 23 

the casino and to give them an appreciation for the 24 

training that will be required for them to assume some 25 
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of these positions.  We’ve already met with the OIC 1 

and CSEEP and have arranged partnership with them 2 

where we will work through those community agencies to 3 

actually conduct the training.  We’ve earmarked 4 

approximately $5 million of our pre-opening budget for 5 

that purpose. 6 

  MR. COY: 7 

  And I suspect you have found your past 8 

experiences in other locations to operate the same way 9 

and help you with that? 10 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 11 

  Oh, yes, of course.  I have been involved 12 

in opening casino projects in several jurisdictions 13 

where there isn’t already a trained labor force for a 14 

casino.  And so part of the training process is to 15 

find the Applicants that possess what I call a 16 

hospitality mentality.  If they have a hospitality 17 

mentality, we can train them in all of the skills 18 

required to perform the jobs that they’re fulfilling. 19 

  MR. COY: 20 

  Okay.  Thank you.  Maybe I missed this, 21 

but I know you said that you could start construction 22 

in March of ’07.  Did you indicate when you would be 23 

open for business on that same schedule? 24 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 25 
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  Yes.  When I indicated starting 1 

construction, I mean at that point in time we’re going 2 

to be breaking ground.  The first part of our work is 3 

going to be setting pilings because the site has a 4 

high water table and it’s going to require significant 5 

pilings to support the facility that we designed.  Our 6 

opening date is scheduled for November of 2008.  It’s 7 

approximately a 22-month build cycle.   8 

  MR. COY: 9 

  I was interested in the --- I think part 10 

of the film presentation there was a remark about the 11 

fact that gave, I think, Foxwoods credit for stopping 12 

the closure of a military base in Connecticut; is that 13 

correct? 14 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 15 

  Well, I’ve heard that and there’s people 16 

here from Connecticut that can speak to that better 17 

than I. 18 

  MR. COY: 19 

  I guess I’m wondering how you did that. 20 

Was that through political influence or how was that 21 

accomplished? 22 

  CHAIRMAN THOMAS: 23 

  Our effort to assist in keeping our sub 24 

base from being closed was initiated at the request of 25 
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Governor Rell.  She asked a number of business leaders 1 

in Connecticut to meet with her and to help to fight 2 

this BRAC closure.  At that point in time, we 3 

committed financial support, some community       4 

grass-roots support in terms of the bussing that you 5 

heard people refer to, and keeping people fed and 6 

watered, so to speak, on the way down to Washington 7 

and back, in addition to the political help.  We are 8 

fortunate to have many Washington relationships and we 9 

used them fully to help in that effort and ultimately, 10 

as a team, the corporate citizens of Connecticut were 11 

successful. 12 

  MR. COY: 13 

  Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 14 

  MR. MCCABE: 15 

  Thank you.  I have a question about 16 

traffic.  Have you taken into consideration in your 17 

mitigation plans if there are two casinos located 18 

along that same boulevard?  We’ve seen reports of 19 

anywhere from 800-some-odd new trips up to 1,400 new 20 

trips a day and they could all be along that corridor 21 

there. 22 

  MR. GREENE: 23 

  Yes, we have, in effect.  That’s the 24 

exact same question that Gary had asked me to work on 25 
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a number of months ago.  The two --- the three 1 

candidates that are to the north along the river are 2 

north of the Ben Franklin Bridge and their access to 3 

I-95 is very different from ours.  Very little of that 4 

traffic will travel south of the bridge.  It’ll use   5 

--- it’ll access the expressway system either up north 6 

at the Girard Avenue Interchange or through the 7 

complex of streets that serves the Vine Street 8 

Expressway and I-95 interchange complex north of the 9 

bridge, those local streets up there, to go over to 10 

Callowhill Street and then you follow the signs to get 11 

to the street that you want to go.  We have a totally 12 

different traffic shed.  Ours is south of the bridge 13 

and our ramps start with the Lombard Circle ramp to  14 

I-95 North and then the double slide under at 676, the 15 

north-bound ramp coming to Columbus Boulevard just 16 

north of Reed, the on ramp at Morris Street to go 17 

south and then of course the Walt Whitman Bridge 18 

interchange where we’ll get some of the traffic, you 19 

know, coming north. 20 

  MR. MCCABE: 21 

  Now, along the lines with the traffic, 22 

Gary, you said something about off site parking for 23 

your employees.  Is there going to be actually an off 24 

site location for you to have employees park or are 25 
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they going to park on your acreage there? 1 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 2 

  No.  Under our existing plan for Phase I, 3 

we’re going to build a parking garage well in excess 4 

of what some of our advisors have told us we believe 5 

is absolutely necessary for our casino operation.  The 6 

first phase will be a parking garage of 4,200 spaces 7 

and we'll have in addition to that about 300 surface 8 

parking spaces.  The first phase, we intend to park 9 

our employees on site.   10 

  MR. MCCABE: 11 

  Just shifting subjects, I haven’t heard 12 

anything about problem gambling, self exclusion and 13 

training your employees to identify those problems.  14 

Could you go into that a little bit, please? 15 

  CHAIRMAN THOMAS: 16 

  Certainly.  It’s important that you know 17 

that the same set of values that I referred to in 18 

earlier testimony has driven our approach to 19 

compulsive gambling from moment one.  We are founding 20 

members of the Connecticut Council on Compulsive 21 

Gambling.  Marvin Steinberg is the name of the 22 

wonderful gentleman that’s been running that 23 

organization since its inception in 1992.  We provided 24 

the full operational funding for the first several 25 
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years of that Council’s efforts and still today 1 

provide some piece of their annual funding, now that 2 

they’re generated support from other places.  But we 3 

would bring that same approach to compulsive gambling 4 

issues here in Philadelphia.   5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 6 

  Thank you.  Go ahead, please, Sandy. 7 

  MR. RIVERS: 8 

  Mr. Chairman, my question deals with 9 

employment.  You made reference to the fact that there 10 

are going to be approximately 950 jobs at the 11 

completion of Phase I.  I’m always concerned about --- 12 

when we talk about jobs, the types of jobs, or more 13 

importantly are we talking about middle management 14 

jobs, upper management jobs or lower-paying jobs? 15 

  CHAIRMAN THOMAS: 16 

  We’re actually talking about a mixture of 17 

all of those things.  To the extent that the training 18 

can be made available during the construction period, 19 

there will be Philadelphia residents qualified for 20 

some of those middle management positions and 21 

obviously frontline positions by the time this 22 

facility opens. 23 

  MR. RIVERS: 24 

  Is a part of the training process --- I 25 
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think I heard you make reference to the fact that you 1 

would be bringing people from Connecticut to 2 

Philadelphia for training and/or advanced 3 

opportunities. 4 

  CHAIRMAN THOMAS: 5 

  Yes. 6 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 7 

  But are you going to create opportunities 8 

for people from Philadelphia to go to Connecticut to 9 

get the training so that they can come back and be 10 

considered for some of these upper level position? 11 

  CHAIRMAN THOMAS: 12 

  Yes.  It is a combination of the two.  13 

There is some of that training that you should be in 14 

Connecticut for.  The majority of it, frankly, we can 15 

deliver to folks right here in Philadelphia.  It’s 16 

important to note that in establishing our gaming 17 

enterprise in the first place, we hit not only a 18 

workforce that was not tourism-based, but a workforce 19 

that was defense-industry based.  And so we have from 20 

an even further-away foundation, I’ll say, developed a 21 

highly skilled workforce through our own training 22 

programs. 23 

  MR. RIVERS: 24 

  And you’ve talked about partnering with 25 
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different agencies within the Philadelphia area.  1 

Given the fact that Philadelphia has some fine 2 

educational institutions, have you thought --- have 3 

you given thought to doing a recruitment trip to 4 

entice some of those young graduates to stay in 5 

Philadelphia and to get involved in the gaming 6 

industry? 7 

  CHAIRMAN THOMAS: 8 

  We haven’t talked about that, but it’s 9 

certainly an excellent idea.  We do have some existing 10 

relationships with some of the schools here in the 11 

Greater Philadelphia area that would serve as great 12 

places to start with such an effort.  That is, 13 

frankly, a problem for Philadelphia and many other 14 

urban areas.  We have been helpful in Hartford’s 15 

flight of young, highly-talented graduates, for 16 

instance.  So we haven’t discussed it as of yet, but 17 

we have done such things in other areas and I’m 18 

certain that we would here in Philadelphia as well. 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 20 

  Thank you.  Mary? 21 

  MS. COLINS: 22 

  Mr. Chairman, I have a question, I 23 

believe for Mr. Greene, if I could.  It’s a traffic 24 

question.  Mr. Greene, I suppose that the neighbors, 25 
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the residents of the neighborhoods around the proposed 1 

casino site probably are concerned about overflow of 2 

traffic into the local streets, not just Delaware 3 

Avenue, not just Washington Avenue, but the overflow 4 

into the neighborhood streets.  Would you please tell 5 

us if your plan addresses that and if it does, be 6 

specific as to how it will minimize that traffic 7 

overflow into neighborhoods.   8 

  MR. GREENE: 9 

  Specifically, the Phase II ramp that I 10 

talked about will reduce the north/south pressure.  11 

The pressure going east/west is a different story.  It 12 

will come from a number of areas.  First, people who 13 

live there coming over to our facility, just folks in 14 

the neighborhood who want to take advantage of the 15 

facility, and second, customers of the facility who 16 

want to experience South Philadelphia. 17 

  The way we’ve decided to handle that is 18 

through the special services district.  You saw on the 19 

slide traffic mitigation was the number one element of 20 

our agenda for the special services district.  Because 21 

we don’t know exactly where those folks are going to 22 

go or even come from or what the specific problems 23 

are, because as you’ve said, there’s many 24 

intersections and many locations that might be 25 
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impacted.  We wanted the opportunity to discuss that 1 

with the community groups and maybe even the special 2 

services district and then take specific actions to 3 

address it, actions such as traffic calming, where we 4 

might install multi-way stops or raised intersections 5 

to affect the --- you know, to reduce the speeding 6 

should there be any.  Maybe parking lots in the 7 

community, because one of the problems in South 8 

Philadelphia is there just enough places to park in 9 

the neighborhoods and there’s just overflow parking 10 

everywhere.  We don’t know all the problems because 11 

they’re so localized and we need a lot more 12 

coordination, but we are committed to the special 13 

services district the outside, and we’re trying to 14 

compile a list as we meet with the community groups 15 

now so that we’re prepared and come up with a specific 16 

plan. 17 

  MS. COLINS: 18 

  Thank you. 19 

  MR. MCCABE: 20 

  The I-95 ramp, who’s going to pay for 21 

that and will that ramp displace any existing homes or 22 

people? 23 

  MR. GREENE: 24 

  Let me answer the part I can talk to and 25 
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then Gary will answer the second part.  It doesn’t 1 

require any right-of-way acquisition.  The entire ramp 2 

can be constructed in public right-of-way as it sits 3 

today.  As it comes down from I-95, which is 25 feet 4 

up in the air, and crosses over Reed Street, it comes 5 

down along the side of a parking lot under I-95 and 6 

over top the north-bound lanes of Front Street.  Those 7 

north-bound lanes would be shifted slightly westward 8 

to maintain a two-way street, then the ramp would turn 9 

directly into Dickinson Street so the traffic would be 10 

expressed away from Front Street directly to Columbus 11 

Boulevard.  In that way, the neighborhood is protected 12 

from increased traffic, and that’s one of the issues 13 

from the consent decree from a number of years ago.   14 

  MR. MCCABE: 15 

  Thank you.  Mr. Chairman? 16 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 17 

  With respect to the funding portion of 18 

the question, I’d like to make it clear that for Phase 19 

I of the project that we propose now, the traffic 20 

mitigation measures, such as street-widening, 21 

signalization, turn lanes and the like that Mr. Jeff 22 

Greene has described, is all that’s going to be 23 

required for Phase I, and we’re committed to fund a 24 

hundred percent of those traffic mitigation measures. 25 
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We don’t get to the need for the ramp until we get to 1 

Phase II of our project, and with Phase II of the 2 

project we’ve begun exploring funding mechanisms for 3 

that ramp.  And I’ve got to tell you, they’re 4 

extremely complex because it involves the federal 5 

government, the state government, the local government 6 

and Foxwoods.  And we’re committed to fund our fair 7 

share of that ramp expense. 8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  Chip? 10 

  MR. MARSHALL: 11 

  Mr. Chairman, thank you.  Just a couple 12 

of things to go on the record and then I have a 13 

question for Denyse Miskin.  Back to the riparian 14 

rights, if for some reason you were able to get the 15 

riparian rights that were a part of the original plan 16 

in a timely manner, would you go back to that plan or 17 

have you now shifted completely to the plan you put 18 

forward today? 19 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 20 

  Well, that’s a good question, frankly, 21 

one that we are still, you know, evaluating.  Quite 22 

candidly, we kind of like the new plan that we’ve come 23 

up with.  It creates an entertainment district that’s 24 

about 33 percent larger in square footage than the 25 
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previous pier design.  We can proceed with 1 

construction sooner on that design, and we believe 2 

that between the cost of riparian rights and the cost 3 

on building over the water, it may end up that it 4 

might be cost prohibitive.  But at this point in time, 5 

we’ve made no decision.  The point of the presentation 6 

is to explain to you that we have that capability to 7 

proceed today with no riparian rights. 8 

  MR. MARSHALL: 9 

  But you are committed to your time frame? 10 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 11 

  Yes.  Correct. 12 

  MR. MARSHALL: 13 

  Okay. 14 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 15 

  We’re committed to that time frame. 16 

  MR. MARSHALL: 17 

  Any concern or real negative impact on 18 

the project if things got delayed, zoning or whatever, 19 

and Philadelphia Park and Chester got more of a head 20 

start than is currently projected? 21 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 22 

  Well, there’s two aspects of that 23 

question.  Number one is given where we are in our 24 

current design, we’re confident that we can make our 25 
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groundbreaking in February and an opening in November 1 

of ’08, but that assumes full cooperation on the part 2 

of the City of Philadelphia.  We’ve already begun 3 

dialogue with their streets department.  There are 4 

some easements that have to be vacated.  We’ve already 5 

submitted plans to begin that process, so if our 6 

discussions with the City can occur at a reasonable 7 

rate, we’re confident that we can make that 22-month 8 

build cycle. 9 

  With respect to a delayed start, if you 10 

will, or the fact that we’re going to be opening 11 

behind two competitors already in the market, 12 

Philadelphia Park and Chester, we don’t consider that 13 

to be a negative, necessarily.  We believe that we 14 

have a superior site.  We believe that its location in 15 

proximity to the city and to the sports complex can 16 

overcome that so-called head start.  And we believe 17 

that by opening a full facility with 3,000 slot 18 

machines and all of the food and beverage amenities, 19 

entertainment amenities, full build-out parking garage 20 

and have completed all of the traffic mitigation in 21 

time for a November ’08 opening that we’ll be able to 22 

catch up. 23 

  The real competition, quite honestly, in 24 

our minds, is not the two tracks, but it’s Atlantic 25 
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City.  And Atlantic City has been there for 25 years, 1 

so they’ve already got a 25-year head start on us.  We 2 

believe that with no property to protect in Atlantic 3 

City --- we have no operations in Atlantic City --- 4 

that we intend to compete with Atlantic City head-on 5 

and we believe that we can take them on successfully. 6 

  MR. MARSHALL: 7 

  Thank you.  Will your project be able to 8 

accommodate table games should Pennsylvania go with 9 

them sometime in the future? 10 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 11 

  We have designed our project, as you have 12 

seen from our plans, to be built in three phases.  13 

First phase will not accommodate table games, second 14 

phase will. 15 

  MR. MARSHALL: 16 

  And then last, Mr. Chairman, this is for 17 

Denyse, just to get on.  You’ve seen the financials 18 

and everything else.  Is there --- do you have any 19 

concerns going from the grant of the license to the 20 

stabilized year? 21 

  MS. MISKIN: 22 

  No, I have no concerns. 23 

  MR. MARSHALL: 24 

  Great.  Thank you. 25 
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  MR. ANGELI: 1 

  Mr. Marshall --- Commissioner Marshall 2 

already asked my riparian rights question, so ---.  3 

But my last question is you said that you have 3,000 4 

employees who have been with you for ten years.  Do 5 

you have an idea of what your retention rate for your 6 

employees is? 7 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 8 

  Retention or turnover? 9 

  MR. ANGELI: 10 

  Well, what’s your turnover rate? 11 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 12 

  Turnover rate is about 18 percent. 13 

  MR. ANGELI: 14 

  Eighteen (18) percent a year? 15 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 16 

  That’s correct. 17 

  MR. ANGELI: 18 

  Where is that in terms of the industry? 19 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 20 

  The industry is high 30s. 21 

  MR. ANGELI: 22 

  Yeah.  That’s what I thought.  Okay.  23 

Thank you. 24 

  MS. COLINS: 25 
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  May I just ask one more question? 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 2 

  Oh, please. 3 

  MS. COLINS: 4 

  All right.  Regarding the three phases 5 

you just mentioned, there are three phases of 6 

development.  Phase I is 1,500 machines and you are 7 

committed to that; correct? 8 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 9 

  No.  I’m sorry.  That’s not correct.  10 

Phase I is 3,000 machines and --- 11 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 12 

  Could you go over that ---? 13 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 14 

  --- we’re committed to that. 15 

  MS. COLINS: 16 

  Okay.  What is Phase II? 17 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 18 

  Yes.  Could you go through the phases 19 

with us just to refresh our recollection, what’s going 20 

to be in each one, because you mentioned a third 21 

phase, I think; right? 22 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 23 

  Yes.  That’s correct.  We have, with the 24 

help of our architects and our preconstruction 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

92 
 
services folks, put together a three-phrase 1 

construction project.  The first phase of construction 2 

will be the full build-out of a casino of 90,000 3 

square feet of net casino space sufficient to 4 

accommodate 3,000 slot machines upon opening, day one. 5 

In addition to the slot machines, there will be a 6 

2,000-seat entertainment venue, a 600-seat buffet, a 7 

250-seat sports book, a 250-seat five-venue food 8 

court.  There’ll be a center entertainment bar.  9 

There’ll be a corner entertainment cabaret-type bar 10 

and the 4,200 structured parking spaces and 300 11 

service parking spaces, plus all of the infrastructure 12 

and all of the traffic mitigation improvements done in 13 

time to support that opening. 14 

  MS. COLINS: 15 

  And you are committed to all aspects of 16 

Phase I? 17 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 18 

  Correct. 19 

  MS. COLINS: 20 

  Okay.  Continue. 21 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 22 

  All right.  Phase II is the expansion of 23 

the casino floor by approximately another 66,000 24 

square feet to accommodate the addition of up to 2,000 25 
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slot machines and/or the potential for having table 1 

games at some distant point in time.  In addition to 2 

the increased casino floor space, there will be, if we 3 

pursue the non-riparian rights plan, 120,000 square 4 

feet of space for entertainment, nightclub, 5 

restaurant, boutique retail shopping, along the 6 

riverfront promenade as well as an expansion of the 7 

parking garage for an additional 1,200 spaces. 8 

  Phase III of the project ---. 9 

  MS. COLINS: 10 

  Sir, but let me interrupt.  Are you 11 

committed to Phase II at this time or are there 12 

contingencies which will trigger your commitment to 13 

Phase II? 14 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 15 

  Well, based on the projections that we 16 

have done and that we believe in, we expect to be able 17 

to roll into construction of Phase II if we meet those 18 

projections, but obviously, Phase II is going to be 19 

dependent on market conditions at the time. 20 

  MS. COLINS: 21 

  All right.  And Phase III, please? 22 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 23 

  And Phase III is as you’ve seen in the 24 

artist’s rendering and you can see from the graphic on 25 
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the screen includes two 30-story towers.  The westerly 1 

tower will be a hotel tower of 500 rooms, the easterly 2 

tower is designed to be either an additional 500-room 3 

hotel tower or we’re presently projecting it to be a 4 

200-resident condominium tower.  But again, that will 5 

depend on the market demand at the time.  In addition 6 

to the two towers, there would be additional 7 

restaurants, a 15,000 square feet health spa and an 8 

outdoor pool. 9 

  MS. COLINS: 10 

  Thank you. 11 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 12 

  Go ahead, Chip. 13 

  MR. MARSHALL: 14 

  Thanks.  Going back to the ramp on 95, I 15 

understand you to say that in your projections, you 16 

don’t need it until you hit Phase II.  Is that --- you 17 

don’t believe you need it, but that is ---? 18 

  MR. GREENE: 19 

  That is correct. 20 

  MR. MARSHALL: 21 

  But however, as you begin your 22 

conversations, if by some miracle it looked like the 23 

stars and the moons all lined up correctly, would you 24 

be supportive of doing it now in Phase I or you know, 25 
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as you go through it? 1 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 2 

  Absolutely.  I think, absolutely.  I 3 

think anything we can do to improve traffic in that 4 

area, we’re going to do. 5 

  MR. MARSHALL: 6 

  So you’re not going to wait until Phase 7 

II to start?  You’re going to keep working with --- 8 

you said you worked with the state and we all know how 9 

difficult that is, but ---. 10 

  MR. GREENE: 11 

  That’s correct.  PennDOT has advised us 12 

to begin that as soon as we can.  It’s a long process. 13 

  CHAIRMAN THOMAS: 14 

  I don’t know, Commissioner, that I’ve 15 

ever seen the constellation that you describe, but I 16 

do look forward to potentially laying eyes on that. 17 

  MR. MARSHALL: 18 

  Well, hope springs eternal, Mr. Chairman. 19 

  CHAIRMAN THOMAS: 20 

  Thank you.  And me as well.  I just 21 

wanted to address the riparian issue from a facility 22 

operator’s perspective.  For us, it obviously is going 23 

to be a predominant regulatory issue and we’ll follow 24 

what the city and/or state determine we should follow, 25 
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but it’s a question of efficiency versus effectiveness 1 

from a facility operator’s perspective.  As Mr. 2 

Armentrout said, we got an additional 30 --- how many 3 

thousand square feet? 4 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 5 

  30,000. 6 

  CHAIRMAN THOMAS: 7 

  30,000 square feet out of the 8 

non-riparian impact based approach.  It would provide 9 

for a more efficient operation and one would say 10 

probably more productive in that regard, but it is 11 

important for everyone to understand that the riparian 12 

utilization approach would create an unparalleled 13 

customer experience.  And one that frankly can’t be 14 

created unless you go out into the river, and we 15 

should all understand that it’s a question of that 16 

effectiveness in terms of the patron experience versus 17 

the operating efficiencies and additional square 18 

footage.  We could make either work is the short 19 

answer to your question. 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  In terms of your phases, you were talking 22 

about the parking.  I can’t remember what you said --- 23 

the 300 ground spaces, they were temporary and then 24 

they would disappear when Phase II came in or how did 25 
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you ---?  I can’t recall what you said on that. 1 

  MR. ARMENTROUT: 2 

  All right.  Under our site plan for Phase 3 

I, we will build a parking structure of 4,200 spaces. 4 

We will pick up 300 additional spaces in what is the 5 

site plan for the expansion of the garage to the west, 6 

but is the site plan that underlies the hotel and the 7 

condominium towers.  So when we build Phase II, we’re 8 

going to lose some of the spaces that are on the 9 

ground to the west of the first phase parking garage 10 

and replace them with the parking structure and the 11 

net is an additional 1,200 spaces. 12 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 13 

  Thank you.  Any other questions?  Anne? 14 

  MS. NEEB: 15 

  We don’t have any other questions.  We do 16 

have an issue pertaining to a suitability that would 17 

require us to go into executive session. 18 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 19 

  Let me just say something about that if 20 

you don’t mind.  Again, let me repeat something we 21 

said in other hearings.  While today’s hearing is 22 

being conducted in public and it is our desire to have 23 

the entire hearing conducted in that manner if at all 24 

possible, a situation has arisen which requires the 25 
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Board to hear evidence in a closed session, much as a 1 

court might conduct a partially closed hearing for 2 

taking information which either involves information 3 

of a highly private nature or which involves security 4 

or highly-sensitive and proprietary business model 5 

information which the law recognizes as privileged and 6 

private.  That’s where we are now, and so we’re going 7 

to adjourn, temporarily adjourn, all right, and go 8 

into executive session and then reappear and we’ll 9 

continue the hearing --- by magic.  Thank you. 10 

WHEREUPON, THE BOARD MET IN EXECUTIVE SESSION 11 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 12 

  We're now reconvening in the hearing, 13 

suitability hearing for Foxwoods.  I want to make sure 14 

I get it right.  Sorry about that.  And so I'm going 15 

to turn it back over to Anne.  Right?  And then I 16 

think we should go down the three bureaus and ask 17 

where we stand.  Okay? 18 

  MS. NEEB: 19 

  Okay.   20 

  ATTORNEY DONAGHUE: 21 

  Mr. Chairman, just a note in the way of 22 

one housekeeping matters.  During our stipulations or 23 

the entry of the stipulations, I had referred to 24 

Exhibits One through Eight.  It was actually Exhibits 25 
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One through Nine.  So I just wanted to correct that 1 

for the record. 2 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 3 

  We don't need to do anything more on 4 

that.  Thank you. 5 

  MS. NEEB: 6 

  Okay.  At this time, we'll go ahead and 7 

give our conclusions as to the findings of the 8 

bureaus.  We could start with ---. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 10 

  Want to start with Michael? 11 

  MS. NEEB: 12 

  Michael. 13 

  ATTORNEY SCHWOYER: 14 

  Mr. Chairman, at this time, the Bureau of 15 

Investigations and Enforcement is unable to render an 16 

opinion with regard to character suitability, as there 17 

remain some additional matters to investigate and deal 18 

with. 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 20 

  Okay.  We'll postpone, then.  We'll have 21 

a hearing on that subject in due course.  We'll leave 22 

the record open and we will handle that.  Doreen, can 23 

you give us a report on financial suitability and 24 

viability, please?  What did I say?  I'm sorry.  I 25 
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apologize. 1 

  MS. MISKIN: 2 

  Financial suitability.  Based on the 3 

information contained in the application and the 4 

financial suitability analysis performed, the task 5 

force is not aware of any material financial 6 

suitability issues that would preclude licensure of 7 

Philadelphia Entertainment and Development Partners, 8 

L.P., as a Category 2 slots operator. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 10 

  Are there any questions for Denyse?  11 

Okay.  Susan?  Thank you, Denyse.  I finally got it 12 

right.  Sorry. 13 

  ATTORNEY HENSEL: 14 

  Pending resolution of the matter 15 

referenced by Chief Enforcement Counsel Mike Schwoyer, 16 

the Bureau of Licensing is not able to render an 17 

opinion at this point on whether or not there are any 18 

issues that would preclude licensure. 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 20 

  Okay.  Any other matters from staff? 21 

  MS. NEEB: 22 

  No.  We'd just ask that the record be 23 

kept open. 24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 25 
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  Right.  We understand. 1 

  MS. NEEB: 2 

  Okay. 3 

  ATTORNEY SCHRIER: 4 

  Can I? 5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 6 

  Please. 7 

  ATTORNEY SCHRIER: 8 

  A couple of housekeeping items for us.  9 

As you know, there's a comparative process that has 10 

been presented in this hearing process itself, which 11 

enables one Applicant to compare itself to another if 12 

they wish to do so.  In this particular instance, two 13 

Applicants, Riverwalk and TrumpStreet, chose to file 14 

comparative notices against Foxwoods Casino 15 

Philadelphia.  We chose not to do so.  We believe that 16 

our project stands on its own two feet and that we can 17 

present enough evidence to convince you that we are 18 

the best Applicant for the slot license in 19 

Philadelphia.  But we have, in fact, submitted, by way 20 

of rebuttal, written documents in response to those 21 

comparatives.  And I would just like to move those 22 

into evidence, and the Board can review those when the 23 

Board deliberates on that matter.   24 

  And in addition, there are also two other 25 
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items that I would ask be moved into evidence, and 1 

they are listed on our exhibit list as Exhibit 10, 2 

which is our memorandum, Exhibit 11, which is the 3 

first amendment to the memorandum, and then 12 and 13 4 

are our rebuttals to the Riverwalk and TrumpStreet 5 

comparative analysis. 6 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 7 

  Any objections from staff?   8 

  ATTORNEY DONAGHUE: 9 

  No objections. 10 

  MR. MARSHALL: 11 

  Move acceptance.. 12 

  MR. COY: 13 

  Second. 14 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 15 

  Thank you.  All in favor? 16 

ALL RESPOND AYE 17 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 18 

  Any opposed? 19 

NO RESPONSE 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 21 

  The motion carries and they're admitted 22 

into evidence.  Anything else from Counsel? 23 

  ATTORNEY SCHRIER: 24 

  No.  I just want to thank you all very 25 
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much for your time today. 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 2 

  Well, thank you for the presentation 3 

today.  We're going to adjourn but leave the record 4 

open, and we're going to have a break for lunch, 45 5 

minutes, until 2:15.  And we'll start the --- do you 6 

want to do it sooner? 7 

  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: 8 

  Two o'clock. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 10 

  We're going to do it at two o'clock.  Two 11 

o'clock.  And we'll reconvene at two o'clock, take a 12 

quick half-hour break.  Thank you. 13 

* * * * * 14 

CONCLUDED AT 2:00 P.M. 15 

* * * * *  16 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 17 

  I'm going to call to order this meeting 18 

of the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board in the matter 19 

of a Category 2 hearing for Keystone Redevelopment 20 

Partners, L.L.C., also referred to as TrumpStreet.  21 

Keystone Redevelopment Partners has filed an 22 

application for licensure as a Category 2 slot machine 23 

operator in the City of Philadelphia.  The application 24 

process for this Applicant has undergone an extensive 25 
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review by staff.  This hearing is to provide a final 1 

opportunity for the Applicant to demonstrate to the 2 

Board's satisfaction not only that it is suitable for 3 

license, but that it should also receive one of the 4 

two available licenses, which is part of the 5 

competitive process.   6 

  We will be following the same procedure 7 

as in the earlier hearing today, and as was used 8 

yesterday with Executive Director Anne Neeb and Chief 9 

Counsel, providing an overview of the licensing 10 

investigatory process, then the Applicant's 11 

presentation and answers to Board questions, followed 12 

by the receipt of input from the Bureaus of Licensing, 13 

Investigations and Enforcement and Corporate 14 

Compliance and Internal Controls, concerning the 15 

determinations of those bureaus which reviewed the 16 

application.  I presume you don't mind if we don't go 17 

into a lot of detail about the background as we have 18 

in the prior hearings? 19 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 20 

  No, not at all, Mr. Chairman. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 22 

  Thank you.  All right.  Would all the 23 

representatives of Keystone Redevelopment Partners, 24 

L.L.C., and of the Board who may present testimony, 25 
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please stand to be sworn in?   1 

------------------------------------------------------ 2 

WITNESSES SWORN EN MASSE 3 

------------------------------------------------------ 4 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 5 

  Okay.  Again, I apologize for our delay 6 

in getting started today, or this afternoon, anyway.  7 

Anne? 8 

  MS. NEEB: 9 

  Good afternoon, Chairman Decker and 10 

members of the Board.  Before you is the application 11 

of Keystone Redevelopment Partners, L.L.C., who has 12 

applied for a Category 2 license.  This application 13 

was filed with the PGCB on December 28th, 2005.  Since 14 

the filing of the application, a number of events have 15 

occurred promoting the review of the Applicant for 16 

both its eligibility and suitability for licensure 17 

under the Pennsylvania Race Horse Development and 18 

Gaming Act.   19 

  As with all of these Category 2 20 

Applicants before the Board this week, public input 21 

hearings were held in Philadelphia on April 10th, 22 

11th, 12th of 2006.  During that three-day span, 23 

Keystone Redevelopment Partners made an oral 24 

presentation concerning its project and submitted 25 
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documentary exhibits.  In addition, during the course 1 

of that hearing 68 speakers presented either their 2 

support for or opposition to the proposed project.  3 

The hearing was recorded and transcribed.   4 

  Second, the PGCB placed a significant 5 

amount of material submitted by Keystone Redevelopment 6 

Partners on its web site for the public to have access 7 

to information concerning the proposals, projections 8 

and studies which have been presented to the Board.  9 

These documents include a diversity plan and a local 10 

impact report, which include but are not limited to, a 11 

letter from James Perry, president and CEO, a tax 12 

analysis, impact on law enforcement and a traffic 13 

impact report.  14 

  The dissemination of this information 15 

permitted the Board's receipt of written submissions 16 

both in support and in opposition to the project.  A 17 

date of June 2nd, 2006 was established for the Board 18 

to receive written submissions.  The written 19 

submissions for this Applicant, which were received 20 

prior to the cutoff date, encompass 59 submissions, 15 21 

in support of the Applicant and 44 in opposition to 22 

the Applicant.  In addition, the Bureau of Licensing, 23 

Investigation and Enforcement and Corporate Compliance 24 

have undertaken the review of the application 25 
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consistent with the mandates of the Act.  The result 1 

of this licensing and investigative phase of the 2 

application process is the creation of the suitability 3 

report, which has been provided to the Board and the 4 

Applicant, which summarizes the findings of the 5 

bureaus as to the Applicant's compliance.   6 

  Further in the application, Keystone 7 

Redevelopment Partners submitted a traffic study.  The 8 

PGCB retained the firm of Edwards and Kelcey to review 9 

the study and issue a report.  Since that time, the 10 

Applicant responded to the Edwards and Kelcey report. 11 

And Edwards and Kelcey reviewed that response and 12 

issued a final report, to which the Applicant was 13 

again permitted to respond to.  The Edwards and Kelcey 14 

reports and the Applicant's response are all marked as 15 

an exhibit.  I'll now turn it over to Chief Counsel, 16 

who will talk about stipulations and evidence for the 17 

record. 18 

  ATTORNEY DONAGHUE: 19 

  Finally, the parties have entered into a 20 

stipulation regarding the procedure employed by the 21 

Bureau of Licensing, Investigation and Enforcement and 22 

Corporate Compliance.  The end product of this work 23 

over nearly a year has resulted in an evidentiary 24 

record which includes the full application, local 25 
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impact statements, traffic studies, the transcript of 1 

the public input hearing, the written comments 2 

presented and received by the Board, the licensing 3 

suitability report and the stipulated testimony.  The 4 

parties have entered into a stipulation that each of 5 

these items, which are identified and offered as 6 

Exhibits 1 through 11, are to be admitted into the 7 

record as stipulated evidentiary record for the 8 

Board's consideration.  In addition, the transcripts 9 

of these proceedings and any other evidence submitted 10 

and admitted as exhibits in connection with the 11 

Applicant's licensing hearing today would likewise be 12 

part of the record for the Board's review and 13 

consideration. 14 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 15 

  Thank you, Frank.  In light of the 16 

stipulation regarding Exhibits 1 through 11 being 17 

admitted into the evidentiary record in this matter, 18 

may I have a motion to ---? 19 

  MR. RIVERS: 20 

  So moved. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 22 

  Thank you. 23 

  MR. COY: 24 

  Second. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN DECKER 1 

  All in favor? 2 

ALL RESPOND AYE 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 4 

  The motion carries.  The exhibits are 5 

admitted.  Thank you, Frank and Anne.  Right?  Do we 6 

have ---?  Okay.  Go ahead. 7 

  MS. NEEB: 8 

  We also have a representative here today 9 

from Edwards and Kelcey, and they're going to testify 10 

as to the findings of their report, the traffic study 11 

report.  So I'd like to call them right now to come 12 

give their report. 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 14 

  Okay. 15 

------------------------------------------------------ 16 

STEPHEN CUNNINGHAM, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, 17 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 18 

------------------------------------------------------ 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 20 

  Mr. Cunningham? 21 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 22 

  It's good to see you all again. 23 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 24 

  Thank you.  It's good to see you again. 25 
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A. Again, as we've done with the previous Applicants, 1 

I intend to give you just a brief ten-minute overview 2 

of the traffic impact study findings. 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 4 

  Let me ask the Applicant, is it okay if 5 

Mr. Cunningham does not go into detail about his 6 

background? 7 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 8 

  Yes, that's acceptable. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 10 

  Sure.  Okay.  Thank you.  Go ahead and 11 

proceed. 12 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 13 

  Thank you.  Again, we talked previously 14 

about the four basic steps in traffic impact study 15 

preparation, that being the analysis of the existing 16 

transportation --- existing traffic volumes on the 17 

transportation network around the project area, 18 

projection of new trips associated with the new 19 

development, evaluation and re-evaluation of 20 

anticipated delays in conjunction with that 21 

development, and finally, recommendation of mitigation 22 

measures that can be done to bring the delays back 23 

down to existing levels.   24 

  A temporary casino is proposed to be 25 
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opened with 1,500 slots and limited food and beverage 1 

services by the end of 2007.  The first phase of 2 

development includes 3,000 slot machines, 1,200 seats 3 

of restaurant/bar uses, a three-screen, 450-seat movie 4 

theater, 11,000-square-foot special event area and 5 

7,500 square feet of retail development.  The final 6 

phase of the development includes a performance hall 7 

with a seating capacity of 400 people, a 400-room 8 

hotel and 2,000 additional slot machines.   9 

  With that proposed development in mind, 10 

the Applicant has identified a study area of 12 11 

signalized and unsignalized intersections as well as 12 

four U.S. Route 1 on and off ramps as their study 13 

area.  They specifically studied the Friday afternoon 14 

and the Saturday afternoon peak hours.  And they're 15 

anticipating during that Friday afternoon peak hour, 16 

total new trips of 1,229, both entering and exiting 17 

trips, during that weekday afternoon hour.  During the 18 

Saturday peak hour, they're anticipating roughly 1,650 19 

new entering and exiting trips to and from the new 20 

facility.   21 

  How is the new traffic going to be 22 

accessing the facility?  That's taken into account in 23 

the trip distribution section of the traffic study.  24 

The Applicant has determined that 45 percent of the 25 
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patrons are expected to arrive and depart via U.S. 1 

Route 1 in the study area, with the remainder using 2 

the surface street system, including Henry, 3 

Wissahicken, Hunting Park and Allegheny Avenues.   4 

  Mitigation measures identified in the 5 

study.  What is the Applicant proposing in order to 6 

bring those traffic delays back down to existing 7 

levels?  As we've seen with the previous Applicants, 8 

signal timing and coordination adjustments are 9 

proposed by this Applicant, along with roadway 10 

widening at select locations along Fox Street and 11 

Roberts Avenue, those being the two roadways that 12 

border the project site, as well as some widening at 13 

the U.S. Route 1 ramps at Abbottsford Avenue.  They're 14 

also proposing traffic signal installations at the two 15 

site entrances at Roberts Avenue and Fox Street, as 16 

well as a new signal at the existing intersection of 17 

Roberts Avenue and Stokley Street.   18 

  One additional measure that they've 19 

identified in their study is relocation of the north-20 

bound and south-bound U.S. Route 1 off ramps.  What 21 

that's going to do is allow for more direct access 22 

directly to the casino site, allowing the traffic 23 

destined for the site to bypass a small local 24 

residential area that's within the project study 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

113 
 
limits.   1 

  As indicated earlier, we have reviewed 2 

the preliminary submission of the Applicant.  We 3 

issued a letter dated September 11th, 2006.  The 4 

Applicant subsequently updated their traffic impact 5 

analysis, submitted it for review.  We issued a 6 

revised letter dated November 1st of this year with 7 

the final --- with our final recommendations and 8 

findings.  The Edwards and Kelcey review team has 9 

concluded that all identified issues have been 10 

adequately addressed by this Applicant. 11 

  We have made several recommendations as 12 

the plans would move forward in development, such as 13 

resolution of any geometric design details specific to 14 

any intersection improvements, initiation of early 15 

coordination with utility companies regarding 16 

relocation needs associated with any street and 17 

intersection improvements, and integration of public 18 

bus operations and stops within the roadway and site 19 

design.   20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  Questions for Mr. Cunningham? 22 

  MR. RIVERS: 23 

  One question. 24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 25 
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  Go ahead. 1 

  MR. RIVERS: 2 

  Mr. Cunningham, just for clarification, 3 

could you tell us what the definition is for peak 4 

hours? 5 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 6 

  The peak hour of the study area is 7 

determined by --- what you do is you go out and you 8 

take traffic counts at signalized intersections 9 

through the project limits.  And then what you do is 10 

analyze --- you see exactly what one-hour period has 11 

the highest traffic volume within the counted time 12 

period.  And that peak hour is then used as the basis 13 

for the analysis in determining the level of service 14 

and the delays through the study area.   15 

  MR. RIVERS: 16 

  So with clock in hand, what hour is 17 

defined in most cases as the peak hour? 18 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 19 

  Generally speaking, we're looking at --- 20 

it's what, you know, laymen refer to as the rush hour. 21 

We're looking at the a.m., the morning, when people 22 

are heading out to work, and then the evening when 23 

they're coming home from work.  This Applicant 24 

specifically identified the Friday afternoon peak hour 25 
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being when the casino traffic is going to be affecting 1 

the peak hour of the adjacent street traffic with the 2 

greatest degree of effect.  They've also identified 3 

the Saturday afternoon hour as the casino has expected 4 

the most number of patrons to arrive and depart on 5 

that Saturday afternoon hour.  So they've identified 6 

and analyzed that additional Saturday hour.   7 

  MR. COY: 8 

  Without drawing, necessarily, any 9 

definite comparisons between other applications and 10 

this one, the facts are that out of the five 11 

applications in Philadelphia, four of them are along 12 

the Delaware River, and this one is not.  Does this 13 

necessarily present any --- did anything stand out at 14 

you different about the traffic in this location than 15 

it did necessarily in the other ones along the river? 16 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 17 

  I think this site in particular is unique 18 

in that it has existing traffic volumes in and around 19 

the studied area that are significantly less than are 20 

on the adjacent streets of the other Applicants.  What 21 

that allows you to do is add additional traffic to 22 

those streets without what I'm going to consider 23 

significant improvements required to the additional 24 

roadway network. 25 
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  MR. COY: 1 

  Does it provide any concerns for offsite 2 

parking? 3 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM: 4 

  As far as the additional traffic that we 5 

would be adding to the ---?  Well, so long as the 6 

Applicant has provided sufficient means of access to 7 

and from their site and to and from their parking 8 

facility, whether we're looking at one of the sites 9 

along Delaware Avenue or this site specifically, it 10 

doesn't make a whole lot of difference. 11 

  MR. COY: 12 

  Thank you. 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 14 

  Any other questions?  Mr. Cunningham, 15 

thank you very much.  Appreciate it.  Okay.  We'll now 16 

turn to the Applicant. 17 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 18 

  Thank you.  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman 19 

and members of the Board.  I'm Ray Quaglia with the 20 

Ballard Spahr Law Firm in Philadelphia.  It's my 21 

privilege to be here this afternoon on behalf of 22 

Keystone Redevelopment Partners, L.L.C., doing 23 

business as TrumpStreet Casino and Entertainment 24 

Complex.  I would like to begin by expressing our 25 
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appreciation to the Board staff for their tireless 1 

efforts on this application.  While we were not always 2 

in full agreement with the staff, we were consistently 3 

impressed and not infrequently amazed at the level of 4 

their hard work and dedication throughout this 5 

process.  We literally could not be here today without 6 

them, and we thank them for that.   7 

  I would like thank in particular our 8 

hearing officer, Dale Miller, for his attention and 9 

his responsiveness throughout this process.  Mr. 10 

Miller's guidance was as firm as one would expect from 11 

a United States Marine.  And he did not hesitate to 12 

knock some heads when necessary.  Some might say he 13 

rather enjoyed it.   14 

  Mr. Chairman, we have six additional 15 

exhibits that we would like to move into evidence.  16 

We've discussed them with the staff.  Five of them are 17 

already in the Board's possession.  I would propose to 18 

just identify them now for the record. 19 

  Exhibit 12, which I have here for 20 

presentation to the staff, is the PowerPoint 21 

presentation that we will be accompanying our 22 

presentation with, both in hard copy and on a disk. 23 

  Exhibit 13 is a Philadelphia Enquirer 24 

article from September 22nd, 2006 entitled, 25 
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"Surprisingly Worthy Winners."  That was previously 1 

submitted to the Board by letter dated October 24th. 2 

  Exhibit 14 is a scheduled feasibility 3 

assessment dated October 23rd, 2006, prepared by one 4 

of our consultants, Greyhawk North America.  That also 5 

was previously submitted to the Board by my letter 6 

dated October 24th, 2006.  Exhibit 15 is a comparative 7 

traffic study prepared by Volmer, our traffic 8 

consultants, which was also submitted to the Board by 9 

my letter dated October 24th, 2006. 10 

  Exhibit 16 is the MMRC Philadelphia  11 

Casino Name Awareness Study which was submitted to the 12 

Board by my letter dated October 27th, 2006. 13 

  And Exhibit 17 is the expert report and 14 

CV of one of our testifying experts here today, 15 

Lorlene Hoyt, which was submitted to the Board by my 16 

letter dated October 24th, 2006.  We would 17 

respectfully request that these exhibits be admitted 18 

into the record. 19 

  MR. DONAGHUE: 20 

  No objection. 21 

  MR. MARSHALL: 22 

  So moved. 23 

  MR. COY: 24 

  Second.   25 
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  CHAIRMAN DECKER 1 

  All in favor? 2 

ALL RESPOND AYE 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 4 

  The motion carries.  They're admitted 5 

into evidence.   6 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 7 

  Thank you very much.   8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER 9 

  Okay. 10 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 11 

  We are acutely sensitive to the value of 12 

the Board's time and the importance of providing ample 13 

opportunity for the Board to ask any questions it may 14 

have of us today.  We also recognize that we are at 15 

the tail end a second, very long day of hearings.  16 

With that in mind, our presentation is designed to 17 

highlight for the Board in a succinct fashion some of 18 

the salient factors that make the TrumpStreet 19 

application unique.  It seems only appropriate that we 20 

begin this presentation with the gentleman who has 21 

carried the laboring war on this project from its 22 

inception, executive vice president and general 23 

counsel of Trump Entertainment Resorts, Bob Pickus. 24 

------------------------------------------------------ 25 
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ROBERT M. PICKUS, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, 1 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 2 

------------------------------------------------------ 3 

  MR. PICKUS: 4 

  Good afternoon, Chairman Decker, members 5 

of the Gaming Control Board and staff.  I would first 6 

like to thank Denyse Miskin and her staff for the 7 

guidance and assistance that has been provided to us 8 

throughout this process.  This afternoon, you will 9 

hear information regarding the application of Keystone 10 

Redevelopment Partners and its proposed TrumpStreet 11 

Casino and Entertainment Complex.   12 

  While listening to this information, I 13 

would ask that each of you pay particular attention to 14 

three unique aspects of this application that truly 15 

characterize the Trump difference, revenue, 16 

revitalization and certainty.  You will hear clear 17 

evidence that choosing TrumpStreet will maximize tax 18 

revenue for the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  Due to 19 

its unique location, TrumpStreet will have an 20 

unmatched ability to enhance diversity and best 21 

advance many beneficial urban planning and social 22 

goals by providing jobs, business opportunity and 23 

financial resources in a distressed, largely minority 24 

community.  TrumpStreet will accomplish all of its 25 
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commitments with certainty, having clear site control, 1 

a firm construction schedule, no material traffic or 2 

environmental issues, committed financing, a newly 3 

restructured company with new financial resources, and 4 

a new and very experienced management team.  Thank 5 

you. 6 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 7 

  The Applicant would like to present, as 8 

its next witness, Dr. Anthony Mumphrey, president of 9 

TMG Consulting.  Dr. Mumphrey has a Ph.D. in Regional 10 

Science from the University of Pennsylvania and over 11 

30 years of experience in revenue analysis and urban 12 

planning.  He founded TMG Consulting in 1984.  13 

------------------------------------------------------ 14 

ANTHONY MUMPHREY, Ph.D., HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, 15 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 16 

------------------------------------------------------ 17 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 18 

BY ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 19 

Q. Dr. Mumphrey, if you could please describe for the 20 

Board the business of TMG Consulting. 21 

A. Good afternoon, ladies and gentlemen.  We practice 22 

general urban planning consulting, including financial 23 

consulting, feasibility studies, economic impact 24 

assessments, market assessments and project 25 
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management.  Since I'm going to be talking about a 1 

market assessment, let me define what a gaming market 2 

assessment is.  Fundamentally, it is a projection of 3 

the amount of revenue that a casino will generate on 4 

an annual basis.  We have performed 11 gaming market 5 

assessments over the past two years for projects in 6 

New Mexico, Pennsylvania, Mississippi, Wisconsin and 7 

Singapore.   8 

Q. What was the nature and scope of TMG's engagement 9 

for TrumpStreet? 10 

A. TMG was retained by Trump in connection with the 11 

site selection process for a proposed casino.  We were 12 

tasked to evaluate, assuming at least one waterfront 13 

facility, whether Trump would generate greater 14 

revenues from the western TrumpStreet site, then from 15 

a second waterfront site.  In accomplishing this work, 16 

we conducted a study and prepared the report now under 17 

discussion. 18 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 19 

  I'll note for the record that Dr. 20 

Mumphrey's report is in the record.  21 

BY ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 22 

Q. But Dr. Mumphrey, for the benefit of the Board, 23 

what was the bottom line of TMG's study? 24 

A. Our conclusions are as follows.  Since the western 25 
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Philadelphia location of the TrumpStreet site provides 1 

better access to people with more money, it cannot 2 

help but generate more revenue than an eastern 3 

waterfront site would generate. 4 

 How much more revenue?  For instance, in the first 5 

stable year of operation of the 3,000 slot machine 6 

facilities, a TrumpStreet waterfront pair would 7 

generate $813.8 million in gaming revenue, $140 8 

million more than the $673.3 million that a 9 

waterfront/waterfront pair would generate.  And in the 10 

initial one-year operation of the Phase I, 1,500 slot 11 

machine facilities, a TrumpStreet waterfront pair 12 

would generate $444 million in gaming revenue, $62 13 

million more than the $382 million a 14 

waterfront/waterfront pair would generate. 15 

 A decision to license two waterfront slot machine 16 

facilities in Philadelphia would, during the first two 17 

years of operation, result in $200 million less in 18 

gaming revenue and over $100 million less in tax 19 

revenue being generated by the Philadelphia casinos, 20 

money being left on the table, so to speak.  21 

Generally, my conclusion is that a west/east pair 22 

would generate more gaming revenue than an east/east 23 

pair.   24 

Q. And what methodology did TMG use in conducting its 25 
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study? 1 

A. What we performed was essentially a market study 2 

using a standard transportation and marketing model.  3 

This model is referred to as a gravity model, which is 4 

a social analogy to Newton's Law.  In the model, the 5 

analogous bodies are the casinos and the gaming age 6 

populations in the Philadelphia gaming sub-markets.  7 

The attractiveness between the casinos and the gaming 8 

age populations are measured in terms of admissions. 9 

Simplistically speaking, the larger the gaming age 10 

populations and casinos, the greater the number of 11 

admissions, while larger distances between sub-markets 12 

and casinos reduce admissions.  Data input into the 13 

model included, among other factors, gaming age 14 

population, casino and sub-market locations, 15 

projections of the gaming propensity, frequency, win 16 

per visit and casino attractiveness, including numbers 17 

of slot machines.   18 

 In this analysis, the Philadelphia market has been 19 

defined as a 100-mile day trip radius from the 20 

facility.  It contains 29 million residents, 20 21 

million of whom are age 21 years or older.  The market 22 

has been divided into 16 discrete sub-markets based on 23 

certain shared characteristics, including geography, 24 

casino access and socio-economic profile.  25 
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Additionally, there is a 17th sub-market, which is not 1 

shown.  It is the visitor sub-market, which is 2 

estimated to be an average daily business traveler and 3 

tourist population of 119,000 people.  4 

Q. And applying this methodology, Dr. Mumphrey, why 5 

does TrumpStreet make more money? 6 

A. By virtue of its location and proximity to the 7 

three innermost sub-markets, in the first stable year 8 

of its 3,000 slot machine facility, TrumpStreet will 9 

pull more patrons and revenue from the Philadelphia, 10 

the inner northern suburb and the inner western suburb 11 

sub-markets than a waterfront facility will draw.  12 

This results in 2.2 million more admissions and $140 13 

million more in revenue.  This comes about because the 14 

TrumpStreet location moves the casino closer to the 15 

sub-markets that have the highest population or 16 

average household income in the region, while moving 17 

away from the sphere of influence of Atlantic City.  18 

Therefore, licensing the TrumpStreet waterfront pair 19 

would result in $200 million more in gaming revenue 20 

and over $100 million more in taxes.   21 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 22 

  And I would respectfully note for the 23 

Board that Dr. Mumphrey's findings were derived 24 

independently from, but are wholly consistent with, 25 
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the findings of the Philadelphia Gaming Advisory Task 1 

Force, that gaming revenue was maximized by locating 2 

one casino near the interchange of I-76 and Route 1, 3 

the TrumpStreet site, and one casino on the Delaware 4 

River waterfront, or in Center City. 5 

BY ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 6 

Q. Last question, Dr. Mumphrey.  How, if at all, do 7 

TMG's conclusions square with the drive time analysis 8 

conducted by the Financial Suitability Task Force for 9 

the Board? 10 

A. There are three points to be made.  First, I was 11 

pleased to see that when the Task Force and we do the 12 

same analysis, with no location differentiation, we 13 

are within five percent of each other.  Second, when 14 

the Task Force does a more conservative, 5,000/3,000 15 

machine analysis, and we have three thousand slot 16 

machines, our numbers are less, relative to the 17 

waterfront site, which would be expected.  And 18 

finally, when the specific location of TrumpStreet is 19 

factored into the study, which our analysis considered 20 

and the Task Force did not consider, our report shows 21 

more revenue for TrumpStreet, and in fact, for the 22 

total market.  These three points are, of course, a 23 

restatement of the analysis which we have already 24 

presented.  Thank you. 25 
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  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 1 

  Thank you, Dr. Mumphrey.  Our next 2 

witness will be Paul Keller, Executive Vice President, 3 

Design and Construction, for Trump Entertainment 4 

Resorts, the Applicant's majority owner.  Mr. Keller 5 

has been developing entertainment and gaming projects 6 

on time and within budget for the past 30 years.  He 7 

has previously worked with Walt Disney, where he held 8 

leadership roles in the creation of Epcot Center and 9 

Tokyo Disneyland, and with Argosy Gaming Company, 10 

where the projects he developed during his 12-year 11 

tenure, produced the highest overall return on 12 

invested capital in the gaming industry.  Mr. Keller 13 

is a contributing author to a definitive book on 14 

casino design, and like everyone else on the 15 

TrumpStreet team, he is passionate about this project. 16 

------------------------------------------------------ 17 

PAUL KELLER, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, TESTIFIED 18 

AS FOLLOWS: 19 

------------------------------------------------------ 20 

  MR. KELLER: 21 

  Thank you, Ray.  Good afternoon, Chairman 22 

Decker, members of the Board.  I'd like to start by 23 

orienting the Board to our project site.  We were able 24 

to combine a vacant, 18-acre industrial parcel with an 25 
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adjoining 12-acre distribution center.  And we created 1 

a nice, square 30-acre lot, just one block from the 2 

Roosevelt Expressway, surrounded by excellent public 3 

transportation options, and inside an established 4 

commercial industrial area.  Most importantly, we 5 

fully control this site.  The entire site is free and 6 

clear of any land title issues, or riparian rights 7 

issues.  As you can plainly see, this once productive 8 

area suffers from decay and underutilization, and has 9 

a great need for revitalization.  Let me spend a 10 

moment on our design concept, because we are very, 11 

very excited about it. 12 

  But first, I must point out that our 13 

design is very different from what you saw in April, 14 

for two reasons. One, we acquired additional land, 15 

allowing us to expand our project.  And two, we met 16 

with and listened to the community, after which we 17 

reoriented our site entrances away from the school and 18 

residential area.  We created an extensive buffer 19 

zone, and better incorporated the site into the 20 

overall environment of the Budd Plant.  21 

  Many people may not realize that some of 22 

the most breathtaking industrial achievements of the 23 

last century took place right at this location.  These 24 

innovations became our inspirations.  One of the most 25 
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notable was the Budd discovery of a welding technique 1 

that worked on stainless steel.  At that time, a new 2 

alloy.  And a direct spin-off of this discovery, was 3 

the creation of the now legendary family of Zephyr 4 

trains. 5 

  Currently on permanent display at the 6 

Chicago Museum of Industry, the Zephyr train, born at 7 

our site, was a unique American accomplishment, which 8 

reinvigorated the passenger rail industry.  Budd took 9 

stainless steel, formed a sleek and sexy new design, 10 

with help from one of the most influential of all 11 

Philadelphia architects, Paul Philippe Cret, and built 12 

the fastest train in America.  In the now famous 13 

dawn-to-dusk dash between Chicago and Denver, covered 14 

by all of the major newspapers of the time, the Zephyr 15 

train cut the time of ordinary trains literally in 16 

half.  In fact, it was so fast, Budd had to invent a 17 

new form of disc brake just to slow it down.  The 18 

train became an instant hit with the public.  In fact, 19 

the enormous popularity of Budd Zephyr trains, and the 20 

resulting resurgence of rail travel, is cited by some 21 

historians as one element that helped America out of 22 

the Great Depression. 23 

  Our design concept is intended to 24 

celebrate the legacy of this site, its influence on 25 
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America, and the people who worked here.  We will do 1 

this in a thoroughly modern and creative manner, using 2 

steel and glass.  Reinterpreting forms of the great 3 

trains that were created here, and which provided 4 

employment to the thousands and thousands of hard-5 

working Philadelphians.  As you can see from our 6 

rendering, we didn't hesitate to be bold with our 7 

design.  TrumpStreet will live up it's brand, and 8 

present a timeless, new icon for the Philadelphia 9 

skyline. 10 

  A 200-foot Zephyr-inspired smokestack  11 

will serve not only the important practical purpose as 12 

a directional beacon for the gaming public, but will 13 

also symbolize the 21st Century revitalization of this 14 

area.  Our design set out to change the common 15 

stereotype of this part of town, by offering a modern 16 

approach, that honors a long line of cutting-edge 17 

Philadelphia architecture.  Our interiors, which I 18 

will detail shortly, will further play off the essence 19 

of the city's great traditions of food, music, sports 20 

and hard work.  We were truly honored that recently 21 

our design was chosen by the architecture critic of 22 

the Philadelphia Enquirer as one of the city's top two 23 

designs.  There is no doubt that we can create a new 24 

beginning for an area that badly needs it. 25 
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  Members of the Board, we took the goal of 1 

revitalization very seriously.  It is, after all, an 2 

explicitly stated goal of the enabling legislation.  3 

And we believe we have clearly addressed this goal by 4 

our choice of location and our choice of design.  5 

We've assembled an experienced design team that 6 

includes six Pennsylvania-based firms, including the 7 

oldest minority design firm in the nation, McKissick 8 

and McKissik. 9 

  Phase I.  TrumpStreet will not open with 10 

a temporary structure.  We will, however, open a 11 

135,000 square foot facility, that is designed to grow 12 

into the full project.  We will open with 1,500 slot 13 

machines, a range of amenities I will detail in a 14 

moment, along with ample parking to accommodate our 15 

patrons.  Here are the highlights of the amenities 16 

package for Phase I of our project.  We have the Boyz 17 

Bar and Stage, named after one of our partners, the 18 

popular singing group from Philly, Boyz II Men.  We 19 

have the Philly Festival of Foods, including 20 

traditional local favorites such as cheese steaks, 21 

pizza, Chinese and soulfood.  We have a three-screen 22 

cinema, which will feature plush seating, and designed 23 

to accommodate business and community meetings, as 24 

well as movies. 25 
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  Phase II of our project will feature an 1 

additional 120,000 square foot expansion, and bring 2 

our gaming compliment to 3,000 games.  We will also 3 

have a well-lit and secure parking garage that will 4 

bring us to a total of 3,000 parking spaces.  We will 5 

surround our entire project with lush landscaping and 6 

a public plaza, featuring an outdoor sculpture garden, 7 

highlighting important pieces of public art. 8 

  Additionally, with the opening of Phase 9 

II we will have completed all traffic and streetscape 10 

improvements, including all of the affected 11 

stoplights, intersections, ramps around the site and 12 

on surrounding feeder streets, including Roberts, Fox 13 

and Stokley. 14 

  In Phase II, we will supplement our 15 

amenity package and significantly expand our 16 

offerings, specifically, the Zephyr Bar.  As a major 17 

focal point, this will be a huge video-poker bar and a 18 

central gathering place, creating energy and 19 

excitement on the casino floor.  The Budd Lounge, a 20 

classic Philly R&B nightclub.  Chickie's and Pete's, a 21 

well-known sports bar and restaurant that has truly 22 

become a Philadelphia institution.  A premium coffee 23 

house with hand-dipped ice-cream.  The Trump Club, for 24 

our players, that will feature its own bar, hors 25 
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d'oeuvres and a great place to just relax.  The 1 

Mummer's Buffet, a classic casino buffet, themed with 2 

the colorful costumes and traditions of the 3 

internationally-known Mummers.  Trump Prime, our 4 

upscale specialty restaurant, with two private dining 5 

areas for special events, business meetings and 6 

parties.  We are currently in discussions with the 7 

renowned restaurateur, Stephen Starr, to design and 8 

operate this venue. 9 

  And finally, we will offer our own 10 

version of Reading Terminal Market, featuring a 11 

variety of local specialty shops.  Now, just a word 12 

about our master plan that goes beyond what you have 13 

just seen.  Our 30-acre site is easily large enough to 14 

grow to 5,000 games, with enough parking, a hotel and 15 

a special events center which could serve as a 16 

convention and entertainment venue as well.   17 

  Let me now take a moment to walk the 18 

Board through the phasing plan of our construction.  19 

We start with an aerial of the TrumpStreet project 20 

site.  Our first phase is very straight forward.  The 21 

land is vacant and ready to go.  We built 135,000 22 

square foot casino and a surface parking lot. 23 

  Next fall, Tastykake will relocate its 24 

administrative offices.  We will demolish the 25 
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Tastykake Center.  Here we have the helicopter flying 1 

in our new garage.  And we will build during the 2 

second phase of our project, to complete the project 3 

in May of 2009.  As you can see, we've allowed space 4 

for an expansion of the garage, an expansion of the 5 

casino, and a hotel. 6 

  Should we have the privilege of being 7 

awarded a license, we are prepared, immediately, to 8 

begin taking all necessary steps toward 9 

implementation.  A lot of the groundwork has already 10 

been laid. 11 

  In our schedule, we have allowed what we 12 

believe is a realistic six months to obtain all 13 

necessary permits.  During the last year, we've been 14 

steadily advancing our design to the point where we 15 

can apply for many of these permits almost 16 

immediately.  It's worth noting that we do not need to 17 

move any roads, easements or utilities in order to 18 

commence construction.  We've carefully designed the 19 

facility to avoid such potential delays.  We expect to 20 

commence construction in late May of next year, open 21 

Phase I in May of 2008, and our full site in May of 22 

2009.  The Board has been provided with this very 23 

realistic budget breakdown of our project. 24 

  Now, to summarize why I believe the Board 25 
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should have confidence that we can do what we have 1 

said we can do.  Here's five good reasons.  One, we 2 

have full control of a 30-acre site, with no land 3 

title or riparian issues.  Two, we have Phase II 4 

surface and subsurface environmental reports, 5 

confirming that we have no environmental issues which 6 

would cause a delay. 7 

  Three, we have a realistic construction 8 

schedule, developed by a major international 9 

contractor, reviewed and confirmed by an outside 10 

expert, who is here with us today.  Four, we have 11 

ready access to all necessary utilities without any 12 

relocation necessary.  And finally, we have a well-13 

reasoned, yet relatively simple traffic plan, that we 14 

will fully fund and construct, and which has already 15 

received conceptual concurrence from both the city and 16 

PennDOT. 17 

  In short, this project has been 18 

specifically designed to bring the Trump brand of 19 

excitement and vitality to the community, while 20 

honoring the historical character of the neighborhood, 21 

and to do so with the highest possible degree of 22 

certainty.  Thank you very much. 23 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 24 

  Thank you, Mr. Keller.  Our next witness 25 
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is Jeremy Alvarez, the Director of Planning with 1 

Volmer Associates, in Philadelphia.  Mr. Alvarez has 2 

an architectural degree from the University of 3 

Pennsylvania.  He has 35 years of experience in 4 

planning, including seven years with the Philadelphia 5 

Planning Commission, and he played a key role in such 6 

major Philadelphia projects as the Vine Street 7 

Expressway and the I-95 completion program. 8 

------------------------------------------------------ 9 

JEREMY ALVAREZ, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, 10 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 11 

------------------------------------------------------ 12 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 13 

BY ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 14 

Q. Mr. Alvarez, if you could briefly identify Volmer 15 

Associates, for the Board. 16 

A. Sure.  Good afternoon, Chairman Decker and members 17 

of the Board.  Volmer is a 600-plus person 18 

organization, with offices through the Northeast U.S. 19 

I work out of our Philadelphia office.  The firm 20 

provides many services, surveys, civil engineering, 21 

landscape architecture and planning, among them.  A 22 

core competency of the firm is transportation-related 23 

engineering and design.  Traffic engineering is 24 

central to that practice.  Volmer has conducted many 25 
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dozens of traffic studies throughout the Delaware 1 

Valley for major retail and residential developments. 2 

To illustrate with several high-profile projects, 3 

Volmer is presently providing all of the traffic 4 

analyses for the new stadium in the Meadowlands, 5 

conducted all the traffic studies supporting the new 6 

Yankee Stadium in the Bronx, and did similar work for 7 

the U.S. Tennis Center in Forest Hills.  Lou Lugio 8 

(phonetic) who is with me today, participated in those 9 

studies, and was supervising traffic engineer for the 10 

TrumpStreet work that I am about to summarize. 11 

Q. What was the nature and scope of Volmer's 12 

engagement for TrumpStreet? 13 

A. We were asked to conduct a comprehensive review of 14 

present and likely future traffic conditions around 15 

the TrumpStreet site, and provide an assessment of the 16 

feasibility of the site from an access perspective.  17 

We were also asked to evaluate the four waterfront 18 

sites from an access perspective. 19 

Q. And if you could please describe the process by 20 

which Volmer conducted its review, with respect to the 21 

TrumpStreet site? 22 

A. In a manner parallel to what was outlined by the 23 

witness from Edwards and Kelcey, we collected data 24 

regarding existing traffic volumes and movements.   25 
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Data was collected in a variety of ways, including 1 

automatic traffic counters, which can collect data 2 

over a period of days.  You've likely seen the hoses 3 

across the road when these are in use.  The evaluation 4 

of the TrumpStreet site required that we collect this 5 

detailed data at 26 locations. 6 

 Second, we needed to collect data regarding 7 

traffic generation at casinos, because the current 8 

traffic guidance literature does not cover this type 9 

of use.  We did that at Dover Downs, and developed 10 

trip-generation estimates for TrumpStreet.  Third, we 11 

created a traffic simulation model that realistically 12 

illustrates the existing movements in the project 13 

area, and we then added the estimated traffic 14 

generated by the TrumpStreet facility to the network. 15 

 Using the model, we were able to identify 16 

locations where traffic operations needed to be 17 

improved.  And based on that, we began developing an 18 

improvement plan.  As part of that, we conducted 19 

extensive coordination beginning in February of '06 20 

with both PennDOT and the City of Philadelphia, 21 

Department of Streets.  This coordination continued 22 

throughout the development of the improvement plan, 23 

with eight meetings in total.  The last three were 24 

held with the city and state jointly. 25 
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Q. And what were your findings with respect to the 1 

TrumpStreet site? 2 

A. Of the sites under consideration in Philadelphia, 3 

the TrumpStreet site has the most flexible and 4 

complete access network.  The highway and local road 5 

network around the TrumpStreet site is robust.  It was 6 

constructed for hard use by heavy industry that 7 

dominated this area of the city.  The site sits in a 8 

network of four-lane arterials.  Hunting Park Avenue, 9 

which provides access from Kelly Drive in Center City. 10 

Henry Avenue, which provides a strong link to the 11 

North to Roxborough, Plymouth Whitemarsh (phonetic), 12 

Norristown, to name a few. Wissahickon Avenue and Fox 13 

Streets, provide links to Germantown and via Lincoln 14 

Drive, the whole Northwest. 15 

 Perhaps most importantly though, the site is one 16 

block of U.S.-Route 1, usually called the Roosevelt 17 

Expressway, which provides easy access to I-76, City 18 

Line Avenue, and to Montgomery Avenue, and the main 19 

line.  Let us illustrate how easy it would be to get 20 

to and from Route 1.  The location has outstanding 21 

access to the region's highway network.  In addition, 22 

TrumpStreet team has proposed greatly strengthening 23 

the network. 24 

 Like the highway and street network, transit 25 
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access to the site is strong, with bus routes bringing 1 

the site in relatively short connections to regional 2 

rail and subway lines.  It is easy to understand why 3 

this robust network was created.  The Budd Car Plant 4 

alone, and this was one of several in the area, 5 

attracted over 6,000 workers, of whom more than 60 6 

percent drove to work.  A hundred plus truck movements 7 

were generated at the plant each day.  This strong 8 

network will be even stronger once the TrumpStreet 9 

improvement plan is constructed. 10 

Q. And could you please describe that improvement 11 

plan for the Board? 12 

A. Sure.  Be glad to.  There will be numerous 13 

intersection upgrades.  In most cases, they will 14 

entail changing signal timing.  While in some cases, 15 

they also include new lane configurations.  Signals 16 

will be upgraded throughout the area, because many of 17 

the existing signals are older, now obsolete designs. 18 

The most substantial improvement is to three of the 19 

ramps to and from U.S. Route 1.  The most extensive 20 

construction will be a new ramp to a now little-used, 21 

minor street called Stokley Street, which will provide 22 

a strong connection to the site for north-bound, Route 23 

1 traffic.  Safety and capacity enhancements will also 24 

be made to the south-bound off ramp and south-bound on 25 
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ramps, to and from Fox Street.  The new Stokley Street 1 

ramp will allow direct connections to Roberts Avenue 2 

to the south, one block from the site. Overarching 3 

this is that this program can, and will be executed. 4 

 The TrumpStreet Project will fund and construct 5 

all roadway improvements described in our traffic 6 

impact study, which we think will be from $13 to $15 7 

million in total cost.  The team can control most 8 

aspects of the schedule, and can have all of the 9 

improvements in place before the casino is fully built 10 

out in 2009.  Detailed coordination with PennDOT and 11 

the city have resulted in general concurrence with our 12 

proposals.  This is the letter we received from 13 

PennDOT Deputy Secretary Rina Cutler.  The concept and 14 

approach to addressing the traffic impacts resulting 15 

from development appear feasible and prudent. 16 

 This is the letter we received from Robert Wright, 17 

Chief Engineer of the City of Philadelphia, Department 18 

of Streets.  The necessary mitigation measures are 19 

feasible, and we are accordingly in agreement with the 20 

overall concept and design package as presented. 21 

Q. Mr. Alvarez, turning now from the TrumpStreet site 22 

to the waterfront.  If you could please describe the 23 

process by which Volmer conducted its review of the 24 

four waterfront sites. 25 
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A. We conducted a review of the access and land use 1 

situation on the waterfront.  Our review also included 2 

reviewing the materials filed by the Applicants that 3 

were made available to the public, and investigation 4 

of the status of major PennDOT projects that are 5 

critical to access for certain of the sites. 6 

Q. And what were your findings with respect to the 7 

four waterfront sites? 8 

A. First, I'd just like to note that none of the 9 

available materials from the City's Gaming Advisory 10 

Task Force or from any of the four Applicants, 11 

addresses the issue of traffic impact of two casinos 12 

on the waterfront.  So I'm not going to address that, 13 

because there's no background to work against.  But 14 

it's interesting that it didn't come up. 15 

 Proposals fall into two distinct zones.  One, the 16 

Foxwood Proposal is in South Philadelphia, while the 17 

other three are north of the Ben Franklin Bridge.  18 

They're all one-sided, in that they only have a single 19 

side from which they can be approached.  All are 20 

dependent on a single boulevard, known as Columbus 21 

Boulevard, Delaware Avenue, Richmond Street, depending 22 

where you are. 23 

 The connections between I-95, which also parallels 24 

the river and the waterfront, are vital to operation 25 
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of a waterfront casino, yet these connections are 1 

spread out and heavily used.  The current Richmond 2 

Street/Aramingo Avenue/Girard Avenue interchange is 3 

vital to the three potential sites to the north, yet 4 

it is one of the most torturous and confusing ramp 5 

arrangements anywhere along I-95. 6 

 Fortunately, for the driving public, PennDOT plans 7 

to replace it with a new ramp system, one that will 8 

work better.  However, this new system will not open 9 

to traffic until as late as 2014, according to 10 

PennDOT's literature.  It could be a little sooner, 11 

but as late as 2014.  Construction is set to commence 12 

in 2009 on this very large project, when design is 13 

complete, if funding is made available.  It's a 14 

$350-plus million project.  This is roughly when the 15 

casino, or two casinos in the vicinity would open. The 16 

construction duration is expected to be five years.  17 

Detours and lane closures are sure to be challenging 18 

during construction. 19 

 Several of these Applicants acknowledged in their 20 

submissions to the Board that the routes to their 21 

sites will pass through the nearby row home 22 

neighborhood streets until the new ramps open.  23 

Foxwoods in South Philadelphia faces ramp access 24 

issues as well, but other issues are more striking.  25 
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There, the Columbus Boulevard is under enormous 1 

pressure already.  It is lined with one of the highest 2 

concentrations in the region, of traffic-generating 3 

uses.  The list is daunting.  Home Depot and Wal-Mart 4 

are next to the site.  A short distance to the south 5 

are Lowe's, Ikea and Target.  And there are literally 6 

five large strip malls, in addition to the big boxes. 7 

On Saturday afternoon, when casino visits peak, 8 

everything else in this area peaks, too.  Lastly, this 9 

area south of Penn's Landing is often affected by 10 

special events.  The exiting crowds from the stadiums 11 

on Patterson Avenue, fireworks, numerous music 12 

festivals at Penn's Landing, and many others.  The 13 

area is routinely choked when events are in full 14 

swing. 15 

 To conclude, in contrast to the waterfront sites, 16 

the traffic improvements needed for the TrumpStreet 17 

Project work well, and can be completed reliably, and 18 

on time. 19 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 20 

  Thank you, Mr. Alvarez.  The Applicant 21 

next calls Samuel B. Rogers, President of Amicus 22 

International Hospitality Services, LLC, in 23 

Philadelphia.  Mr. Rogers is a former Vice-President 24 

of the Philadelphia Convention and Visitors Bureau, 25 
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and has nearly 30 years of experience in tourism, 1 

marketing and government.  Mr. Rogers, if you could 2 

please describe for the Board the tourism benefits of 3 

the proposed TrumpStreet facility? 4 

------------------------------------------------------ 5 

SAMUEL B. ROGERS, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, 6 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 7 

------------------------------------------------------ 8 

  MR. ROGERS: 9 

  Absolutely.  Good afternoon, Mr. 10 

Chairman, members of the Board.  TrumpStreet presents 11 

an unequaled opportunity to attract the greatest 12 

number of visitors to the City of Philadelphia, by 13 

providing easy and convenient access for guests 14 

staying in Center City, and especially in the suburbs. 15 

By bringing a reputation for high-quality and exciting 16 

entertainment to a city that is often viewed as light 17 

on night life, and by capitalizing on the popularity 18 

of Donald Trump and the glamour of the Trump brand.  19 

TrumpStreet's location at the crossroads of I-76, the 20 

Schuylkill Expressway, and Route 1, puts it at the hub 21 

of the Philadelphia region's hospitality industry, 22 

making it more accessible to the largest number of 23 

hotel rooms, and therefore, the greatest number of 24 

guests.  Of the more than 31,000 hotel rooms in the 25 
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five-county area, scarcely 10,000 are located in 1 

Center City, while two-thirds of them, more than 2 

20,000 rooms, are located in the western and northern 3 

suburbs.  A key objective of adding gaming to the 4 

city's arsenal of amenities is to generate increased 5 

tourism.  TrumpStreet's location, as you can see on 6 

the map, puts it right in the center of the market.  7 

For guests staying in Center City who are looking for 8 

an evening out, TrumpStreet is a viable option.  Based 9 

on a survey conducted by the Philadelphia Convention 10 

and Visitors Bureau, 40 percent of the groups staying 11 

three nights or more now travel to Atlantic City.  If 12 

they are willing to travel an hour plus to Atlantic 13 

City, a 15 to 20 minute taxi or shuttle ride to 14 

TrumpStreet is a convenient alternative for slot 15 

players. 16 

  However, suburban Philadelphia, with its 17 

thousands of hotel rooms is the land of opportunity. 18 

This is where the City of Philadelphia will attract 19 

its incremental visitors and the economic impact they 20 

will generate.  The visitor mix in the suburbs is 21 

equally divided between corporate travelers, meeting 22 

attendees and leisure guests.  At the end of the 23 

business day, business travelers and those attending 24 

meetings, used to venture into Center City for dinner. 25 
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But with the proliferation of white table cloth 1 

restaurants in the suburbs, their impact on the city 2 

has been slowly eroding. 3 

  Now they, and leisure visitors in search 4 

of a night out, will find an exciting gaming, 5 

entertainment and dining complex at the confluence of 6 

the region's highway system.  And they'll discover 7 

that TrumpStreet is not only easily accessible from 8 

the Main Line, King of Prussia, Plymouth Meeting and 9 

Willow Grove, but the drive time is about 15 minutes 10 

shorter on a good day than heading to the waterfront. 11 

  Let's focus on the powerful Trump brand 12 

for a minute, because it is the magnet that will 13 

attract residents and visitors alike to this location. 14 

Trump projects have become icons of American real 15 

estate development.  Known for their exceptional 16 

quality, empowered by the reputation and celebrity 17 

status of the Trump name, Donald Trump's marketing 18 

clout delivers an off-the-scale level of exposure, and 19 

the Trump name gives some much-needed sizzle to 20 

Philadelphia's night life scene. 21 

  In every survey of meeting planners, tour 22 

operators and visitors conducted by the Convention and 23 

Visitors Bureau, ratings of the city's night life 24 

always lagged behind its competitors.  To further 25 
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illustrate the power of brand image, a survey of 200 1 

gaming patrons in the Philadelphia area demonstrates 2 

that TrumpStreet far outpaced the competition, in 3 

response to the question which operator would have the 4 

best casino facility.  And when asked, which casino 5 

would you want to visit, TrumpStreet beat the nearest 6 

competitor by a two-to-one margin.  But the proof is 7 

in the numbers.  This chart shows the revenue for the 8 

Trump Casino in Gary, Indiana, in 2005.  After its 9 

sale to Majestic in January of 2006, the revenue 10 

plummeted as the Trump signs came down.  As you have 11 

seen, TrumpStreet's location puts it in the geographic 12 

heart of the greater Philadelphia region's hotel 13 

infrastructure with easy access for visitors from the 14 

western and northern suburbs and from Center City.  15 

And at the end of the day, the Trump brand and 16 

marketing juice will drive revenue, which in turn, 17 

will fuel the hospitality industry's economic engine. 18 

Thank you. 19 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 20 

  Thank you, Mr. Rogers.  The Applicant's 21 

next witness is Dr. Lorlene Hoyt, Assistant Professor 22 

of Technology and Planning at the Massachusetts 23 

Institute of Technology.  Dr. Hoyt has her Doctoral 24 

degree in City and Regional Planning, from the 25 
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University of Pennsylvania and is the Vice-President 1 

of a Philadelphia-based, urban revitalization firm.  2 

She previously served as a professor at the University 3 

of Pennsylvania, and Saint Joseph's University. 4 

  Dr. Hoyt, if you could please describe 5 

for the Board, the benefits of the proposed 6 

TrumpStreet facility from an urban planning 7 

perspective? 8 

------------------------------------------------------ 9 

LORLENE HOYT, Ph.D., HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, 10 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 11 

------------------------------------------------------ 12 

  DR. HOYT: 13 

  I'd be happy to do that.  Good afternoon, 14 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Board.  There are 15 

several principles of urban planning that I would like 16 

to share with you today.  First and foremost, the 17 

urban revitalization process starts with the downtown. 18 

Typically, local governments join forces with business 19 

leaders to establish public-private partnerships.  20 

These partnerships drive the development of the 21 

waterfront, sports arenas and convention centers until 22 

the downtown emerges as a hub for culture and 23 

entertainment. 24 

  As you know, in 1990, Philadelphia was 25 
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virtually insolvent, and was known far and wide as 1 

filthadelphia.  Because the downtown has been 2 

revitalized, Philadelphia is known as a vibrant and 3 

global tourist destination today.  It is important to 4 

point out that the waterfront is both a key ingredient 5 

in the urban revitalization process, and a precious 6 

natural resource. 7 

  The urban planning literature shows that 8 

development project should accentuate, not destroy, 9 

the waterfront by preserving physical, as well as 10 

visual connections with the downtown.  Development is 11 

undesirable, for example, if a facility blocks views 12 

or pedestrian access to the river. 13 

  A classic example of accentuating the 14 

waterfront to revitalize the downtown is Baltimore's 15 

Inner Harbor, which came to life in the 1980s.  In 16 

sharp contrast, for more than a decade I have watched 17 

the city of Boston and the Commonwealth of 18 

Massachusetts pour billions of dollars into a project 19 

called the Big Dig.  The Big Dig is an effort to 20 

physically reconnect Boston's downtown to the harbor. 21 

Other cities should learn from Boston's mistakes.  I 22 

was pleased to see that Governor Rendell recognized 23 

the value of Philadelphia's waterfront, by calling for 24 

a temporary moratorium on the sale of riparian rights 25 
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earlier this year. 1 

  Though there are many benefits to 2 

revitalizing the downtown, it often leads to the 3 

problem of urban dualism.  Urban dualism occurs when 4 

the downtown benefits from public and private 5 

investments, while the outlying neighborhoods continue 6 

to decline.  Essentially, the city becomes too cities, 7 

with an island of renewal in a sea of decay.  To avoid 8 

the problem of urban dualism, attention should shift 9 

from the downtown to the economically disadvantaged 10 

and often racially segregated neighborhoods. 11 

  This brings me to the strengths of the 12 

TrumpStreet location.  Unlike Center City, the 13 

Nicetown, Tioga and Allegheny West neighborhoods, 14 

adjacent to the Trump site have experienced a slow and 15 

painful economic decline.  The Budd Manufacturing 16 

Company departed from the area decades ago, and 17 

buildings have largely remained vacant since.  18 

According to the 2000 census, approximately one-third 19 

of the residents in this area live below the poverty 20 

line, and only 55 percent are employed full-time. 21 

  Clearly, these residents have not 22 

benefited from the revitalization that has taken place 23 

in Center City.  While the waterfront has long been 24 

regarded as an asset, it is much more difficult for 25 
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urban planners to incorporate outlying industrial 1 

sites into the city's broader revitalization strategy. 2 

  Some cities have been successful in 3 

acquiring federal clean-up funds, and others have been 4 

able to attract light manufacturing to these areas.  5 

Very few cities, however, have entirely transformed 6 

such sites with contemporary economic uses, like 7 

shopping malls or casinos.  And the latter holds the 8 

most promise for the residents in nearby communities 9 

and for the city as a whole. 10 

  Contemporary uses, like the proposed 11 

TrumpStreet casino, help to alleviate two chronic 12 

urban planning problems, spatial mismatch and economic 13 

restructuring.  Put simply, spatial mismatch describes 14 

the mismatch between the location of the workforce and 15 

the location of jobs.  Because there is a spatial 16 

mismatch in Philadelphia, frequent travel to and from 17 

distant employment locations, especially using public 18 

transportation, is both time-consuming and difficult 19 

for low-income people like mothers with small 20 

children.  The proposed TrumpStreet casino, however, 21 

would benefit low-income residents by providing 22 

stable, well-paying jobs that are closer to where they 23 

already live. 24 

  In addition, economic restructuring is a 25 
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problem that describes the way in which many cities in 1 

the United States, including Philadelphia, have 2 

struggled to transition from a manufacturing economy, 3 

to a service and entertainment economy.  By providing 4 

on-the-job training, TrumpStreet will not only allow 5 

nearby residents to secure jobs within the casino, but 6 

it will also offer them the opportunity to acquire 7 

relevant job skills, in a rapidly-growing industry. 8 

  Finally, the proposed TrumpStreet 9 

project, unlike it's competitors, will function as a 10 

catalyst for new development.  A disproportionate 11 

number of investments and resources have already been 12 

dedicated to improving the Center City and it's 13 

waterfront.  Fortunately, these efforts have been 14 

fruitful, and the area will continue to thrive without 15 

adding a casino project nearby. 16 

  This is not necessarily true of the 17 

neighborhoods surrounding the TrumpStreet site.  If 18 

selected, however, the TrumpStreet project will have a 19 

ripple effect, creating additional jobs in the 20 

surrounding neighborhoods. 21 

  Also, by attracting both city residents 22 

and regional tourists, the TrumpStreet casino will add 23 

to a handful of neighborhood revitalization efforts, 24 

like the Kroc Center, which are currently underway.  25 
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As a critical mass of activity becomes evident, 1 

residents and business owners will begin to see the 2 

economic potential of this neighborhood. 3 

  In closing, TrumpStreet is the only 4 

proposal that will benefit a low-income neighborhood 5 

in need of an economic catalyst.  Of equal importance, 6 

it is the only proposal that does not threaten one of 7 

the City's most valuable natural resources, the 8 

Delaware River Waterfront. 9 

  At this unique and important moment, I 10 

ask that you consider the health of the municipality 11 

as a whole by protecting the waterfront and providing 12 

opportunity to residents beyond the downtown.  Thank 13 

you. 14 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 15 

  Thank you, Dr. Hoyt.  And again, I would 16 

just direct the Board's attention to the fact that Dr. 17 

Hoyt's conclusions are independent from, but entirely 18 

consistent with, the finding of the Philadelphia 19 

Gaming Advisory Task Force, that revitalization 20 

impacts stemming from casino development can be 21 

greatest in distressed urban areas with vacant or 22 

underutilized land. 23 

  Our next witness is Verna Tyner.  Ms. 24 

Tyner is the Treasurer of Tioga United, and a long 25 
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time resident of the Tioga neighborhood, adjacent to 1 

the TrumpStreet site.  Ms. Tyner? 2 

------------------------------------------------------ 3 

VERNA TYNER, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, TESTIFIED 4 

AS FOLLOWS: 5 

------------------------------------------------------ 6 

  MS. TYNER: 7 

  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman and members 8 

of the Board.  First, let me share a little 9 

information about myself.  I became involved in the 10 

community at a very early age helping neighbors, then 11 

as a junior block captain, a block captain, committee 12 

person and a community activist.  And I've been a 13 

member of Tioga United for the past ten years. 14 

  Tioga United is a community organization 15 

dedicated to helping rebuild the community, one step 16 

at a time, made up of volunteers who care and share 17 

the same vision.  Our organization started in 1996, 18 

for the sole purpose of promoting unity within the 19 

community.  Tioga United realized that our 20 

organization would serve as another piece of a puzzle 21 

that was in progress, to make the community whole.  22 

This year, we celebrated our tenth annual Unity Day 23 

Festival. 24 

  We are involved in the community in many 25 
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ways.  Just to name a few, we host monthly meetings 1 

and created sub-committees to deal with all kinds of 2 

community issues.  We clean and green our 3 

neighborhood.  We replaced our recreation equipment 4 

and our playground in one day, with the help from 5 

Kaboom, the Home Depot and the City of Philadelphia. 6 

We partner with businesses, clergy, residents, as well 7 

as local, state and federal representatives,  And 8 

have, and will be doing much more, with the help of 9 

new partners like TrumpStreet.  Over the last years, 10 

the partner of TrumpStreet has supported and 11 

participated in local events like Blooming Community 12 

Day, Baseball Day, that had not been played in our 13 

community in over 30 years.  Unity Day, and most 14 

recently, our first Senior Citizen Prom, which drew 15 

over 125 senior citizens from the neighborhood.  I 16 

wish you were there to see it.  It was beautiful.  So 17 

let me emphasize, before even being granted a license, 18 

TrumpStreet has become a real part of our community. 19 

  And now, let me tell you a little bit 20 

about my community, Tioga.  When I moved there in 1970 21 

at the age of ten, I thought I'd died and went to 22 

heaven.  When I arrived in Tioga for the first time, I 23 

was amazed to see the gorgeous homes of various sizes 24 

and shapes.  The trees well trimmed, the lawns well 25 
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manicured, the driveways large and well-maintained.  1 

Easy access to all types of public transportation, and 2 

the diversity of the residents all sharing and caring. 3 

Jobs that residents could walk to and from, such as 4 

the Budd site, Steel Hettle (phonetic), Tasty Baking, 5 

and much more, which occupied over 200 acres of land. 6 

Today, industry is gone, warehouses are abandoned, and 7 

jobs are scarce. 8 

  This brings me to the TrumpStreet 9 

proposal.  When the proposal was first brought to our 10 

attention, we attended some meetings to gather some 11 

facts and details to take back to our residents.  12 

However, most of the meetings started off with 13 

suggestions that Trump wanted our properties, that 14 

eminent domain was going to take place, that the 15 

businesses in the community was going to die, and that 16 

crime would increase.  All this before TrumpStreet was 17 

able to present detailed facts and answer questions. 18 

  So Tioga United decided to host our own 19 

community meetings so that our residents would be 20 

allowed their own opportunity to oppose or support the 21 

proposal.  Let me remind you, we do this all the time. 22 

Not just when a hot subject comes to pass.  We 23 

partnered with Allegheny West Foundation and began 24 

hosting meetings that were very well attended.  I must 25 
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say that, at first, because of the negative 1 

information given out beforehand, a lot of people were 2 

undecided.  However, after our meetings and after many 3 

questions and answers, our community voted to support 4 

the TrumpStreet proposal. 5 

  We decided to support the proposal way 6 

before any discussions about a community benefits 7 

agreement.  Our residents believed that this is an 8 

opportunity for all.  We have a significant number of 9 

working-class and unemployed residents who deserve 10 

employment opportunities not far from where they live. 11 

The Trump proposal and signed benefits agreement 12 

commits to 75 percent of all jobs to immediate 13 

residents, those who live within a mile of this site. 14 

Which basically takes care of a good majority of our 15 

unemployed.  Which means these individuals who live 16 

and work in the community will be contributing more to 17 

our economic base, which enhances our overall 18 

neighborhood. 19 

  The Trump proposal commits to financially 20 

supporting a community plan that has been developed by 21 

the community for the community.  A plan to help with 22 

the sidewalks, recreation, senior programs, things 23 

important to the residents that the City is 24 

unfortunately unable to fund at this time. 25 
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  The Trump proposal commits to education 1 

funds, to $1,500,000, dedicated to upgrades and 2 

scholarships for our school, which has never been done 3 

before.  And it's strongly needed.  This will allow 4 

more of our youth to continue their education and a 5 

chance to receive community-based scholarships.  The 6 

Trump proposal covers all, jobs, seniors, youth, 7 

vendors, businesses, education, crime, gambling 8 

addiction, community involvement, traffic and housing. 9 

These are good enough reasons for us, the residents of 10 

Tioga, to strongly support the Trump proposal. 11 

  Thank you for allowing me an opportunity 12 

to give you a picture of our community, and our clear 13 

message, that we, in the Tioga community, made up of 14 

over 10,000 residents, and who Tioga United strongly 15 

represents, faithfully, honestly and openly, 16 

wholeheartedly support the TrumpStreet Proposal.  And 17 

ask that you grant them a license to operate at the 18 

site on Roberts Avenue and Fox Street, affectionately 19 

known to us as the Budd site.  Thank you.  And we 20 

trust that you'll make the right decision. 21 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 22 

  The unenviable task of following Ms. 23 

Tyner falls to Virginia McDowell, the Executive 24 

Vice-Present, Chief Information Officer for Trump 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

160 
 
Entertainment Resorts.  Ms. McDowell has over 25 years 1 

gaming experience in multiple gaming jurisdictions 2 

across the United States. 3 

------------------------------------------------------ 4 

VIRGINIA MCDOWELL, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, 5 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 6 

------------------------------------------------------ 7 

  MS. MCDOWELL: 8 

  Good afternoon.  At Trump Entertainment 9 

Resorts, we believe that the public policy objectives 10 

of diversity and economic opportunity in the Act are 11 

among the most important objectives that can be 12 

accomplished by a gaming operator in Pennsylvania.  13 

While some have criticized our proposal because our 14 

location is not on the riverfront, the simple truth 15 

is, we chose this site for specific reasons.  Our 16 

TrumpStreet proposal is different by design. 17 

  TrumpStreet is the only Applicant whose 18 

site rests within a minority community.  And this 19 

community needs a new economic engine to help drive 20 

its revitalization.  Clearly, the neighborhoods east 21 

of Roosevelt Boulevard, who are both most proximate to 22 

the proposed site, and stand to receive the greatest 23 

benefits, are also characterized by high unemployment 24 

and poverty statistics.  Let's look at the facts.  On 25 
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race, more than 85 percent of the residents of these 1 

neighborhoods are minority.  On unemployment, over 15 2 

percent of these individuals are unemployed.  The per 3 

capita income in these areas ranges between $14,000 4 

and $17,000.  And census data shows that nearly 30 5 

percent of these residents live below the poverty 6 

line. 7 

  At Trump, we recognize the importance of 8 

creating economic opportunity for citizens in the 9 

communities where we do business, and have 10 

consistently prioritized creating diversity in the 11 

workplace.  Specifically, 54 percent of our employees 12 

in Atlantic City are minority citizens, and 69 percent 13 

of our employees in Gary, Indiana, were minority 14 

individuals.  In Gary, for example, we made aggressive 15 

diversity commitments to local employment, similar to 16 

what we have done in Philadelphia.  And we met those 17 

goals, as was documented by an independent report for 18 

the Indiana Gaming Commission, and conducted by Purdue 19 

University. 20 

  Our full-time employees enjoy market-21 

leading benefits, including a competitive health plan, 22 

a 401(k) retirement plan, paid vacations and tuition 23 

reimbursement for continuing education.  We also have 24 

long recognized that running an effective business, 25 
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while maximizing diversity and economic opportunity, 1 

requires innovative recruitment and training methods, 2 

and have been recognized as an industry leader in this 3 

regard. 4 

  The reasons are simple.  Not only do we 5 

believe in having a positive effect on the communities 6 

where we operate as a matter of principle, we also 7 

believe that building partnerships with the community 8 

helps to build a more dedicated and productive 9 

workforce.  To put it clearly, this model makes good 10 

business sense, too. 11 

  This has also been consistently reflected 12 

in our record of industry leadership with unions in 13 

Atlantic City, demonstrated through our low rates of 14 

grievances and arbitrations, and our ability to 15 

negotiate labor agreements even at times when other 16 

gaming companies could not. 17 

  Our goal and commitment in Philadelphia, 18 

is to partner with the immediate community.  Our 19 

proposed Phase I facility will initially create 500 20 

direct jobs.  And the second phase will directly and 21 

indirectly create nearly 1,700 permanent positions.  22 

To help ensure that these economic benefits and other 23 

benefits of our application are largely directed at 24 

the local community, we are pleased to announce that 25 
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we have entered into a Community Benefits Agreement, 1 

with Tioga United, and the Allegheny West Foundation, 2 

the two neighborhoods most proximate to our site, and 3 

those with the largest populations.  Additionally, we 4 

have identified a number of local organizations to 5 

serve on our Advisory Council. 6 

  First, we will provide local employment 7 

opportunity through the Agreement, as we have agreed 8 

to make 75 percent of the jobs at the facility 9 

available to residents of the community, and 90 10 

percent of those jobs available to residents of 11 

Philadelphia.  The Agreement specifically reiterates 12 

our dedication to maximizing business opportunities 13 

through TrumpStreet as well through the use of local 14 

vendors, contractors, and minority and women-owned 15 

businesses.  The plan for the facility shows that we 16 

have reserved specific sections of the retail food and 17 

beverage area for local vendors, who otherwise could 18 

not afford the capital cost of doing business in this 19 

type of facility.  We have already had substantial 20 

discussions with several local businesses, including 21 

existing minority-owned food and beverage outlets in 22 

the community.  And we have signed letters of intent 23 

for goods and services with Alpha Office Supplies, a 24 

local minority-owned business, for the purchase of 25 
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office supplies and furniture; Impact Dimensions, a 1 

local minority-owned business, for promotional 2 

products and uniforms; and the Swarthmore Group, the 3 

largest minority-owned money management firm in the 4 

Commonwealth, for financial services. 5 

  The financial commitment we have made to 6 

the community for local improvement projects will be 7 

administered through a new community development 8 

foundation.  Specifically, we will donate $2.5 million 9 

dollars to this foundation upon licensure, and 10 

guarantee at least $1 million dollars in additional 11 

funding each year. 12 

  The foundation will implement the 13 

community strategic plan that has been submitted to 14 

this Board, and developed by Philadelphia-based urban 15 

planning firms, Keistraw and Kolodner, and urban 16 

partners, who have engaged the local community in its 17 

development.  Finally, the Community Benefits 18 

Agreement outlines our commitment to an additional 19 

$1.5 million education grant that will be used for 20 

school upgrades and scholarship programs. 21 

  In addition to the Community Benefits 22 

Agreement, we have taken a number of affirmative steps 23 

to put into place a plan for community opportunity, 24 

that we will begin executing immediately upon 25 
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licensure.  To recruit our employees, we are in a 1 

position to immediately activate the network of more 2 

than 500 community partnerships that we have created 3 

over the years, through our Atlantic City operations, 4 

many of which are already forged with Pennsylvania and 5 

Philadelphia schools and technical training programs. 6 

Some of these partnerships include our existing 7 

relationships with Temple University, the Restaurant 8 

School, Pennsylvania Culinary Institute and Penn State 9 

University. 10 

  We have also built a significant number 11 

of new partnerships with local schools and 12 

organizations that we hope will prove to be tremendous 13 

resources in bringing employment opportunities to 14 

local residents.  Additionally, we held an opportunity 15 

fair near the proposed site that was attended by 16 

several hundred thoughtful job seekers from the 17 

community.  At this event, management employees from 18 

our Atlantic City operations came to Philadelphia to 19 

discuss their areas of expertise.  Food and beverage, 20 

marketing, security, finance, to highlight specific 21 

opportunities. 22 

  Further, we have been contacted by an 23 

additional 150 individuals, through our web site, who 24 

are currently interested in employment at TrumpStreet. 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

166 
 
In all, we have collected information from hundreds of 1 

interested local residents, and have cataloged this 2 

information, so we can immediately begin contacting, 3 

hiring and training residents upon licensure.  And to 4 

help us accomplish this task, we have engaged the 5 

Gabriel Institute, a state-certified minority and 6 

women-owned firm, located in Philadelphia, to assist 7 

our team in efforts to promote and ensure diversity. 8 

  We have also designed other specific 9 

recruitment programs, that will, we believe, allow us 10 

to maximize the diversity of our workforce.  We have 11 

created the TrumpStreet Apprentice Program, which is 12 

currently in progress, and will give students from six 13 

Philadelphia-area high schools the opportunity to 14 

compete for and be awarded internships in our Atlantic 15 

City properties under the supervision of our casino 16 

management.  It is our hope that these students will 17 

be the first class of apprentices to learn the 18 

necessary skills to be able to work at TrumpStreet.  19 

For TrumpStreet, we are also focused on making sure 20 

that our commitment to diversity is reflected at every 21 

level of the organization, which is an area in which, 22 

to be quite honest, the gaming industry has struggled. 23 

To address this, we have created an innovative 24 

management trainee program.  Under this program, we 25 
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will, if licensed, recruit at least six members of the 1 

immediate community to move to Atlantic City for one 2 

year, where we will provide them with housing, and 3 

where they will work with our senior management team 4 

to receive the training necessary for them to return 5 

and hold management positions upon TrumpStreet's 6 

opening.  We have also, as a part of our application, 7 

vowed to maximize the use of union labor at the 8 

facility, and have already entered into a neutrality 9 

agreement with the Operating Engineers, Teamsters and 10 

Unite Here, which combined, will likely represent the 11 

bulk of the unionized workers at TrumpStreet. 12 

  In addition to our commitment to employ 13 

local residents and contract with local and minority-14 

owned businesses, we have pledged to donate excess 15 

goods, such as non-perishable food and beverage items, 16 

to local charitable and community organizations.  This 17 

has been our long-standing practice in Atlantic City, 18 

for example, at the Rescue Mission and the Atlantic 19 

City Food Bank. 20 

  In closing, we recognize that the 21 

specific community in which we have proposed our 22 

development is one that will realize extraordinary 23 

benefits from this type of economic infusion.  You 24 

have heard us refer to the community as our partner.  25 
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Through the Community Benefits Agreement, these 1 

diverse neighborhoods will directly share in the 2 

revenue of our facility, and that is a true community 3 

partnership. 4 

  I'd like to leave you with a short video 5 

that speaks to the community involvement we've already 6 

enjoyed, and hopefully will speak to the vibrant 7 

future we want to help create.  Our efforts to build 8 

these relationships did not occur just over the last 9 

couple of weeks, or the last couple of months.  In 10 

fact, we have been building relationships with these 11 

neighborhoods and organizations and people for the 12 

past couple of years.  Thank you. 13 

VIDEO PRESENTATION 14 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 15 

  Members of the Board, our next witness is 16 

James B. Perry, the President and Chief Executive 17 

Officer of Trump Entertainment Resorts.  Prior to 18 

joining Trump in 2005, Mr. Perry was most recently at 19 

the helm of Argosy Gaming, where he was named CEO of 20 

the Year by the gaming industry for 2000.  Under Mr. 21 

Perry's stewardship, Argosy's financial performance 22 

was honored by, among others, Money Magazine, Barron's 23 

and Business Week. 24 

------------------------------------------------------ 25 
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JAMES B. PERRY, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, 1 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 2 

------------------------------------------------------ 3 

  MR. PERRY: 4 

  Thank you very much.  Members of the 5 

Board, it's a great opportunity to be here today to 6 

present with you the unique benefits of this 7 

outstanding project.  When I arrived in Harrisburg 8 

last night, I was reminded about my first trip to 9 

Harrisburg some 50 years ago.  My grandmother was 10 

named Mother of the Year in the state of Pennsylvania, 11 

and she, along with my mother and I, arrived to go to 12 

Governor Leader's office with her to be presented with 13 

a certificate.  Obviously, as an eight-year old boy I 14 

was very excited.  I'm as excited to be here today as 15 

I was then for a different reason.  But there's a 16 

tremendous opportunity here, for us to do something 17 

very special for this community, for this state.  I 18 

was born and raised in Lawrence County, and I have 19 

enjoyed my relationship with this state.  I still 20 

consider myself, when asked where are you from, I 21 

always say, New Castle, Pennsylvania. 22 

  Prior to my brief retirement in 2002, I 23 

had worked at Atlantic City, Las Vegas and across the 24 

mid-west in positions which included President and CEO 25 
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of Argosy Gaming Company, and President of the 1 

Tropicana in Atlantic City.  In both these cases, I 2 

was charged with building and leading a management 3 

team who could improve the financial operating results 4 

of first a major casino, and later an entire gaming 5 

company.  At the time I had joined Argosy, the company 6 

was in a situation that was not unlike what I found 7 

when I was recruited to Trump.  At Argosy, the 8 

management team worked very hard to clean up the 9 

balance sheet, reorganize, streamline operations and 10 

prudently invest in opportunities to improve our 11 

physical assets that existed, and development 12 

opportunities that existed throughout the mid-west.  13 

I'm tremendously proud of the job that we accomplished 14 

at Argosy, and those investments clearly paid off.  In 15 

my term there revenue grew by over 300 percent, and 16 

earnings grew by over 500 percent.  Our success at 17 

Argosy was built upon affectively operating casinos 18 

very similar to this proposal in terms of size, scale 19 

and customer profile.  After falling to below $4 per 20 

share around the time I became CEO of the company, the 21 

company was later acquired by Penn National Gaming 22 

last year for $47 a share. 23 

  It was the success we achieved at Argosy 24 

that led me out of retirement and back across the 25 
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country to Atlantic City.  When I was on the road with 1 

Argosy, I used to say many times --- and I believe 2 

this is as compelling an opportunity as that was --- 3 

that this is an opportunity very few people are given 4 

to change the life of employees, to change the life of 5 

customers and to change the life of investors, and 6 

this project provides us the opportunity to do that 7 

one more time.  8 

  As you know, in May of 2005, the company 9 

completed the process of restructuring our balance 10 

sheet through an agreement with bondholders who 11 

exchanged debt in the company for equity in the 12 

company.  This was essentially an expression of the 13 

bondholders’ optimism and their belief in the 14 

revitalization of Atlantic City.   15 

  It is important to note that this process 16 

was not what you might most commonly associate with a 17 

bankruptcy.  During the course of the bankruptcy 18 

hearings and the period of time that we were in 19 

bankruptcy, the company consistently continued to run 20 

its operations in the normal course, paid all its 21 

bills from vendors, paid its employees on a timely 22 

basis and paid all taxes and regulatory fees as 23 

required.  No one took a financial hit from the result 24 

of this reorganization. 25 
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  Nevertheless, this was a necessary, 1 

consensual course of action for the company and the 2 

bondholders in order to have the financial ability to 3 

invest in our assets and expand our brand.  A 4 

restructuring plan was confirmed within less than six 5 

months by the court specifically finding that the new 6 

Trump Entertainment Resorts was not likely to need any 7 

further financial reorganization.   8 

  Following in the confirmation, these new 9 

equity holders had the right to appoint five new 10 

members of the Board of directors, and it was at this 11 

time that I was recruited to join the company’s Board. 12 

The Board went on a search looking for a new CEO.  I 13 

went to a Board meeting and found out it was me.  And 14 

I agreed to serve in that position in July of last 15 

year because of the tremendous opportunity I saw not 16 

only in Atlantic City, but also throughout the United 17 

States for the Trump Casino Entertainment resorts. 18 

  When I first arrived there, the path was 19 

clear.  First, we had to strengthen our balance sheet. 20 

Second, we had to set a strategic direction that 21 

demonstrated that we had the flexibility and the 22 

ability to invest in our existing assets.  Frankly, we 23 

had to streamline our operations and improve the 24 

customer experience.  And lastly, the company needed 25 
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to leverage the value of the Trump brand.   1 

  In the past year, there have certainly 2 

been challenges.  For a company that had faced 3 

financial hurdles for the past decade, these 4 

challenges may have seemed insurmountable.  However, 5 

the company’s reorganization had put us in a clear 6 

position to reinvent our operations, to work with a 7 

fine new management team, and never before known 8 

financial resources. 9 

  As in any reorganization, the first thing 10 

we needed to do was to recruit an unmatched new 11 

management team that had experience in gaming 12 

throughout the country.  One of those leaders, the 13 

person responsible for the day-to-day operations of 14 

our properties, Mark Juliano, is also with us here 15 

today.  Mark has worked in gaming for more than 25 16 

years and has served as president of both Caesars 17 

Palace in Las Vegas and Caesars Atlantic City, and is 18 

recognized as having nearly unmatched operational 19 

expertise in our industry.   20 

  Our chief financial officer, Dale Black, 21 

has more than 20 years of financial experience, 22 

including 13 at Argosy, where he joined the company 23 

just after its initial public offering in the early 24 

1990s.  There, he was instrumental in restructuring 25 
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our balance sheet and lowering our average borrowing 1 

cost by more than 30 percent.  Both of these efforts 2 

were critical to our success in producing the highest 3 

profit margins in the gaming industry during the 4 

period that I was with Argosy.  In addition to Dale, 5 

several members of the management team who led the 6 

Argosy turnaround have joined the Trump team, 7 

including Virginia McDowell and Paul Keller, who you 8 

have heard from today.  9 

  The new company formed last year also 10 

provided us with financial resources to get the job 11 

done.  From the outset, the bondholders, the new 12 

equity holders understood that we needed to reduce our 13 

debt, but we also acquired a new credit facility to 14 

invest in our future.  And today, we have more than 15 

$150 million in cash in the bank and over $300 million 16 

in available credit under our credit lines. 17 

  As a company, we are carefully deploying 18 

these resources to their fullest and best use, as we 19 

follow our Board’s direction to borrow today to invest 20 

in our assets to drive earnings for the future.  In 21 

Atlantic City, we have streamlined operations and 22 

reinvented our marketing programs to drive revenue and 23 

reduce costs.  We are now implementing our new 24 

technology solutions that will allow us to drive 25 
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additional cash revenue, putting us on the cutting 1 

edge of database marketing, and help to propel 2 

additional profit margin growth. 3 

  From the beginning, there was a clear 4 

intention on behalf of our Board to recruit the finest 5 

talent to operate our facilities and produce the best 6 

results.  The operating team we have assembled has 7 

demonstrated this ability to increase margins and 8 

effectively run our properties.  And during the last 9 

reported quarter, we were able to increase earnings by 10 

share by more than 80 percent year over year. 11 

  This success has been demonstrated not 12 

only by our operating results, but by reaction of Wall 13 

Street to the new company, which has received positive 14 

ratings from several investment banks because of the 15 

investment community’s optimism about our future and 16 

their belief in our management.  We are also  17 

re-developing our physical plants in Atlantic City to 18 

compete at the top tier of the new, destination driven 19 

Atlantic City marketplace.   20 

  In addition to the new $250 million hotel 21 

tower that is currently under construction at the Taj 22 

Mahal, we are in the process of renovating the gaming 23 

and public spaces at the Taj.  We’ve completely 24 

renovated the gaming floor at Trump Plaza and we’ve 25 
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renovated every standard hotel room across our 1 

enterprise.  Now, these important improvements have 2 

put us in a strong position to expand the Trump brand 3 

into new markets where we can deploy our operational 4 

expertise. 5 

  That brings us to Philadelphia.  As you 6 

know, the Applicant for this license is Keystone 7 

Redevelopment Partners, which is a partnership between 8 

our company and several dedicated local investors who 9 

are here with us today.  They are certainly a group 10 

with divergent experiences and views, and they have 11 

clearly coalesced around the fact that our purpose is 12 

much more than pure financial success. 13 

  From our very first meeting, it has been 14 

clear that if this project was not intended to 15 

uniquely benefit the community, they would invest 16 

their money elsewhere and avoid this long and somewhat 17 

difficult --- sometimes difficult competitive process 18 

altogether.  Other individuals, frankly with whom we 19 

had discussed the project but did not share this 20 

vision of the community benefit never became a part of 21 

this team. 22 

  Let me now address the financial 23 

structure for TrumpStreet.  As you know, TrumpStreet 24 

is planned as a $445 million development, including 25 
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licensing and construction costs.  We have built a 1 

capital structure that carefully accounts for each 2 

dollar and provides significant additional financing, 3 

should it become necessary for any reason.  4 

Specifically, our company has made a $50 million cash 5 

commitment to this project, and our partners have 6 

committed more than $28 million in additional cash.  7 

The balance of our financing has been arranged through 8 

Morgan Stanley through a binding commitment letter 9 

with our group to provide up to $420 million in 10 

financing for the development of TrumpStreet.  And a 11 

representative of Morgan Stanley has joined us here 12 

today. 13 

  Trump Entertainment Resorts is not only 14 

the majority partner in this project, but we will also 15 

serve as the manager and operator of the facility, 16 

should we be licensed by this Board.  And in this 17 

regard, we believe that we provide benefits that speak 18 

to the objectives of the enabling Act that far exceed 19 

those of any other Applicant. 20 

  First, for more than 20 years, this 21 

company and its predecessors have been operating 22 

gaming facilities in the Atlantic City marketplace.  23 

Why is this important?  Because today, we have a 24 

strong understanding of the Philadelphia area customer 25 
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base and an existing database of approximately one 1 

million Trump customers who value the Trump brand and 2 

who live within 25 miles of the TrumpStreet facility. 3 

This is a pre-existing customer base that we can 4 

immediately mobilize to create revenue for this 5 

facility and tax revenue for the City and the 6 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  Simply put, the 7 

infrastructure already exists for the success of 8 

TrumpStreet.  Some of our competitors have criticized 9 

our application in this regard, because they cannot 10 

offer these value-added benefits to their prospective 11 

Philadelphia operations to a significant degree.  We 12 

can and we will. 13 

  This operating expertise is complemented 14 

by many effective programs that we have developed over 15 

the years, such as the human resources initiative that 16 

you heard about a few minutes ago.  Additionally, I’d 17 

like to point out that we will bring to the table our 18 

locally-developed, responsible gaming program which, 19 

led by the nationally-renowned experts Arnie and 20 

Sheila Wexler, who are here with us today, has been 21 

recognized for its ingenuity, effectiveness and 22 

dedication to the community. 23 

  During my time at Argosy, I served on the 24 

Board of the National Responsible Gaming Commission, 25 
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and I believe that we value what we’ve learned from 1 

both Arnie and Sheila, who have dealt with this 2 

problem in a very practical way to enable us to be a 3 

leader in helping to recognize those individuals that 4 

may have a problem and deliver programs that can help. 5 

  For all of these reasons, we believe that 6 

we are uniquely qualified to accomplish the goals of 7 

Act 71 and stand ready to effectively and efficiently 8 

operate a gaming facility in the Commonwealth that 9 

will maximize tax revenue for the government, 10 

substantially support tourism and provide economic 11 

benefits for the state and its citizens. 12 

  These reasons, though, are not truly --- 13 

are not what truly makes TrumpStreet stand out amongst 14 

its competitors.  The true potential impact of this 15 

project can only be realized through the consideration 16 

of the truly remarkable social and economic effect it 17 

stands to have on the Philadelphia community that 18 

needs a boost. 19 

  Let’s face it.  Each of these projects 20 

will create jobs and hundreds of millions of dollars 21 

in tax revenue.  And every company competing in this 22 

state stands to benefit financially from the 23 

development of a Philadelphia or a Pennsylvania 24 

project.  But that’s not good enough for us and it 25 
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does not do justice to the promise of economic 1 

development that is woven throughout Act 71.  We 2 

respectfully submit to you that the opportunity we 3 

present to this Board suggests that the decision 4 

should be made for a very different reason. 5 

  It is too rare in business that the 6 

occasion arises to simultaneously create value for 7 

your shareholders, to truly lead the transformation of 8 

a community, and to provide much-needed economic 9 

opportunity for citizens who have struggled; watching 10 

their neighborhoods deteriorate, waiting for a new 11 

economic engine to help drive their lives forward. 12 

  TrumpStreet will provide careers in place 13 

where jobs are currently scarce.  TrumpStreet will 14 

build new business opportunity in a place where 15 

businesses have fled, and TrumpStreet will provide 16 

hope in a community that has watched its future become 17 

more difficult every day. 18 

  Members of the Board, TrumpStreet will 19 

not solve all of the difficult problems currently 20 

being faced by our prospective neighbors in 21 

Philadelphia.  But it is the largest economic infusion 22 

that has been proposed in this community.  It will 23 

uniquely provide new opportunity and it will do so 24 

while maximizing tax revenue, maximizing community 25 
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revitalization, and it will do so with more certainty 1 

than any other Applicant.  We made the choice to put 2 

our time and money on the line with the vision of 3 

doing well while doing good.  And for more than one 4 

year now, we have worked every day to strengthen and 5 

improve a proposal that fundamentally and uniquely 6 

accomplishes the goals that gaming was legalized to 7 

accomplish.  That was our choice and we have made our 8 

commitment to the state, to Philadelphia, and this 9 

community.  Now the choice is yours.  Thank you very 10 

much. 11 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 12 

  Mr. Chairman, members of the Board, just 13 

as it seemed appropriate to begin our presentation 14 

with a few words from Bob Pickus on the Trump 15 

difference, it seems only fitting that we conclude 16 

with a few words from a gentleman who is uniquely 17 

well-situated to comment on the Trump difference, the 18 

Chairman of the Board of Trump Entertainment resorts, 19 

Donald Trump. 20 

------------------------------------------------------ 21 

DONALD TRUMP, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, TESTIFIED 22 

AS FOLLOWS: 23 

------------------------------------------------------ 24 

  MR. TRUMP: 25 
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  Mr. Chairman and members of the Board, 1 

it’s a great honor to be here, and it’s also my great 2 

honor to present what I think is just an outstanding 3 

proposal.  As I was listening today, and there’s not 4 

too much more I can say about it because I think it’s 5 

been covered very with great detail, but my --- I was 6 

thinking how different this is for me because 7 

normally, I invest in a location --- as an example, 8 

where I’m just completing a building on 59th Street 9 

and on Park Avenue in Manhattan, or directly across 10 

from the United Nations in Manhattan, or 57th Street 11 

and 5th Avenue in Manhattan or a building at the Sun 12 

Times site in Chicago, or what I have in Los Angeles, 13 

all throughout the world and many different 14 

developments, and they’re always these spectacular 15 

locations from day one. 16 

  Now, as you know, in Philadelphia, we’re 17 

proposing to build a building on the waterfront, 18 

except it’s a residential, luxury condominium 19 

building, and we don’t need gaming to help us on the 20 

waterfront.  The waterfront doesn’t need gaming.  Now, 21 

I was thinking to myself, this is very different, 22 

because unlike what I’m doing all over the world and 23 

all over the United States in terms of absolutely 24 

prime location, here I’m taking a location that’s 25 
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seriously troubled and we hope to make it a prime 1 

location for not only the people in the area and not 2 

only people in the community, but for Philadelphia and 3 

for Pennsylvania, so we’re doing something very 4 

different. 5 

  The waterfront doesn’t need help.  The 6 

waterfront has traffic problems.  In addition to not 7 

needing help, which is a negative, it also has very 8 

major traffic problems.  If two facilities go on the 9 

waterfront, that’s going to be, in my opinion, 10 

devastation.  I know Philadelphia very well.  I love 11 

Philadelphia.  I went to school in Philadelphia and 12 

I’ve been back many, many times.  And I know the 13 

waterfront and I don’t believe it can handle two 14 

casinos. 15 

  I also know this area from going to the 16 

Wharton School of Finance, and this area can really be 17 

something special with its access, with everything it 18 

has going.  If you allow us to do what we want to do, 19 

this area will be something very special the people 20 

will be talking about for a long period of time. 21 

  Gaming can be a catalyst.  It can be a 22 

catalyst to something terrific.  This is the area that 23 

needs the catalyst.  And with that, I thank you very 24 

much.  Thank you. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  Anything else? 2 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 3 

  No, Mr. Chairman.  We were prepared to go 4 

to question and answer. 5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 6 

  We’re going to take a five minute break 7 

and come back. 8 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 9 

  Okay.  Fine. 10 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 11 

  Thank you. 12 

SHORT BREAK TAKEN 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  Okay.  What questions from the Board? 15 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 16 

  I’m sorry.  Mr. Chairman, before we went 17 

to the Q&A, we had one small housekeeping matter.  As 18 

Mickey Kane pointed out to me when we went to the 19 

break, I neglected to include two additional exhibits 20 

when we were moving the other exhibits into evidence. 21 

Exhibit 18 now should be additional --- Exhibit 18 22 

should be our notice of intent to compare --- our 23 

revised notice of intent to compare with attachments. 24 

And Exhibit 19 should be our reply to the notice of 25 
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intent to compare filed by Riverwalk. 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 2 

  Is that a correction or an addition? 3 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 4 

  That is an addition.  Two additions. 5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 6 

  Just those two?  Any objections?  Have a 7 

motion, please?   8 

  MR. MARSHALL: 9 

  So moved. 10 

  MR. HOY: 11 

  Second. 12 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 13 

  Thank you.  All in favor? 14 

ALL RESPOND AYE 15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  They’re admitted.  Thank you. 17 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 18 

  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  We’re prepared 19 

now to turn the floor over to the Board --- 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  Thank you. 22 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 23 

  --- for its questions.  I’d just like to 24 

state for the record that we have here at our table 25 
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specifically to answer questions, Dale Black, the 1 

executive vice president and chief financial officer 2 

of Trump Entertainment Resorts, and Jim Perry and Bob 3 

Pickus from whom you’ve heard.  We also have 4 

additional people here who are available as need be, 5 

including a number of our investors, Pat Croce, Pete 6 

Ciarrocchi, Dominic Cipollini, Gerald Segal, Steve 7 

Berk and Nathan Morris.  Mark Juliano, the chief 8 

operating officer of Trump Entertainment Resorts, and 9 

numerous consultants and professionals, including 10 

Arnie and Sheila Wexler, who Mr. Perry referenced.  11 

Michael Pollock with Global Strategies Group, and John 12 

Orum from Morgan Stanley.  And I would hope that 13 

between all of us, we can answer anything that you can 14 

come up with. 15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  Hope so.  Thank you.  We’re going to have 17 

questions from the Board.  Sure.  Please. 18 

  MS. COLINS: 19 

  I’m going to go right to an issue that’s 20 

of concern to me.  I can remember about a year ago, 21 

maybe a year and a half ago, reading an article --- I 22 

think it was in the New York Times.  It was probably 23 

their business section --- about New Jersey casino 24 

companies hedging their bets in Pennsylvania.  And the 25 
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concern that I have is, how does the competition from 1 

New Jersey or your companies in New Jersey affect your 2 

Pennsylvania investment?  Because we are charged, 3 

obviously, with making a decision that’s going to 4 

maximize revenue for the Commonwealth.  And as I look 5 

at your organizational chart, I see that Trump 6 

Entertainment Resorts Holding holds a number of 7 

companies, four of which are New Jersey companies, 8 

three of which are New Jersey gaming companies.  So 9 

convince me that the competition from your New Jersey 10 

companies will not disadvantage this Philadelphia 11 

investment. 12 

  MR. PERRY: 13 

  First of all, I’d like to just address 14 

the fact that we have local partners, and this has 15 

been a discussion that has taken place from the very 16 

outset of a partnership between our local partners, as 17 

well as the company, the parent company of Trump 18 

Entertainment resorts about --- let’s talk through 19 

this issue of Pennsylvania, having a license in 20 

Pennsylvania and also having a license and having 21 

operations in Atlantic City. 22 

  Now, I have been, as I mentioned earlier, 23 

in the gaming business across the United States, in 24 

Nevada, the Midwest and Atlantic City.  And the fact 25 
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is that profit margins in almost every jurisdiction, 1 

independent of a tax rate fall into that 20 to 25 2 

percent range on average across. 3 

  So you can have a state that abuts 4 

another state.  For instance, Missouri, where the tax 5 

rate is in the neighborhood of 27 percent if you 6 

include admissions fees.  You can have Illinois, 7 

across the river where we operated in Alton, have a 8 

tax rate in the 30, 25 percent, and in fact, the 9 

higher tax rate property ran profit margins very close 10 

to what they were operating in Missouri.  And 11 

essentially, that’s the result of the fact that 12 

companies tend to gravitate and find their customer 13 

bases associated with people who are either close by 14 

or are attracted to a specific facility.  That’s going 15 

to even be more important in Atlantic City versus 16 

Pennsylvania, and eastern Pennsylvania in particular, 17 

and Philadelphia. 18 

  The fact is, is that for Atlantic City to 19 

grow and thrive, Atlantic City needs to build hotel 20 

rooms and become more of a destination area than a 21 

locals casino.  Philadelphia will serve the needs of 22 

the Philadelphia region and the tourists who visit 23 

Philadelphia for any variety of reasons. 24 

  An analogy would be Las Vegas.  Las Vegas 25 
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has converted itself from a casino destination, when I 1 

got into gaming in the late '70s, into now a 2 

convention and tourist destination.  With the advent 3 

of California casinos on Indian reservations where the 4 

effective tax rate is significantly lower than other 5 

places, Las Vegas hasn’t skipped a beat, and in fact, 6 

has grown even faster. 7 

  So you’re going to see more and more of a 8 

divergence between the Atlantic City business model, 9 

which is going to be much more driven by people 10 

staying in hotel rooms, and the Philadelphia model, 11 

which will be driven by availability, proximity and 12 

also the tourists who come to Pennsylvania for a 13 

variety of other reasons who are looking for a gaming 14 

entertainment experience. 15 

  The tax rate, when you go down the list 16 

of gaming companies, has a very miniscule effect on 17 

the overall profit margins of an individual customer. 18 

So I can assure you that the fact that we have 19 

operations in Atlantic City and our responsibilities 20 

to our local partners, you will not find that we will 21 

be trying to drive business one place or the other. 22 

  MS. COLINS: 23 

  Thank you. 24 

  MR. MCCABE: 25 
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  I had that same concern.  Another concern 1 

I have is of crime.  Because of the location you’re 2 

in, are you at all concerned about the crime rate in 3 

that area and what are you going to do to make it safe 4 

for your visitors to come to your facility? 5 

  MR. PERRY: 6 

  I think that what I’ve seen in the past, 7 

particularly --- I came to Atlantic City in 1979, and 8 

one casino was open, Caesars was getting ready to 9 

open, and there was a significant concern at that 10 

time.  But as Atlantic City has become a more active 11 

and popular place, in fact, you will feel more 12 

comfortable, more secure.  And in my past 15 years in 13 

gaming, we have surveyed our customers --- I’ve done 14 

it either twice a year now with Trump or once a year 15 

when we were with Argosy --- and asked our customers 16 

what are the key factors that help you make your 17 

gaming decision about where you might go. 18 

  The first is always cleanliness.  Across 19 

any market, anywhere in the country, the number one 20 

concern customers have is cleanliness, followed very 21 

closely by a sense of security and safety.  It is 22 

incumbent upon us, in order to be successful at this 23 

project, that we help and engender a feeling of 24 

security in this area. 25 
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  The design that we’ve undertaken --- and 1 

Paul Keller, who I’ve worked with for a number of 2 

years at Argosy and now with him at Trump, it’s very 3 

important to him, when we designed this facility, that 4 

we create the kind of light, the kind of lighted 5 

parking garages, the kind of places where people 6 

create a lot of activity and energy, that you space 7 

your retail out throughout the organization so that 8 

you don’t create places where there aren’t a lot of 9 

activity, in order to make it feel safe. 10 

  Our goal, as we stated in our thing, is 11 

to help to transform a community, to bring people to 12 

this community who would not ordinarily come to this 13 

community.  And when we do that, and they find out 14 

what a great fabric it is in terms of the people who 15 

live there, the people who will work at our facility, 16 

we feel that they will have even a better view of this 17 

section of town then they might have today. 18 

  I, last year, underwent some tests at 19 

Temple University at the hospital.  And after I was 20 

finished with my tests, you know, you can’t eat, you 21 

can’t do anything like that.  After the tests, I said, 22 

where can I go get a sandwich?  And they said you’ve 23 

got to go to Center City.  We believe that we will be 24 

the beginning of an alternative, where that nurse can 25 
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say to me, well, you ought to go down to TrumpStreet, 1 

Chickie and Pete's is down there, or go down to the 2 

Mummer’s Buffet.  And as we create that energy and 3 

create that traffic and make people more comfortable, 4 

we think we really helped to rebuild a neighborhood. 5 

  MR. MCCABE: 6 

  Thanks.  I have another question that 7 

maybe your consultant from TMG can handle.  When you 8 

were doing your comparisons of the first two years 9 

that the Commonwealth would make more money by one 10 

casino along the water and TrumpStreet, what were the 11 

number of slots you were using for the comparison?  12 

Were they both the same, 1,500, 1,500 or were they 13 

3,000, 3,000? 14 

  DR. MUMPHREY: 15 

  For the temporary casino, we both --- we 16 

used 1,500 slots in both locations, and for the first 17 

year of full operation, 3,000 in both operations. 18 

  MR. MCCABE: 19 

  Now, and then, is the revenue from Phase 20 

I --- going to Phase II in your operation, is that 21 

contingent upon a certain amount of revenue being 22 

generated in Phase I, or is that going to be 23 

automatic? 24 

  MR. PERRY: 25 
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  Are we committed to Phase II?  1 

Absolutely.  I mean, there’s uncertainty out there 2 

associated even with the state when they said 3,000 3 

units to start and then up to 5,000 if we can prove 4 

there’s an economic demand.  Everything that I have 5 

done in this business in the last 25 years would 6 

indicate to me that 3,000 is a minimum of the optimum 7 

number.  The potential to go to 5,000 is clearly built 8 

into our plan, because we believe we’re transforming 9 

an area that will become a vibrant, economic driver in 10 

this community. 11 

  MR. MCCABE: 12 

  Thank you. 13 

  MR. RIVERS: 14 

  You talked about --- I think Bob Pickus 15 

did about revenue.  And you showed, I think, 813 16 

million versus 700 million --- 600 million plus.  So 17 

obviously, we’re looking at a third more.  This is 18 

Trump versus the waterfront.  What is it about your 19 

marketing, your providing customers with this 20 

interest?  What is it that you’re going to do to 21 

generate a third more revenue when all other things, I 22 

think in terms of number of machines, are equal? 23 

  MR. PERRY: 24 

  Just to clear up a point, it is Trump and 25 
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one other casino on the waterfront, versus two casinos 1 

on the waterfront.  So it’s not just our revenue, it’s 2 

combined of the two.  Clearly from the graph that we 3 

showed up there about the effect in Indiana, there’s 4 

no doubt the Trump brand will attract trial.  5 

Secondly, we have an established customer base in the 6 

Philadelphia region that will attract a second visit, 7 

a third visit.  Take for instance, a resident of 8 

Trenton, New Jersey, who now has a gaming option of 9 

going down to Atlantic City.  Maybe they go down on 10 

Wednesday evening with some people from the office.  11 

If we have a casino at TrumpStreet, with our affiliate 12 

card that we have with that program, we can attract 13 

that customer now, who says with a group of other 14 

customers, well, let’s go down and try TrumpStreet. 15 

  So there’s a whole --- and it’s been 16 

proven in this industry primarily by Harrod's.  I’m 17 

sure you’ve seen the total rewards presentation.  But 18 

there’s a real value to this cross marketing of 19 

customers who will become more familiar with the 20 

operations of a branded casino company. 21 

  ATTORNEY RIVERS: 22 

  I think it was Dr. Mumphrey, when he 23 

showed the information regarding the profile of the 24 

population around --- in and around TrumpStreet, and 25 
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you did some economic issues in terms of the 1 

population.  Obviously, one of the things that we hear 2 

about, and that is people who are from the lower 3 

economic social impact areas becoming addicted or 4 

spending all of their money in these casinos.  How do 5 

you think this is going to impact you in terms of the 6 

impact you might have on the community itself in terms 7 

of too many people spending too much time of very 8 

little money in your casinos? 9 

  MR. PERRY: 10 

  If you look at the surveys of gamers that 11 

have been done over the past 15 years, you will find 12 

that the income, the household incomes or per capita 13 

incomes of people who frequent gaming establishments 14 

is generally 10 to 20 percent higher than the average. 15 

Let’s face it.  If people don’t have the ability to 16 

have recreational spending, if they don’t have 17 

disposable income, they don’t come to a casino. 18 

  In fact, when I was on the national 19 

gaming study panel, we found that the biggest abuse of 20 

people in low income was the lottery, because at a 21 

dollar a pop for a chance to win millions of dollars, 22 

far more of that income in the lottery went to people 23 

at the lower echelon who had problem gambling.   24 

  Problem gambling crosses all economic 25 
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strata.  I mean, there are problem gamblers who make 1 

millions of dollars a year, and there are problem 2 

gamblers that make less than $15,000 a year. 3 

  ATTORNEY RIVERS: 4 

  My final question.  When I was allowed to 5 

gamble, I remember being in the casino in one of the 6 

islands, and they did not allow their employees to 7 

gamble, and/or the islanders.  Do you have a 8 

moratorium or a rule stating that employees cannot 9 

gamble in your facility? 10 

  MR. PERRY: 11 

  Currently in our company, we do have 12 

rules.  The State of New Jersey also has rules about 13 

who can and cannot gamble in either their own or in 14 

any licensed facility in the state. 15 

  MR. RIVERS: 16 

  So is that --- an employee can or cannot? 17 

  MR. PERRY: 18 

  They cannot gamble in our facility, but 19 

our employees could gamble in someone else’s, unless 20 

the state forbids it. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 22 

  Jeff, can I follow up on one thing, and 23 

we’ll go down the row here.  I’m going to come back to 24 

something.  You had ascribed to the theory that we’ve 25 
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heard from others at times that there is a premium 1 

attached to the revenue for companies that have large 2 

marketing programs? 3 

  MR. PERRY: 4 

  Yes.  Yes, I would. 5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 6 

  I just wanted to make sure.  Jeff? 7 

  ATTORNEY COY: 8 

  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Just a few 9 

quick questions.  And I confess, if some of the 10 

answers are in the book, I may have missed it, or in 11 

the fourth presentation as we go through here.  I want 12 

to join with Commissioner Rivers in his question about 13 

--- that he just asked about poor folks maybe having a 14 

little too much access in your area.  For me, it is 15 

one of my biggest concerns about the location.  And I 16 

think you’re going to have to address it very 17 

affirmatively.  And I heard what you said about buying 18 

a dollar lottery ticket, but I just think that being 19 

so close in an area --- and let me say right away, I 20 

appreciate in your presentation all the efforts you 21 

have made in terms of increasing employment and 22 

employment opportunities and educational 23 

opportunities.  I think you’re really moving 24 

affirmatively in a lot of areas, but I think this 25 
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concern of this big, beautiful place being in the 1 

middle of a neighborhood where there are a lot of poor 2 

folks and low-income housing concerns me.  And I want 3 

you to talk a little bit more about it.  I want to be 4 

assured that you’re aware and that you’re going to 5 

--- you would try to deal with it. 6 

  MR. PICKUS: 7 

  Yes.  If I could address that in two 8 

ways.  One, that you heard reference earlier to the 9 

responsible gaming program that we have in place and 10 

that we will bring to a TrumpStreet facility if we 11 

are, in fact, licensed.  A critical component of that 12 

responsible gaming program is the awareness training 13 

that is provided to the employee base on the casino 14 

floor so they can look for symptoms of problem 15 

gambling so that we can intervene when appropriate, 16 

and react and control that so that we can help people, 17 

if necessary, get treatment.  It’s a program that we 18 

have utilized in our facilities in Atlantic City, 19 

through the training of Arnie and Sheila Wexler, who 20 

you’ve heard referenced and who are here today, and 21 

that’s a very important component of that responsible 22 

gaming program. 23 

  The other point I want to make is that 24 

this subject was discussed very, very much in many 25 
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different meetings that we had with a number of 1 

community groups, and specifically as a subject that 2 

was discussed within the negotiations for the 3 

community benefits agreement that you were advised 4 

today has been signed with a number of community 5 

groups nearest to our site. 6 

  Certain of the community groups asked 7 

that we take what we viewed as rather extraordinary 8 

measures to protect some of the local residents from 9 

engaging in problem gambling activities, simply on the 10 

theory that because they were poorer, they would be 11 

more susceptible to problem gambling. 12 

  The representatives of the community 13 

groups, and you heard from Ms. Tyner before and I 14 

pointed out that Ron Hinton who's the president of the 15 

Allegheny West Foundation, who is also in the room, 16 

had a very different view of that.  They basically 17 

took the view that these folks, not withstanding their 18 

economic level, are still adults and are grown people, 19 

and that they can still take responsibility for their 20 

own actions.  And accordingly, they specifically did 21 

not really even negotiate or require that we have any 22 

extraordinary measures in our community benefits 23 

agreement or in our operations to address their 24 

potential problem gambling issues any more than anyone 25 
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else with a problem gambling issue. 1 

  ATTORNEY COY: 2 

  I appreciate their thoughts and your 3 

thoughts.  I continue to think it’s a concern and I 4 

think it’s real.  And when I talked --- I think it 5 

would be a little bit of a perception problem from 6 

other areas of the --- people that would visit you 7 

potentially from other areas.  When people talk to me 8 

about gaming in other parts of Pennsylvania from the 9 

area like where I live, one of their major concerns 10 

is, well, it’s just a place where you take money from 11 

people who can’t afford it.  And that concern, I 12 

think, needs to be affirmatively addressed. 13 

  Let me ask you another question.  Is the 14 

fact that this is in all of our facilities a 15 

slots-only facility, does that have more of an impact 16 

in the question I’m asking or less, or no impact?  17 

Would It be the same if there were tables and so on? 18 

  MR. PERRY: 19 

  My experience has been, in being on the 20 

national Board, et cetera, has been that problem 21 

gaming can be a problem no matter what the game is, 22 

whether it’s football games, lottery, betting whether 23 

it comes up heads or tails.  Problem gaming has a lot 24 

to do with the sense of chemical changes in the brain 25 
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that certain people exhibit than other people.  It’s a 1 

problem that knows no economic strata and it’s one 2 

that’s got to be addressed.   3 

  I understand your concern.  You can’t 4 

travel and be involved in this industry for 25 years 5 

and not hear story after story after story of people 6 

who have never been in the casino believing that it’s 7 

milk money and the kids aren’t going to eat because of 8 

the people that are in there.  I can remember when 9 

Pennsylvania passed horse racing.  I can remember that 10 

arguing and I don’t think it ever will go away.  But 11 

my view is, and the facts are, that there’s no 12 

disproportionate hit.  But you’re right in the sense 13 

that all the Harrod's research that has been done over 14 

the years would prove that our concern --- we have to 15 

do a better job of explaining our concern as opposed 16 

to following victim to people’s perceptions. 17 

  ATTORNEY COY: 18 

  I have one last question. 19 

  MS. TYNER: 20 

  Excuse me. 21 

  ATTORNEY COY: 22 

  I’m sorry? 23 

  MS. TYNER: 24 

  I just wanted to ---. 25 
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  ATTORNEY COY: 1 

  You go right ahead. 2 

  MS. TYNER: 3 

  I just wanted to make one response.  I 4 

just want to address your question about income and 5 

the citizens in our community.  I can tell you that 6 

there is a range, so it’s not of income.  It’s not all 7 

low income in our community.  And also, one of the 8 

slides that we omitted --- I omitted --- was to let 9 

you know that our community is predominately senior 10 

citizens who know what’s best for them.  They know 11 

what they can and cannot to and what they can and 12 

cannot spend.  They’re teaching us.  We learn from 13 

them.  And one of the things in the community benefits 14 

agreements is education.  We want to promote education 15 

on gambling so that this problem will not occur on any 16 

income level.  But we are addressing that and we will 17 

continue to address that as a community.  Thank you. 18 

  ATTORNEY COY: 19 

  Thank you.  Just one last question, and I 20 

don’t know who --- and it’s sort of an odd question, 21 

but I’m intrigued enough to ask it.  I heard what  22 

--- especially what Mr. Trump said with regard to the 23 

fact that two casinos won’t work on the river.  At 24 

least I think that’s what you said. 25 
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  MR. TRUMP: 1 

  Traffic-wise? 2 

  ATTORNEY COY: 3 

  Traffic-wise.  Not from a revenue point 4 

of view? 5 

  MR. TRUMP: 6 

  No, not from --- I was discussing 7 

traffic.  There's too much in the area in my opinion. 8 

  ATTORNEY COY: 9 

  Okay.  That answers the question.  Thank 10 

you.  I was going to ask you if you could make it --- 11 

if it was a revenue question, if you could make it 12 

work.  In other words, if that was the only place you 13 

could be if you could make it work.  I thought it was 14 

a great question, but ---. 15 

  MR. AGNELI: 16 

  Just considering the impact this would 17 

have on the community, have you given consideration, 18 

or are you in contact with any of the housing agencies 19 

in the general region to make sure that there remains 20 

affordable, safe housing in the area? 21 

  MR. PICKUS: 22 

  One of the real benefits, we believe, of 23 

the community benefits agreement that we’ve 24 

negotiated, and particularly with the fact that the 25 
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Allegheny West Foundation is a signatory to that and 1 

has a long history of helping to rebuild and 2 

rehabilitate housing in the area, we are very 3 

confident that the funds that will be made available 4 

through the Community Development Foundation will, in 5 

fact, greatly advance the affordable housing that will 6 

be available in the area.  It will increase the stock 7 

of available housing in the area and the strategic  8 

--- the community’s strategic plan that we also 9 

described has as a key component of it in terms of 10 

utilization of the funding that we will provide 11 

through the community benefits agreement, the 12 

development of affordable housing for the residents. 13 

  And related to that, I think it’s also 14 

important to know, and I think it really, in large 15 

part, goes to the heart of our application, is that by 16 

offering the level of job commitment that we have to 17 

folks that live in the community, providing them with 18 

well-paying jobs, providing the businesses with a 19 

business opportunity, that those folks now will be 20 

able to buy the homes they may be renting in, fix up 21 

the potentially substandard housing they may have, and 22 

really help to regenerate and grow the affordable 23 

housing stock in the community. 24 

  ATTORNEY COY: 25 
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  Thank you.  Mary and Sanford? 1 

  MS. COLINS: 2 

  Sanford, do you want to go first? 3 

  ATTORNEY RIVERS: 4 

  No. 5 

  MS. COLINS: 6 

  You sure?  Okay.  I want to ask a few 7 

questions about the Chapter 11 reorganization that 8 

you’ve just come through.  I understand from your 9 

testimony and from the report that I have that that 10 

reorganization was approved by the court in May; is 11 

that correct?  May of 2006? 12 

  MR. PERRY: 13 

  2005.  May 20th, 2005. 14 

  MS. COLINS: 15 

  2005.  I’m sorry.  2005.  Okay.  And 16 

again, another one of our tasks is to make a choice 17 

that ensures the citizens of Pennsylvania that the 18 

Applicant that we pick will be financially stable and 19 

viable.  And you’ve just come through a very major and 20 

significant reorganization through bankruptcy court. 21 

So what can you tell us that assures us that you have 22 

in place the protections that will avoid these 23 

problems for the entity in Pennsylvania? 24 

  MR. PICKUS: 25 
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  Let me answer that question in a couple 1 

of ways, if I could.  First of all, as Mr. Perry 2 

described in his testimony earlier, I think it’s 3 

important for this Board to understand that the 4 

proceeding that we emerged from in May of 2005 was a 5 

consensual restructuring of our balance sheet.  It was 6 

done with the concurrence of a majority of our 7 

bondholders, and was really a process that needed the 8 

mechanics of the bankruptcy court to implement.  But 9 

it was not, again, as Mr. Perry described, what 10 

typically people think of in a bankruptcy case.  It 11 

was a restructuring of our balance sheet and allowed 12 

the company to emerge much stronger than it was going 13 

in, point number one. 14 

  Point number two is, in terms of the 15 

Philadelphia operation, which is actually the 16 

Applicant that if you did grant us a license, you 17 

would be licensing, and that is Keystone Redevelopment 18 

Partners.  That entity was specifically structured to 19 

functionally be what is commonly known in the lending 20 

and other industries as a bankruptcy remote entity.  21 

What that means is --- and I’ll be happy to go into 22 

the details of that, if you’d like --- but what that 23 

means at the end of the day is that the fortunes or 24 

misfortunes of Trump Entertainment Resorts have no 25 
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bearing, no bearing, on the fortunes or not of 1 

Keystone Redevelopment Partners.  That entity is 2 

separate and apart, other than the commitment of $50 3 

million which Mr. Perry mentioned earlier and which we 4 

already have in the bank three times over.   5 

  The financial structure, the financial 6 

obligations, the financial health of Keystone 7 

Redevelopment Partners is structured so that it stands 8 

on its own, independent again, of the fortunes of 9 

Trump Entertainment Resorts.  The way that we get 10 

there, if you would like me to continue on the 11 

bankruptcy remote issue from a structural point of 12 

view, I’ll do very briefly.   13 

  MS. COLINS: 14 

  That’s fine. 15 

  MR. PICKUS: 16 

  If you’d like.  If not, I won’t burden 17 

the record. 18 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 19 

  I have a couple --- Mary, I have a 20 

follow-up question just on that issue. 21 

  MS. COLINS: 22 

  All right. 23 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 24 

  And I have a little trouble with the 25 
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statement that a reorganization in bankruptcy is not a 1 

reorganization in bankruptcy.  I mean, debt --- when 2 

you restructure your debt, it means you didn’t pay it; 3 

isn’t that correct?  I mean, you don’t pay it all off; 4 

correct?  Am I missing something here? 5 

  MR. PERRY: 6 

  No.  You’re not missing anything.  What 7 

you have is a reorganization where the bondholders who 8 

are owed at the time, I think a billion eight --- 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  Right. 11 

  MR. PERRY: 12 

  --- accepted bonds of a billion 250, in 13 

exchange for equity that they determined was worth 14 

more.  So it was an exchange for --- they accepted 15 

equity.  The reason they accepted equity was because 16 

it was recognized by the bondholders as well as the 17 

later equity holders that this was a company that had 18 

tremendous potential that had been hamstrung by high 19 

interest it had been paying for any number of years, 20 

because the company was financed back in the mid '90s. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 22 

  But you weren’t able to --- I mean, if 23 

you could have refinanced that with the bondholders at 24 

the time, you would have done it without going into 25 
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bankruptcy, without that headache of going into 1 

bankruptcy; correct? 2 

  MR. PERRY: 3 

  The issue really was this group also put 4 

up the $500 million or led the group that put up $500 5 

million to rehab the properties.  So it was really a 6 

question of there was potential there that couldn’t be 7 

realized under the current ---. 8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  No.  I understand.  And I understand that 10 

doesn’t mean necessary for the future, but to follow 11 

up on Mary’s question, when the parent company goes 12 

bankrupt, it does have an impact on the subs.  It 13 

doesn’t have any impact on the subs in terms of 14 

management or potential cash flow that might be coming 15 

down or potential investments by the parent company. 16 

Is that what you’re telling me, it doesn’t have any 17 

impact? 18 

  MR. PICKUS: 19 

  The restructuring that we went through, 20 

Mr. Chairman, was effectively paying the debt that the 21 

bondholders had. 22 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 23 

  I’m talking about in general.  I’m 24 

talking about in general. 25 
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  MR. PICKUS: 1 

  Okay.   2 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 3 

  When a parent company goes bankrupt, even 4 

if it doesn’t own all of the subsidiary, and you do 5 

own more than 51 percent.  It has an impact on the 6 

management of the subsidiary or the funds available to 7 

the subsidiary if you’re going to do capital projects, 8 

et cetera.  I’m talking about in general, now.  Not 9 

necessarily your operation.  Would you agree with 10 

that? 11 

  MR. PICKUS: 12 

  I’ll accept that as a general 13 

proposition.   14 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 15 

  I just want to clarify the point you made 16 

so we all understand it.  But that doesn’t mean that 17 

anything like that’s going to happen to you now.  The 18 

question is, you know --- that’s what Commissioner 19 

Colins was addressing, the impact of it. 20 

  MS. COLINS: 21 

  And I’m getting into this line of 22 

questioning because I think it benefits all of us if 23 

the record reflects what protections --- and first of 24 

all, if positives came out of this reorganization, 25 
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fabulous.  The record will reflect that.  And I think 1 

we will all benefit from knowing that there are 2 

protections in place, or procedures, if we don’t want 3 

to use the word protections, procedures in place that 4 

will not cause there to be any problems of that sort 5 

with the Pennsylvania entity, and that’s why I’m 6 

giving you this opportunity to make your record. 7 

  MR. PICKUS: 8 

  I welcome that and appreciate it.  Let me 9 

take a moment to describe for the Board the matter 10 

that I referenced earlier, which was the formation of 11 

a bankruptcy remote entity.  A bankruptcy remote 12 

entity is generally comprised of two distinct factors, 13 

both of which are present by design in the structure 14 

of Keystone Redevelopment Partners.  And I would 15 

parenthetically note that part of the reason that they 16 

exist in the structure of Keystone Redevelopment 17 

partners is that we do have, as you’ve heard numerous 18 

times today, local investors.  Local investors who, in 19 

large degree, share the concern that you do with 20 

respect to the impact that a bankruptcy filing would 21 

have on the entity that they are investing in and 22 

wanted to make sure that that investment would be 23 

protected.  It would not, in any way, be affected by a 24 

bankruptcy filed by Trump Entertainment Resorts in the 25 
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future. 1 

  The two factors that signify a bankruptcy 2 

remote entity are these.  One is that it be created 3 

for a special purpose, that basically, it have one 4 

line of business, hold one asset, and conduct one line 5 

of business.  Keystone Redevelopment Partners clearly 6 

satisfies that goal.  In our operating agreement that 7 

has been provided to your staff probably many times at 8 

this point, that criteria is covered fairly well. 9 

  The second one deals with governance 10 

provisions.  And it would require that the entity have 11 

governance provisions that ensure that no single 12 

interest can cause that company to file bankruptcy.  13 

Keystone Redevelopment Partners is managed by a Board 14 

of partner representatives --- member representatives, 15 

in fact.  It’s a five-member Board that consists of 16 

three representatives from Trump Entertainment Resorts 17 

and two representatives from our local investor group, 18 

particularly Mr. Croce and Brian Tierney, who is not 19 

able to be here today. 20 

  The governance provisions of Keystone 21 

Redevelopment Partners directly in its operating 22 

agreement, which again, provided to the staff, 23 

requires that certain activities, certain material 24 

activities, have the affirmative vote of all five 25 
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Board representatives before those actions can be 1 

taken.  It’s a long list.  I’m happy to read it if you 2 

want me to.  But in particular, it includes the filing 3 

of a petition of bankruptcy.  So Keystone 4 

Redevelopment Partners, absent the two votes of our 5 

local investors, notwithstanding whatever might or 6 

might not happen to Trump Entertainment Resorts, 7 

simply does not have the ability to file bankruptcy. 8 

  I would also note that those same 9 

provisions of the operating agreement of Keystone 10 

Redevelopment Partners requires the affirmative vote 11 

of all five of those same Board members to change any 12 

of what I just described for you, so that the majority 13 

couldn’t change those guidelines and in effect, go 14 

around or otherwise implicate the interests of the 15 

minority investors there.  So that entity was 16 

constructed that way and very intentionally.  It was 17 

really at the --- I was going to say request.  That 18 

would be being a little kind --- at the demand of our 19 

local investors to ensure that their interests were 20 

protected.  Again, very much the same that you want to 21 

ensure your interests are protected. 22 

  MS. COLINS: 23 

  Thank you. 24 

  MR. PICKUS: 25 
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  Thank you. 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 2 

  I just had a couple more questions, if I 3 

might.  Other than for the majority provisions which 4 

you were just talking about, I presume that the voting 5 

--- voting stock is voting stock, or voting interests 6 

are voting interests, and they align in accordance 7 

with the organizational chart that we have here in our 8 

books? 9 

  MR. PICKUS: 10 

  They do.  One of the things in ---. 11 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 12 

  There wasn’t in a change in that 13 

somewhere along it, because we’ve had a couple where 14 

they didn’t match up. 15 

  MR. PICKUS: 16 

  I fully understand that, Mr. Chairman.  17 

One of the things that was not only important to us 18 

but was important to our local investors --- and one 19 

or more of them look like they’re trying to get out of 20 

the chair to answer the question.  But ---. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 22 

  But there wasn’t anything insinuous in 23 

that question. 24 

  MR. PICKUS: 25 
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  I know that.  But from the beginning of 1 

our discussion with our local investors, we went into 2 

it telling them that A, we expected them to invest 3 

money the same way we were investing money, and B, 4 

that they would have the same level of control based 5 

on that investment that we would.  And there’s nothing 6 

hidden.  There’s nothing anywhere behind it.  The 7 

ownership percentages you see are the same. 8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  And the flow of profits works the same 10 

way. 11 

  MR. PICKUS: 12 

  Absolutely. 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  I’m a little confused on something else, 15 

which was Phase I and Phase II.  You said --- I know, 16 

sir, you said you were committed to Phase II.  Was 17 

that a commitment --- is that a funded commitment or 18 

are you just committed to it like I’d be committed to 19 

having dinner tonight?  I’m committed to going on a 20 

bus ride tonight. 21 

  MR. PICKUS: 22 

  No.  It is a fully funded commitment.  23 

The budget that has been provided to your staff that 24 

you saw, perhaps too briefly today, of $445 million, 25 
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is through and including the entirety of Phase II.  1 

And again, we have almost $500 million of committed 2 

funding between equity from us and our local partners 3 

and the Morgan Stanley commitment letters.  So that is 4 

not just a commitment like, you know, we used to make 5 

to our girlfriends, but it’s a real binding 6 

commitment. 7 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 8 

  So you’re doing --- it may be a phase, 9 

but you’re doing it in stages, if you will, as opposed 10 

to --- I mean, we’ve had some phases that aren’t, you 11 

know, from other Applicants and their hotels and 12 

things, but they’re not committed to it at this point. 13 

  MR. PICKUS: 14 

  Yeah.  I think maybe the best way to look 15 

at it is, when we had the opportunity to acquire the 16 

Tasty administrative office land, we originally 17 

envisioned that additional acreage giving us the 18 

ability to develop and open a temporary facility.  19 

Through the work of our consultants and Paul Keller, 20 

we looked at that opportunity and found that rather 21 

than spend the money, and it was a significant amount 22 

of money, on a true temporary facility that we would 23 

knock down or take down when it was complete, we were 24 

able to implement a design that allowed us to build 25 
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our facility in phases, with Phase I functionally 1 

being the same as the temporary was but then being 2 

able to grow that into the full facility, which in our 3 

vernacular is Phase II.  But that is  4 

--- all the way through Phase II is part of our 5 

application, part of our commitment and is fully 6 

funded. 7 

  MR. MARSHALL: 8 

  And Phase II is the 3,000 machines? 9 

  MR. PICKUS: 10 

  That’s correct. 11 

  MR. MARSHALL: 12 

  Because everybody has a different 13 

definition of Phase I, II and III. 14 

  MR. PICKUS: 15 

  I’m sure they do. 16 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 17 

  1,500 and 1,500; right? 18 

  MR. PICKUS: 19 

  Correct. 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  Okay.  I know you talked --- you have a 22 

strong management group.  I can see that at the parent 23 

level and at other locations.  Do you have people 24 

identified now for this facility as yet?  And if so, 25 
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are they here? 1 

  MR. PERRY: 2 

  One of the great pleasant surprises I had 3 

when I came to the Trump organization was across the 4 

country, people who wanted to come to work from this 5 

organization.  We have a lot of quality candidates.  I 6 

believed that it was unwise to designate an individual 7 

until we were sure that we got the license. 8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  Okay. 10 

  MR. PERRY: 11 

  The property will be under the direction 12 

of Mark Juliano, who is our chief operating officer. 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  Thank you.  One other question, which is, 15 

you’ve made a lot of agreements, it seems like, with 16 

the community.  You’ve made great strides with the 17 

community in terms of commitments, et cetera.  Would 18 

you be willing to make those agreements a condition 19 

for your license? 20 

  MR. PICKUS: 21 

  Absolutely. 22 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 23 

  Okay.  Thank you.  Any other questions? 24 

All right.  Let me turn it back to Anne.  This is for 25 
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our staff review now. 1 

  MS. NEEB: 2 

  All right.  At this time, we would go 3 

ahead and give the Board the recommendations from the 4 

different bureaus who did the investigations. 5 

  ATTORNEY SCHWOYER: 6 

  Mr. Chairman and members of the Board, 7 

the background investigation conducted on this 8 

application by the Bureau of Investigations 9 

Enforcement has not identified any concerns with 10 

respect to character suitability that would preclude 11 

the approval of this Applicant for a Category 2 slot 12 

machine operators license in the city of Philadelphia. 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  Thank you, Michael.  Denyse? 15 

  MS. MISKIN: 16 

  Based on the information contained in the 17 

application and the financial suitability analysis 18 

performed, the task force is not aware of any material 19 

financial suitability issues that would preclude 20 

licensure of Keystone Redevelopment Partners as a 21 

Category 2 slot operator. 22 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 23 

  Thank you.  Susan? 24 

  MS. HENSEL: 25 
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  At this time, based on the materials and 1 

information in the application and cooperation 2 

received from the Applicant, the Bureau of Licensing 3 

is not aware of any issues that would preclude 4 

licensure of Keystone Redevelopment Partners, LLC, as 5 

a Category 2 slots operator. 6 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 7 

  Thank you, Susan.  Is there anything else 8 

from staff? 9 

  MS. NEEB: 10 

  No, not at this time.  At this point, we 11 

don’t have any additional exhibits.  We could ask the 12 

Applicant if they do. 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  Yes.  Does the Applicant have anything 15 

else today or any exhibits or anything else for today? 16 

  ATTORNEY QUAGLIA: 17 

  No, Mr. Chairman. 18 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 19 

  Okay.  I don’t think there’s any reason 20 

--- I don’t think we need to leave the record open.  I 21 

think we just adjourn. 22 

  MS. NEEB: 23 

  If some other issue arose between now and 24 

December, --- 25 
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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  We’ll bring it up. 2 

  MS. NEEB: 3 

  --- we can reconvene. 4 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 5 

  Okay.  All right.  Can I have a motion? 6 

  MR. MARSHALL: 7 

  So moved. 8 

  MS. COLINS: 9 

  Second. 10 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 11 

  Thank you.  All in favor?  Thank you.  12 

We’re adjourned and the record is closed.  Thank you 13 

very much. 14 

 15 

* * * * * * * * 16 

HEARING CONCLUDED AT 5:30 P.M. 17 
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